

EMERGING TECHNOLOGY IN MEDIA AND COMMUNICATION STUDIES

Editor-in-Chief Dr. Pramiti Roy

Editors

Dr. Moumita Chakraborty

Dr. Mahendra Kumar Jena

Ms. Pritha Misra



Emerging Technology in Media and Communication Studies

Department of Journalism and Mass Communication Swami Vivekananda University, Barrackpore



SWAMI VIVEKANANDA UNIVERSITY

Emerging Technology in Media and Communication Studies

Editor-in-Chief Dr. Pramiti Roy

Editors

Dr. Moumita Chakraborty

Dr. Mahendra Kumar Jena

Ms. Pritha Misra

First Published 2024

Swami Vivekananda University

Department of Journalism and Mass Communication

Barrackpore

West Bengal

India

700121

Copyright © Reserve

Printed and bound in India by ...

All rights reserved. No part of this publication can be reprinted or reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any electronic, mechanical, or other means, now known or hereafter invented, including photocopying and recording, or in any information storage or retrieval system, without prior permission from the Author and the Publisher.

Cover Design: Ayan Roy

ISBN: 978-93-6128-689-6

Price: Rs. 599/-

Acknowledgement

extend our sincere gratitude to our esteemed Vice Chancellor for their warm welcome and unwavering support for our mission to publish "Emerging Trends in Media and Communication Studies." We also express our heartfelt appreciation to the University's Registrar for their enthusiastic encouragement, which has been instrumental in our efforts. The blessings and encouragement received from these eminent figures within the University are deeply valued.

Our journey began with a meeting in July with the Chief Operating Officer, Mr. Saurav Adhikari, who proposed the idea of compiling book chapters on emerging trends in media and communication studies. We embraced his suggestion wholeheartedly, and his pledged support was crucial to our endeavour. This achievement would not have been possible without his foresight and dedication.

The success of this publication is a testament to the collective dedication of both departments. The Department of English faculty, in particular, played a significant role, contributing their expertise and commitment to shaping this interdisciplinary work.

Lastly, we extend special gratitude to those who designed the book's cover. Their efforts have added depth and visual appeal to our book chapters, for which we are truly grateful.



From the Editors

As we delve into this extensive volume, we take a voyage across the complex terrain of media and communication in this extensive collection, "Emerging Trends in Media and Communication Studies," This book embodies the most recent advancements, theories, and approaches that are influencing the media and communication industry today.

The study of media and communication has become one of the most prominent fields since the turn of the 20th century. The emergence of social media, the development of new mass communication technologies, and the internet have all just expanded the scope of significance.

Communication and the media have always been at the front of cultural change, impacting how we communicate, engage with one another, and process information. The subject has seen significant changes in recent years due to the quick development of technology and the globalization of information.

It can be stated the advancements in media and communications as a social science in India over the previous 20 years, noting that one feature of this area is its natural spread—that is, the difficulty of confining "media studies" to a single discipline. In India, the dynamic and always changing field of media and communications is taught in a variety of ways, including as a social science degree on its own, as a humanities major, and as part of vocational degrees.

The development of media studies has also brought together a number of social science, humanities, and artistic fields. it is often said, "the study of media and communication incorporates elements from sociology, psychology, cultural studies, ethics, language studies, etc" elucidating the subject's intrinsic multidisciplinary nature.

In addition, mass media has a very wide audience, reach, substance, and technological capabilities. It is a field that is always changing and very important since it not only affects society but also sets new trends.

In summary, media and communications, like other social sciences, tend to change over time in tandem with the worlds they impact. And speaking of which, there is nothing like the tremendous influence that media can have on cultures in such a short amount of time. The applications of this subject of study are remarkably broad, ranging from corporate communications and public relations to journalism and advertising.

The transformational effect of digital technology on media creation and consumption is one of the major themes that come out of this collection. New opportunities and challenges present themselves as the Internet continues to democratize access to information. We debate the effects of these technological developments on questions of democracy, diversity, and representation, ranging from algorithmic bias to citizen journalism. This book examines the emergence of social media and its significant impact on social relationships and communication patterns. Social media sites like Facebook, Twitter, and Instagram, with their billions of users globally, have emerged as key hubs for activism, public conversation, and identity development. However, when navigating this virtual public square, we come into issues with misinformation spreading, polarization, and privacy.

The book also emphasis that literature and the media are linked domains that both reflect and influence our collective consciousness rather than being standalone objects forms the foundation of our investigation. Our multidisciplinary investigation reveals that one of the main concerns is how media shapes literary forms and storytelling. We examine how literature interacts with new media platforms including film, television, and digital games as media convergence blurs the lines between various storytelling formats. We reveal how different media



interact, converse, and come together to form new forms of cultural expression and story engagement through multidisciplinary analysis.

The volume also encompasses the significant influence graphic design has on the development of our media world. It is a a visual rhetoric with immediate and powerful messages that cuts beyond language barriers. Within the field of media studies, graphic design is a complex and transforming force that shapes our perception, understanding, and interaction with information in a society that is becoming more and more visual.

Here, we also see a paradigmshift in the creation and consumption of media as artificial intelligence (AI) and machine learning technologies continue to progress. AI is changing how we generate, distribute, and consume media. Examples of this include automated content generation and personalized suggestions. But these developments also bring with them moral and legal issues that need to be carefully considered. Under the more general heading of media and communication studies, new fields of expertise have also emerged as a result of the changing times we live in. Consider the growth of influencer marketing, social media management, digital marketing, media policy, education, and strategic communication, to name a few. As it is often said that, "virtual reality and artificial intelligence have [also] overtaken most fields, and mass media has been similarly invaded." "The way that mass media operates has altered as a result of bots and assisted devices, particularly in the areas of public relations and advertising. These days, a lot of people are into live-streaming, predictive advertising, voice assistants like Alexa or Siri, and [short format material like] Instagram reels.

New, diverse media channels have emerged as a result of the proliferation of platforms and media. These channels can enable content delivery on demand through predictive algorithms and are highly customizable to the demands of the customer. Additionally, this has led to the intriguing phenomena of content "Glocalization" (Global+Local). "All platforms [are] becoming truly global, catering to audiences across the world; at the same time, they are catering to local or even hyper-local audiences," The amount of regional language material in India is increasing. Even in regional languages, people are creating through alternative and digital media. This has actually sparked the media's democratization movement. Furthermore, this democratization has greatly increased the number of opportunities in this

cutthroat industry.

Prominent academics and researchers from this institution discuss various new developments in this book. Every chapter provides insightful analysis and new viewpoints on how communication is changing in the digital era, covering topics such as the emergence of social media and its effects on democracy and the growing role of artificial intelligence in media production. Through the adoption of interdisciplinary viewpoints and methodological diversity, our goal is to enhance our comprehension of the intricate dynamics involved in media and communication. Regardless of your role—student, instructor, researcher, or professional in the fiel, We hope that this book will prove to be an invaluable tool in comprehending the intricate and diverse aspects of media and communication in the modern world. We cordially encourage you to delve into the wide range of subjects this volume covers and to interact with the most recent scholarly work and study in the area.

We, the editors, are appreciative to the contributors who so kindly offered their knowledge and skills. We also want to express our gratitude to the editorial staff and reviewers for their countless hours of effort in guaranteeing the caliber and integrity of this publication. We anticipate that "Emerging Trends in Media and Communication Studies" will stimulate thought-provoking discussions, provide fresh insights, and further the body of knowledge in this vibrant and ever-evolving field.

Contents

Data Journalism: A Rising News Trend In Media Studies Mr. Ayan Roy	12
Embodied Resilience And Shifting Paradigms: An Intersectional Reading Of Masculinity And Disability In The	
Cinematic Narrative Of Martin Brest's Scent Of A Woman Mr. Agnideepto Datta And Dr. Moupikta Mukherjee	22
A Brief Study Of Early Conditioning And Media Effects On Children Mr. Debarshi Arathdar And Ms. Shreyoshi Dhar	27
Visual Evolution: The Transformative Role Of Graphic Design In Media Studies Mr. Kishor Kumar Hira	32
Journalism In The Era Of Artificial Intelligence Dr. Moumita Chakraborty	39
Study Of Implication Of Ai In Indian Print Media- Emerging Trends & Challenges Dr. Mahendra Kumar Jena	44
The Influence Of Social Media On English Language And Education Ms. Natasha Chatterjee	51
The Future Of Print Media: Sustainability And Innovation In A Digital Age Ms. Pritha Misra	57
Podcasting Evolves As A New Form Of Mass Communication In This New Digital Era. Mr. Sujoy Goswami	66

Gaming Communities As Social Space,	
Investigating Social Interaction In	
Gaming Platforms	72
Dr. Shantanu Siuli	
The Indian Youth And The Changing Paradigm:	
From Television To The Internet Dr. Pramiti Roy	77
Interdisciplinary Synergies: Exploring Emerging Trends In Media Studies And English Literature	87
Dr. Tirna Sadhu	07
The war of seven kingdoms: A Feminist Re-reading of the	
famous series Game of Thrones	95
Dr. Rituparna Chakraborty	
List Of Contributors	98



Data Journalism: A Rising News Trend in Media Studies

Mr. Ayan Roy

Introduction

Have you heard about that hazy city in the news? People were struggling to breathe while officials blamed it on "natural fog". It is not just one city, but many around the world, leaving everyone confused and struggling for clean air, and answers. Data journalism is like being a detective for numbers. It involves getting into mountains of information like government reports, satellite pictures, and air quality readings. By piecing together all the data, the true picture of pollution stands out. Interactive charts and maps let you explore the data yourself, seeing the truth as clear as day. However, it is not just about pointing fingers, but also about giving a voice to everyone struggling. Residents become empowered, and polluters are held accountable. This can help change the narrative from confusion and frustration to awareness and action. Data journalism can help tackle everything from shady politicians to unfair healthcare. It is about using numbers to tell powerful stories that can change the world.

What is Data Journalism Exactly?

Data journalism is a process that involves analysing large sets of data such as tweets, clicks, and market updates to create news stories. It is a way of using numbers to tell stories. The goal of data journalism is to uncover hidden truths and expose injustices. Data journalism can help empower people to take action and hold those in power accountable.

"Data journalism is journalism based on the filtering and analysis of large data sets for the purpose of creating or elevating a news story," as succinctly defined by Wikipedia. But data journalism is not merely a technical exercise; it is a narrative revolution. As Paul Bradshaw, founder of DataJournalism.com, eloquently states, "It is not just about numbers; it is about using numbers to tell stories." Data journalism is a way of transforming quantitative data into qualitative narratives. It involves using analytical tools and narrative instincts to create compelling stories that resonate with readers.

However, the influence of data journalism goes beyond simply providing information. It enables people to make informed decisions, stimulates critical thinking, and makes the powerful accountable. Imagine yourself not just as a reader, but as a collaborator, interpreting the secrets of numbers, using data visualisation tools to reveal the hidden stories of our reality. As the Bureau of Investigative Journalism rightly states, data journalism provides "a nuanced and impactful lens through which we can understand the complexities of our world."

1. Why Is Data Journalism Important?



Data journalism is a powerful tool for creating a better future, not just a fancy buzzword. Here's why:

1.1. Shining a light on hidden truths:

Data journalism acts as a decoder ring, unlocking the stories hidden within the mountains of data that surround us. It exposes the polluters choking our cities, the inequalities buried in official reports, and the truths veiled by misinformation.

1.2. Empowering action, not frustration:

Data journalism cuts through the fog of conflicting information. Interactive charts and maps transform complex issues into tangible stories, empowering you to understand the bigger picture and become an active participant in shaping the narrative.

1.3. Holding power accountable:

Data journalism shines a spotlight on wrongdoing, whether it is corruption lurking in government shadows or environmental injustices ignored by big businesses. With the weight of statistics and undeniable narratives, it forces accountability and demands change.

1.4. Building a better-informed society:

Data journalism empowers people to analyse issues with the power of data, making every decision, big or small, a chance to build a more informed, participatory society.

1.5. Fueling critical thinking:

Data journalism challenges you to question, analyse, and draw your own conclusions. Interactive visualisations and compelling narratives spark critical thinking, encouraging people to dig deeper and explore different perspectives.

1.6. Preserving transparency and democracy:

Data journalism acts as a transparency watchdog, leveraging data to expose hidden agendas and hold governments, corporations, and institutions accountable to the public. It safeguards democracy by ensuring access to information and empowering citizens to make informed decisions about their leaders and communities.

2. Tools and Techniques in Data Journalism

Beginning the journey in data journalism can be quite challenging. It requires not only courage but also a versatile toolkit of tools and techniques. Here, we will explore the intricacies of these indispensable resources, each serving as a nuanced instrument in the hands of a skilled data journalist.

2.1. Data Collection Tools:

When starting a data-driven investigation, the first and most critical task is to gather data. Data collection tools are used to seek out and extract information from various sources. Web scraping tools are digital detectives that can navigate through websites, reports, and real-time data to collect essential clues. These tools play a crucial role in ensuring that the investigation is based on a comprehensive and diverse dataset.

For example, in an environmental investigation, a journalist utilises web scraping tools like **Import.io** to extract air quality data from multiple government websites. This tool enables the collection of real-time information, providing a holistic view of pollution levels across different regions.

2.2. Data Analysis Software:

Data analysis software is crucial for journalists to explore and interpret large datasets, helping them to extract meaningful insights and uncover patterns and trends that add depth to their narratives. For instance, a journalist can use **Python libraries like Pandas and NumPy** to dissect socioeconomic data and reveal correlations between income levels and access to healthcare.

Machine learning algorithms can also be used to identify patterns and outliers in large datasets, providing new insights and story ideas. Overall, data analysis software is an indispensable tool for journalists to tell compelling stories that resonate with readers and empower them to take informed actions.

2.3. Visualisation Platforms:

Data visualisation platforms play a critical role in journalism by enabling information to be presented in an engaging and accessible manner. They empower journalists to create compelling visuals that enhance audience comprehension and engagement.

For instance, when reporting on urban development, a journalist may use a data visualisation tool such as Tableau to create interactive maps showcasing the growth of infrastructure projects over time. This visual representation not only aids readers in understanding the evolution of the cityscape but also enables them to interact with the data, providing a more immersive and informative experience.

By leveraging data visualisation tools, journalists can create impactful stories that resonate with their audience and provide a deeper understanding of complex issues.

2.5. Mapping Tools:



Mapping tools are useful for providing a spatial context to data, which is helpful for journalists to highlight geographical patterns and disparities. These tools are especially useful in visualising information related to locations and spatial relationships.

For instance, in an investigative piece on deforestation, a journalist can use a tool such as **Carto** to map areas with high rates of tree loss. This visualisation can help readers better understand the extent of environmental impact and the regions that are most affected.

2.6. Statistical Analysis Tools:

Statistical analysis tools play a crucial role in gaining a deeper understanding of complex datasets. Among the many tools available, **SPSS** stands out as a statistical powerhouse that can reveal patterns and correlations within health data. Microsoft Excel, on the other hand, is a versatile and reliable tool that can handle various statistical tasks with precision. Through statistical analysis, data journalists can not only identify trends but also convert numbers into meaningful insights.

2.7. Machine Learning and AI:

As data analysis techniques become more advanced, machine learning and AI tools are emerging as powerful tools for predicting future trends. For example, **TensorFlow** can predict consumer preferences in e-commerce, while **IBM Watson Studio** can analyse complex datasets and uncover hidden trends. These tools are helping to elevate the field of data journalism, allowing journalists to do more than just report on past events, but also forecast what may happen in the future.

2.8. Collaborative Platforms:

Collaboration is key to success, and this is especially true when it comes to creating something great. Platforms like **GitHub** offer a space for contributors to come together and work seamlessly. Journalists also benefit from this platform, as it allows for transparency and version control. Google Sheets is another platform that enables real-time collaboration and turns the journalistic process into a synchronised performance.

3. Successful Data Journalism Projects:

3.1. Australia's childcare blackspots mapping by ABC News

The ABC's Digital Story Innovation Team has published an article about the state of Australia's childcare sector, which has revealed that approximately 35% of the country's population lives in childcare "deserts". These areas have three times more children than childcare places, which leads to gender inequities, lower social and health outcomes for women and families, and a greater rural/urban divide.



The story includes personal narratives, expert analyses, and research from the Mitchell Institute for Education and Health Policy. To make the complex story clearer and more accessible, the article features graphs and interactive maps that demonstrate the links between rurality, occupation, language spoken at home, and other demographic factors that impact access to childcare.

The ABC's data visualisation types, clean black background, and interactive element that allows readers to compare their own neighbourhoods help to create a compelling exploration of this multifaceted social and economic problem. Dr. Liz Allen, a demographer at ANU, has commented that the maps show that inequality is present in Australia even before children start school or are born, despite the commonly held belief that everyone gets a fair go.

3.2. The COVID-19 Vaccination Tracker - Reuters

The Reuters COVID-19 vaccination tracker is a remarkable example of data journalism that provides a comprehensive picture of the global vaccination effort. The tracker is a sleek-looking webpage that offers real-time data on vaccine uptake around the world. It allows users to compare countries by geographic region and income level, providing a comprehensive view of the global vaccination campaign.

The tracker was created by a team of talented reporters at Reuters who faced the difficult task of tracking the vaccination policies that determined who had access to COVID-19 vaccines in countries worldwide. To accomplish this task, they created a unifying structure to catalogue the different phases of each country's vaccination rollout plan. This process was particularly challenging because individual countries' plans could change at any time during the rollout phase, requiring constant updates and revisions.

The Reuters COVID-19 vaccination tracker brings together various aspects of the vaccination campaign, including information on the vaccination rate for each country, vaccines eligibility, and the impact of vaccination policy campaigns on pandemic curves. This information is vital in understanding the effectiveness of the vaccine rollout in different parts of the world.

Moreover, the tracker's data powers the COVID-19 vaccine experience on Amazon Alexa in several countries, enabling users to ask questions about vaccine uptake and eligibility. This feature is particularly useful for people who have limited access to the internet or who prefer to access information through voice assistants.

The tracker was initially designed on paper and later in Adobe XD before being coded in D3.js. Reuters uses GitHub Actions to automate and schedule tasks, while the tracker was built on React.js and Next.js, which are popular web development frameworks. The use of these frameworks allowed the team to create a user-friendly interface that displays complex data in

an intuitive and easy-to-understand format.

3.3. War and Conflict Al Jazeera - Gaza Bombing Casualties

The year 2023 has seen several conflicts around the world make headlines, such as Russia's war in Ukraine, the civil unrest in Myanmar, and the recent conflict in Israel and Gaza. In the midst of these events, journalists have utilised a variety of data methods to investigate and report on the situation.

For instance, the independent Russian news outlet Mediazona took on the challenge of determining how many Russians fighting in Ukraine are former inmates, despite the lack of reliable data from the Federal Penitentiary Service. To do so, they analysed local incarceration statistics from 35 out of 58 regions in the country and studied data from Russian military courts to estimate the number of deserters.

Meanwhile, Al Jazeera's Know Their Names visualisation used data from the Palestinian Ministry of Health to create a detailed representation of the 6,747 individuals who lost their lives in the initial Israeli attacks on Gaza. The visualisation displayed the ages of those who died, highlighting the years of life expectancy they lost. It also demonstrated the number of families that suffered losses of multiple family members in the conflict.

Lastly, The New York Times investigated the situation in Myanmar by combining photographs, videos, data, satellite images, and interviews. Their report revealed that the Myanmar junta's retaliation against citizen resistance has become increasingly severe since the 2021 coup, with civilians frequently bearing the brunt of the violence. The Times found that the number of military airstrikes in April, May, and June was nearly twice as high as the first three months of the year, with an average of eight per month in 2021 compared to 30 in 2023.

3.4. Concerns Over Accuracy of India's Past COVID-19 Vaccination Data

India's past vaccination campaign against COVID-19 raised concerns over the accuracy of data presented by the government on the effectiveness of the two vaccines in use. A report by IndiaSpend found that the data used to support claims of high effectiveness was incomplete and lacked transparency. Issues included the absence of publicly released efficacy data for Covaxin and limited data available for Covishield. The lack of transparency and incomplete data raised concerns about public trust in the vaccination campaign and the vaccines' ability to curb the virus.

4. Collaboration Between Journalists and Data Scientists:

When journalists and data scientists work together, they can produce powerful stories by combining their different skills. They use data to find insights and tell stories that can make



a big impact. In modern newsrooms, teams of people with different backgrounds and skills work together to create data-driven journalism that people can easily understand. By working together, they can create projects that resonate with readers and make a difference.

4.1. Interdisciplinary Teams in Newsrooms:

Journalism and data science are no longer two separate fields. Nowadays, they work together in interdisciplinary teams that combine journalism and data analysis skills. These teams are made up of journalists, data scientists, programmers, designers, and domain experts. Each member brings their own unique perspective to the table. By working in this way, newsrooms can dive deeper into complex issues and create informative and engaging stories with data.

4.2. Contributions of Interdisciplinary Teams:

The collaboration between journalists and data scientists is a powerful combination that enhances the ability of newsrooms to produce insightful and impactful journalism. Data scientists bring advanced analytical skills and technical expertise to the table, which enables journalists to extract meaningful insights from complex datasets.

Journalists, on the other hand, provide context, storytelling prowess, and a deep understanding of societal issues. They guide the data analysis process and shape the narrative, ensuring that the story is both compelling and informative. Together, these interdisciplinary teams navigate the intricate intersection of data and storytelling, producing nuanced narratives that resonate with audiences and drive meaningful conversations.

4.3. Successful Partnerships and Outcomes:

Working together, journalists and data scientists have produced impactful outcomes by analysing large-scale datasets and revealing disparities in education, healthcare, and economic opportunity. Successful collaborations like ProPublica's "The Opportunity Gap" and The New York Times' "The Upshot" series have prompted policy changes by informing the public and catalysing discussions around pressing social issues. By using data-driven visuals and compelling storytelling, these partnerships have helped to shed light on important topics.

Similarly, initiatives like The Guardian's "The Counted" and FiveThirtyEight's "Gun Deaths in America" showcase the transformative potential of collaborative data journalism. By leveraging data analysis techniques and journalistic investigation, these projects exposed the human toll of gun violence in the United States, prompting calls for reform and accountability.

5. Data Visualization and Storytelling:

Data visualisation has become an essential aspect of contemporary journalism. It involves converting complicated datasets into captivating narratives that leave a lasting impact on readers



and help them understand complex information. By merging data and design, journalists can leverage visualisation to create a powerful tool that can convey information, evoke emotions, and increase engagement.

5.1. Enhancing Storytelling with Visualisations:

Data visualisations are powerful storytelling tools that journalists use to present information in a visually engaging way. They simplify complex data sets into easy-to-understand charts, graphs, maps, and infographics that provide clarity and context to complex stories, making them easier to follow. Additionally, visual elements evoke emotions and create a lasting impact on the audience, giving stories a deeper meaning beyond just words.

5.2. Improving Audience Comprehension:

When presenting information, using visualisations can greatly improve audience comprehension. Visualisations are better than text or tables because they take advantage of the human brain's ability to process visual information. They help to simplify complex concepts, and make them more memorable. Journalists can use visual metaphors, colour schemes, and interactive features to convey key insights and help their audience understand better.

5.3. Examples of Impactful Data Visualisations:

There are many instances where data visualisation has played a crucial role in transforming journalism. Two such examples are The New York Times' "Snow Fall: The Avalanche at Tunnel Creek" and The Washington Post's "The Opioid Files." These projects showcase how visual storytelling can be seamlessly integrated with investigative reporting. By using interactive multimedia experiences, they help to explain complex narratives, drawing readers into the heart of the story and creating empathy and understanding.

Similarly, The Guardian's "The Counted" project and Reuters' "Graphics: The COVID-19 Tracker" showcase the informative potential of interactive data visualisations in news reporting. By enabling users to explore data in real time and uncover insights at their own pace, these visualisations empower audiences to engage with the story on a deeper level, driving awareness and sparking conversation.

Where is Data Journalism Heading?

The field of data journalism is currently undergoing a significant transformation, mainly driven by emerging technologies that promise to revolutionise the way stories are discovered, analysed, and presented. Machine learning and artificial intelligence (AI) are leading this evolution and offer journalists powerful tools for automating tasks such as data analysis and pattern recognition. By using machine learning algorithms, journalists can efficiently sift

through vast amounts of data, identify trends, and generate insights at scale. These technologies also allow for the creation of personalised content experiences, tailoring stories to individual interests.

Furthermore, new technologies like interactive data visualisations, augmented reality (AR), and virtual reality (VR) experiences are changing the future landscape of data-driven reporting. They offer immersive narratives beyond traditional formats and redefine audience engagement. Blockchain technology also holds promise for enhancing transparency and trust in data journalism by providing tamper-proof records of data provenance. The proliferation of collaborations and cross-border investigations facilitated by digital platforms is fostering a global ecosystem of data-driven storytelling.

However, there are challenges that come with these opportunities. Ethical concerns, including biases and transparency issues, need addressing with AI and machine learning algorithms. Data privacy and security issues require careful navigation, particularly when accessing sensitive datasets. Moreover, the democratisation of data journalism tools raises questions about newsroom workflows and journalists' roles in a rapidly evolving media landscape.

Despite these challenges, the opportunities for innovation and impact are enormous. Technologies empower journalists to uncover stories that were previously inaccessible, amplify marginalised voices, and shed light on underreported issues. Collaborations between journalists, technologists, and data scientists foster interdisciplinary approaches, pushing the boundaries of data journalism and creating new avenues for audience engagement.

In conclusion, as technological advancements reshape storytelling, the future of data journalism holds promise. By embracing emerging trends responsibly, journalists can unlock new possibilities for uncovering insights, fostering transparency, and empowering audiences to navigate an increasingly complex world. To realise its full potential in the digital age, data journalism must steer ethical considerations and welcome interdisciplinary collaboration.

References:

Au, E. (2023, December 15). Editor's Pick: Top 10 Data Journalism Projects from 2023. Global Investigative Journalism Network. https://gijn.org/stories/editors-pick-top-10-data-journalism-projects-from-2023/

Cardello, J. (2022, August 30). *10 data journalism examples to inspire your next feature*. Vev Blog. https://www.vev.design/blog/data-journalism-examples/Dixon, L., & Au, E. (2023, August 10). *Data journalism Top 10: armed groups in*



- the Amazon, US gun exports, and Myanmar's airstrikes. Global Investigative Journalism Network. https://gijn.org/stories/data-journalism-top-10-armed-groups-in-the-amazon-us-gun-exports-and-the-myanmar-juntas-airstrike-campaign/
- Flew, T., Spurgeon, C., Daniel, A., & Swift, A. (2012). THE PROMISE OF

 COMPUTATIONAL JOURNALISM. *Journalism Practice*, 6(2), 157–171.

 https://doi.org/10.1080/17512786.2011.616655
- Majumder, P. (2022, March 15). What is Data Journalism all about? Analytics Vidhya. https://www.analyticsvidhya.com/blog/2022/01/what-is-data-journalism-all-about/
- Ostini, G. (n.d.). *Ten examples of outstanding data journalism (2023)*. Shorthand.com. https://shorthand.com/the-craft/how-data-journalists-create-beautiful-feature-stories/index.html
- Thienthaworn, E. (2021, December 12). What is Data Journalism? Ekapon

 Thienthaworn Medium. Medium. https://medium.com/@ekapon.th/what-is-data-journalism-17afbec6e30a

Wikipedia contributors. (2024, January 15). *Data journalism*. Wikipedia. https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Data_journalism#:~:text=Antonopoulos%20and%20 Karyotakis%20define%20the,and%20to%20highlight%20relevant%20data. Zhu, L., & Du, Y. (2018). Interdisciplinary Learning in Journalism: A Hong Kong Study of Data Journalism Education. *Asia Pacific Media Educator*, *28*(1), 16–37. https://doi.org/10.1177/1326365x18780417

Embodied Resilience And Shifting Paradigms: An Intersectional Reading of Masculinity and Disability in the Cinematic Narrative of Martin Brest's Scent of a Woman

Mr. Agnideepto Datta and Dr. Moupikta Mukherjee

Masculinity and the male ego, particularly within the realm of retired army personnel, constitute rich terrain for analysis, invoking sociological theories that shed light on the complexities of gender identity and power dynamics. Drawing from Raewyn Connell's seminal work on hegemonic masculinity (Connell, 1995), retired army personnel often epitomize traits associated with traditional notions of masculinity, such as courage, resilience, and authority. The military environment, characterized by its hierarchical structure and emphasis on discipline, instils a culture where dominance and toughness are valorised, shaping the self-concepts and behaviours of those within its ranks. However, the transition from active duty to civilian life presents retired army personnel with multifaceted challenges that may disrupt conventional understandings of masculinity. As individuals navigate this transition, they confront shifts in roles, responsibilities, and power dynamics, which can unsettle established notions of identity and self-worth. The male ego, deeply entrenched in perceptions of strength and control, may encounter vulnerabilities during this process, as individuals grapple with reconciling their identities beyond the structured confines of military life. Exploring masculinity and the male ego among retired army personnel necessitates a nuanced examination of the interplay between institutional norms, personal experiences, and societal expectations, illuminating the intricate dynamics of gender identity within the context of military culture.

In literature and film, retired army men often serve as poignant embodiments of masculinity, grappling with the complexities of identity and ego in the aftermath of military service. For instance, Ernest Hemingway's novel "The Old Man and the Sea" presents the character of Santiago, an aging fisherman whose struggles at sea mirror the endurance and resilience expected of retired soldiers (Hemingway 12). Santiago's relentless pursuit of the marlin reflects his unwavering commitment to the ideals of masculinity, despite his physical limitations and the challenges of old age. Similarly, in the film "Gran Torino" directed by Clint Eastwood, the character of Walt Kowalski, a retired Korean War veteran, confronts issues of masculinity as he navigates shifting societal norms and personal loss (Eastwood). Kowalski's stoic demeanour and rigid adherence to traditional codes of masculinity are tested as he forms unlikely connections with his Hmong immigrant neighbours, challenging his preconceived notions of identity and belonging. Through these literary and cinematic examples, the complexities of masculinity among retired army men are vividly depicted, offering nuanced insights into the interplay between personal resilience, societal expectations, and the evolving nature of gender roles.



In exploring the intersections of masculinity and disability among retired army men, Disability Studies theories provide valuable insights into the construction of identity and the negotiation of power dynamics within societal frameworks. Utilizing the Social Model of Disability, which posits that disability is not solely a result of individual impairments but rather arises from societal barriers and attitudes, sheds light on how masculinity and disability intertwine (Oliver 18). Retired army men, who may have acquired disabilities during their service or later in life, navigate complex social landscapes where traditional notions of masculinity intersect with perceptions of physical and mental abilities. The embodiment of hegemonic masculinity ideals, characterized by strength, independence, and emotional resilience, often presents challenges for individuals with disabilities, as societal norms may perceive their impairments as signs of weakness or inadequacy (Connell 25). This tension between masculine identity and disability can manifest in various ways, from internalized stigma to external discrimination, as retired army men negotiate their sense of self within broader cultural contexts. Moreover, the portrayal of disabled characters in literature and film offers nuanced representations of masculinity, challenging dominant narratives and interrogating the intersectionalities of gender, disability, and power (Shakespeare 42). Through critical analysis informed by Disability Studies theories, examining the experiences of retired army men provides a lens into the complexities of identity formation, agency, and resistance within the context of disability and masculinity.

"Scent of a Woman," directed by Martin Brest, emerges as a compelling locus for the exploration of masculinity, disability, and societal constructs. The film's narrative pivotally revolves around Lieutenant Colonel Frank Slade, a retired army officer whose abrupt plunge into blindness catalyses a profound journey of self-discovery and defiance against societal norms. Slade's narrative arc embodies the intricate interplay between masculinity and disability, illustrating the multifaceted dimensions of identity and agency amidst adversity. Within the film's framework, Slade's loss of sight becomes emblematic of broader struggles, delineating the complexities of masculinity when juxtaposed with vulnerability and resilience. Brest's portrayal of Slade transcends mere characterization, delving into the depths of human experience, where notions of strength, honour, and autonomy converge with the realities of impairment and societal perception. Thus, "Scent of a Woman" emerges not merely as a cinematic narrative but as a profound exploration of the dialectics of identity, power, and embodiment within the nexus of disability and masculinity. Through a scholarly lens, dissecting Slade's narrative trajectory unveils nuanced insights into the construction and negotiation of gendered identities in the face of life-altering circumstances, inviting critical discourse on the intricacies of human experience and societal expectation.

In "Scent of a Woman," the central character, Lieutenant Colonel Frank Slade, embodies a complex interplay of masculinity and disability, offering a nuanced exploration of identity, power, and vulnerability within the framework of societal expectations. Slade's character epitomizes traditional ideals of masculinity, characterized by strength, resilience,

and assertiveness. However, his sudden loss of sight catalyses a profound reckoning with his own sense of masculinity and self-worth. As Slade grapples with his newfound disability, his struggles to maintain a facade of strength while confronting his inner vulnerabilities are palpably portrayed throughout the film. For instance, in one pivotal scene, Slade defiantly declares, "I'm in the dark here!" (Brest, 1992), capturing the essence of his existential turmoil as he confronts the limitations of his physical condition. This moment encapsulates the fragility of the male ego when faced with the erosion of physical prowess, highlighting the intersectional dynamics between disability and masculinity.

Drawing from Connell's theory of hegemonic masculinity (Connell, 1995), Slade's character embodies a paradigmatic representation of the patriarchal ideal, rooted in notions of dominance and control. As a retired army officer, Slade exudes authority and command, embodying the epitome of masculine power. However, his disability destabilizes this hegemonic facade, forcing him to confront the fragility of his identity and the limitations of societal constructs. The film's narrative unfolds as a poignant exploration of Slade's journey towards self-acceptance and empowerment in the face of adversity, challenging prevailing norms of masculinity and redefining notions of strength and resilience. Through Slade's character arc, "Scent of a Woman" interrogates the complexities of gender identity and the inherent contradictions within hegemonic masculinity, offering a critical lens through which to examine the intersectional dynamics of disability and power. In tandem with the exploration of masculinity, "Scent of a Woman" delves into the complexities of disability, foregrounding the intersectional dynamics between impairment and identity. Slade's blindness becomes a central motif through which the film navigates themes of agency, independence, and social perception. Within the framework of Disability Studies, Slade's disability is not merely a medical condition but a social construct shaped by societal attitudes and structures (Oliver, 1996). The film exposes the inherent ableism embedded within societal norms, as Slade confronts discrimination and marginalization due to his disability.

In "Scent of a Woman," the character of Lieutenant Colonel Frank Slade confronts pervasive ableism embedded within societal norms, illuminating the systemic discrimination and marginalization experienced by individuals with disabilities. Slade's journey unfolds against a backdrop of societal attitudes that equate disability with deficiency, relegating individuals like himself to the margins of social acceptance. Throughout the film, Slade encounters numerous instances of ableist behaviour, ranging from subtle condescension to overt exclusion, as others perceive his blindness as a sign of weakness or incompetence. Such encounters underscore the deeply ingrained ableist assumptions that permeate societal structures, perpetuating a cycle of marginalization and disenfranchisement for individuals with disabilities. Slade's experiences serve as a microcosm of broader societal attitudes towards disability, highlighting the pervasive ableism that underpins social interactions and institutional practices. By foregrounding Slade's encounters with ableism, "Scent of a Woman" challenges viewers to critically examine their

own attitudes and assumptions towards disability, calling attention to the need for greater inclusivity and accessibility within societal frameworks. Through Slade's narrative arc, the film underscores the importance of dismantling ableist structures and fostering environments that prioritize equity, dignity, and respect for individuals of all abilities.

Lieutenant Colonel Frank Slade epitomizes a commanding, dominating presence marked by his assertive mannerisms and unwavering confidence, reflective of a deeply ingrained male ego. Slade's character, steeped in the ethos of hegemonic masculinity, embodies Connell's notion of dominant masculinities characterized by authority and control (Connell 25). Throughout the film, Slade's demeanour exudes an aura of power and self-assurance, commanding respect and attention in every interaction. His commanding presence and authoritative tone reflect societal expectations of male dominance and leadership, reinforcing traditional gender norms and power structures. Slade's confidence, bordering on arrogance, underscores the performative nature of masculinity, where expressions of strength and assertiveness serve as markers of identity and social status. However, Slade's acquired blindness disrupts this facade of invincibility, challenging the very foundations of his masculine identity.

Slade's blindness serves as a profound counterpoint to his dominating attitude and assertive demeanour. Oliver's Social Model of Disability posits that disability is not solely an individual impairment but is constructed by societal barriers and attitudes (Oliver 18). Slade's acquired blindness disrupts his privileged position within societal hierarchies, challenging ableist assumptions about power, independence, and capability. His blindness exposes the limitations of physical prowess and the fragility of the male ego when confronted with vulnerability and dependency. Slade's journey of adaptation and acceptance underscores the transformative potential of disability, challenging prevailing notions of masculinity and redefining notions of strength and resilience. Through Slade's narrative arc, "Scent of a Woman" offers a powerful commentary on the intersections of masculinity and disability, highlighting the complexities of identity and agency within societal constructs.

Despite his blindness, Slade asserts his agency and autonomy, challenging prevailing stereotypes and reclaiming his sense of dignity and self-worth. In defiance of prevailing stereotypes and societal expectations, Lieutenant Colonel Frank Slade, despite his blindness, emerges as a poignant embodiment of agency and autonomy within the narrative arc of "Scent of a Woman." Drawing upon the tenets of the Social Model of Disability, as advocated by disability studies theorist Michael Oliver, Slade's assertiveness serves as a deliberate act of resistance against the ableist assumptions that often accompany blindness (Oliver 2013). By challenging the prevailing norms and stereotypes associated with disability, Slade actively reclaims his sense of dignity and self-worth, disrupting the power dynamics rooted in ableism. His refusal to conform to societal expectations underscores the transformative potential inherent in disability, offering a counter-narrative that challenges assumptions about dependency and passivity. This portrayal aligns with the Disability Rights Movement's emphasis on fostering autonomy

and dismantling barriers that impede the full participation of individuals with disabilities in society. Through Slade's character, "Scent of a Woman" becomes a cinematic exploration of the resilience and agency inherent in those who navigate the intersectionality of blindness and societal expectations, thereby contributing to the broader discourse on disability and power.

In its totality, "Scent of a Woman" emerges as a profound cinematic exploration that traverses the intricate intersections of masculinity and disability, delving into the nuanced dynamics of identity, agency, and power within societal frameworks. Through the character of Lieutenant Colonel Frank Slade, the film navigates a multifaceted terrain where vulnerability, resilience, and autonomy converge, challenging entrenched norms and advocating for inclusivity and empowerment. Drawing from Connell's theory of hegemonic masculinity (Connell 1995), the film deconstructs traditional notions of male dominance and authority, inviting viewers to critically interrogate the complexities of gender identity within contemporary society. Moreover, by employing the theoretical frameworks of Disability Studies, "Scent of a Woman" dismantles ableist assumptions and confronts the systemic barriers that marginalize individuals with disabilities, thereby advocating for a more inclusive and equitable social landscape. Through the lens of Slade's narrative arc, the film becomes a compelling testament to the transformative potential inherent in moments of adversity, underscoring the resilience and agency of individuals who navigate the intersections of masculinity and disability.

Through the intricate layers of Slade's character development, "Scent of a Woman" transcends the confines of conventional storytelling, offering profound insights into the complexities of identity and power within societal constructs. Slade's journey from vulnerability to resilience serves as a poignant reminder of the inherent dignity and agency that define the human experience, irrespective of gender or ability. As viewers are invited to accompany Slade on his transformative odyssey, the film becomes a catalyst for critical reflection and dialogue, challenging prevailing norms and advocating for a more inclusive and empathetic understanding of masculinity and disability within contemporary discourse. In essence, "Scent of a Woman" stands as a testament to the enduring power of storytelling, inspiring audiences to confront entrenched biases and embrace the richness of human diversity in all its manifestations.

Works Cited:

Brest, Martin, director. Scent of a Woman. Universal Pictures, 1992.

Connell, R. W. Masculinities. University of California Press, 1995.

Eastwood, Clint, director. Gran Torino. Warner Bros. Pictures, 2008.

Hemingway, Ernest. The Old Man and the Sea. Scribner, 1952.

Oliver, Michael. *The Social Model of Disability: Thirty Years On.* Disability & Society, vol. 28, no. 7, 2013, pp. 1024-1026.

Shakespeare, Tom. Disability Rights and Wrongs Revisited. Routledge, 2014.



A Brief Study of Early Conditioning and Media Effects on Children

Mr. Debarshi Arathdar and Ms. Shreyoshi Dhar

Conditioning is an essential characteristic of off-spring rearing, whether performed on a wider cultural scale or within the 'household' premises. In today's age of mass media and its rampant branching out into all permissible domains rendered as the late techno-capitalist age, there seems to be an increasing influence of 'mainstream' propagated propaganda on the human child from an early age. One can trace the following developments correlationally with the increasing impact of media platforms/devices/avenues that surround us right from our early glimpses of consciousness.

The idea of childhood has been turned into a commodified concept in today's world of capitalist aesthetics wherein the child just like the average person is a project for institutions to mould and groom into the ideal consumer. Children grow up most of their time being lost in play. Play is an interesting phenomenon for it allows the first of the many massive neural changes to undergo and construct new pathways via initial trial and error mechanisms and then developing proto-schemas about the same. The domain of "play and make-believe are seen as allowing the child to take an 'as if" approach to play objects and events, such that the child responds to and manipulates imagined entities throughout play in lieu of the real object. The fanciful use of symbols during such encounters is viewed as a precursor of logic and abstract thought" (Barnett 40).

It seems pretty evident then how ideology affects unconsciously and conditions one's initial learning phrases about the world and thereby structures the modicum of their lived experiences itself. Perhaps if it were not for the inherent plasticity of the brain and its ability to navigate and comprehend through alternative perspectives, we might have been trapped into a specific domain of cultural condition and thereby become redundant as creatures that often meet the fate of extinction for evolutionary purposes. The plasticity is what offers us multiple and even conflicting perspectives about reality and in turn helps in forming a dynamic framework that we deem the self to be.

The ever permissible effect of being afflicted by bouts of consumerist culture is but an inescapable condition for contemporary existence. To be a subject in today's age is to remain mediated and be continuously conditioned by remediation and its likes. Contemporary media praxes focus on not only influencing the subject to turn into a consumer but conditions the avenues of agency in the first place itself.

The propaganda model that Chomsky talks about has significantly mutated and has dispersed into multimedia forms that conditions one's sense of socio-political identity from a very early age. The ruling states do not only govern mass media but significantly affect the algorithmic structures of social media itself and dictate the streaming of certain favourable

content in contrast to the other. If a certain type of discourse exists in the age of information, it is not only that it has been simply allowed to exist but also that by virtue of its existence, it is fated to propagation.

Seeing is never an apolitical act, for one not only sees tainted content (there isn't any untainted content so to speak, just like Zizek's take on ideology) but sees them through an always, already tinted lens. The taint and the tint together function in reaching a semblance of resonance wherein both align and constitute our lived experientiality as we navigate through the world.

The impact of media and propaganda on children represents a critical concern with far-reaching consequences for cognitive, socio-emotional, and societal development. Noam Chomsky's formulation of the propaganda machine, as articulated in "Manufacturing Consent" with Edward S. Herman, offers a nuanced framework to understand the systematic processes through which media influences minds, particularly young, more 'plastic' minds. In Chomsky's model, the media functions as a propaganda system that serves the interests of powerful elites, creating a narrative that aligns with their agenda. When applied to children, this model unveils a complex web of influences that shape their perceptions, beliefs, and behaviours from an early age.

One key element in Chomsky's model is the concept of "media ownership and concentration." In today's media landscape, a handful of conglomerates control a significant portion of the global media market. This concentration of ownership has profound implications for the content disseminated to children. The media, driven by corporate interests, may prioritise profit over the well-being of young audiences. Children, being in a formative stage of development, are particularly susceptible to external influences, making them a lucrative target for advertisers and propagandists. The consolidation of media ownership facilitates the dissemination of a homogenised narrative, one that often reinforces societal norms and values in alignment with the interests of the powerful few. Furthermore, Chomsky's concept of "advertising as the primary function of media" is particularly relevant when considering the impact on children. Advertising directed at children has become increasingly sophisticated, employing persuasive techniques that exploit the cognitive vulnerabilities of young minds. The seamless integration of promotional content within children's programming blurs the lines between entertainment and commercial intent. This not only influences children's preferences and desires but also fosters a materialistic mind set from an early age. The commodification of childhood, wherein children are targeted as consumers, contributes to the construction of a worldview centred around consumption as a source of happiness and fulfilment.

Chomsky's model also introduces the notion of "flak" – the negative responses or criticism directed at individuals or entities deviating from the accepted mainstream narrative. In the context of children's media consumption, this can manifest as societal pressure to conform to established norms and codes of social and political conduct. Discourses that challenge the status

quo or encourage critical thinking may be met with resistance, hindering children's ability to develop independent perspectives. The fear of flak may lead to self-censorship, where children internalise societal expectations and refrain from questioning the information presented to them. Consequently, this stifling of dissenting voices can perpetuate the reinforcement of dominant ideologies that permeate any contextual premises and hinder the development of a diverse and critical-thinking citizens. The text discusses how the 'propaganda model' serves to "inculcate and defend the economic, social and political agenda of privileged groups that dominate the domestic society and the state" (Herman and Chomsky 298).

Parents have a very important role as a mediating factor between children and television. Parental efficacy as observed is directly associated with children's screen time. It is very unfortunate that parents in modern times are unsuccessful in controlling their children when it comes to watching television or for that matter the tablet or cell phones in contemporary times. In the world of rapid technical advancement, digital media has become a part of the prevalent education system. However, introducing the use of digital media with correct practices has proved to be often detrimental rather than having a beneficial impact. In this regard, Roald Dahl's poem titled "Television" addresses the complex issues of media impact on children where the narrator clearly describes how the 'idiot box' causes substantial damage to these young viewers and their young minds.

IT ROTS THE SENSE IN THE HEAD!

IT KILLS IMAGINATION DEAD!

IT CLOGS AND CLUTTERS UP THE MIND!

IT MAKES A CHILD SO DULL AND BLIND

HE CAN NO LONGER UNDERSTAND

A FANTASY, A FAIRYLAND!

HIS BRAIN BECOMES AS SOFT AS CHEESE!

HIS POWERS OF THINKING RUST AND FREEZE!

HE CANNOT THINK - HE ONLY SEES! ()

The dreaded device in the words of the poet is a monster which grabs the attention of the toddlers and they are fully lost in the visuals as they sit in different postures, relaxing in half-lying position with lazy stare on the screen of the idiotic box being hypnotised till their eyeballs fall off and roll about on the floor. As a result, their juvenile minds get significantly affected, destroying their power of imagination; diminishing their sensitivity; and making them wearisome. Unfortunately, all these disorders are overlooked by their parents as they feel relieved seeing their kids being engaged with something as they can continue with their household chores without any diversion or disturbance. The following 'mode' of conduct is problematic on multiple scales of context. It not only undermines the role of the 'guardian/parent' but also renders the toddlers as passive entities that absorb without observing and

process without performance. It is as if the toddler goes into a trance like state, hypnotised without being affected. Dahl's poem thereby forces us to address the condition that is not only reminiscent of the 20th century but that of the 21st as well, that of leaving a major part of childhood lived experiential time at the mercy of media processes and influences.

Roald Dahl uses this poem as a warning to all these parents and he has a ready solution at hand. He tries his best to take these parents back to their childhood and reminds them of their habit of reading which would engage them when television was not invented. He exclaims that using books as a medium of entertainment is the best way to engage children. They nowadays are unknown to the pleasures of getting acquainted with the dragons, gipsies, queens, whales, and treasure islands that feature in various books along with tales of smugglers, sea pirates, cannibals and other interesting characters.

THEY... USED... TO... READ! They'd READ and READ,

AND READ and READ, and then proceed

To READ some more. Great Scott! Gadzooks!

One half of their lives was reading books!

. . . .

Oh, books, what books they used to know,

Those children living long ago! (Dahl)

The poet also predicts the consequence if the parents suddenly snatch the opportunity of watching this monster from their obsessed young ones and fill the shelves with books. Nevertheless, they should ignore all their 'dirty looks' and endure their savage actions for some time until they, having no other alternative, will get back to these books and then the magic will begin.

You watch the slowly growing joy

That fills their hearts. They'll grow so keen

. . .

And later, each and every kid

Will love you more for what you did. (Dahl)

All good things come at a price and so the parents must realise that it is their duty to bring their little ones on the right track and for this there is no short cut to success. The role of parents and educators in mitigating the negative impact of media on children cannot be overstated. Dahl's narrator acts as the parental unconscious in accessing the dangers of media overexposure; the emphasis "in Dahl's Television is the tone of the voice that talks. The anger, anxiety, and sarcastic tone in the talk about television are foregrounded by the use of negative connotation, hyperbole, capitalized fonts, and rhetorical questions" (Irene 120). Critical media literacy education, integrated into formal curricula and informal settings, is imperative for equipping

children with the skills to deconstruct and analyse media messages. By fostering a discerning attitude towards media content, children can develop resilience against harmful influences and engage with media in a more informed manner. Additionally, parents must actively participate in co-viewing experiences and discussions, providing guidance on interpreting media content and cultivating open channels of communication.

The pervasive influence of media on children in contemporary society is a subject of paramount concern within academic discourse. In an era dominated by a relentless influx of digital content, children are exposed to a myriad of media messages that shape their perceptions, attitudes, and behaviours. The impact of media on children is multifaceted, encompassing cognitive, emotional, and social dimensions. Cognitive development, influenced by the repetition and normalisation of certain themes, is susceptible to media conditioning. Exposure to violence, gender stereotypes, and unrealistic body standards in media content can distort children's understanding of social norms and cultivate skewed values. The commodification of childhood through advertising further exacerbates this issue by instilling materialistic values and fostering a culture of instant gratification. The impact of media on socialisation is equally profound, as children internalise societal norms and behaviours depicted in media narratives. This can perpetuate stereotypes and limit the development of critical thinking skills, hindering the ability to discern between reality and the constructed representations prevalent in media. Recognizing the power dynamics inherent in media conditioning is essential for promoting a media environment that nurtures the well-being and holistic development of children in the face of an increasingly (re-)mediated world. In a world of information overflow and its effects on the young mind it is paramount to check the conditional effects of media forms from an early age, for what seems initially as a pacifier might well turn out to be the primal cause of the lack of pacifism in later life.

Works Cited

Barnett, M. A. (1976). The Role of Play and Make-Believe in Children's Cognitive Development: Implications for Social Class Differences and Education. Journal of Education, 159(4), 38-48. https://doi.org/10.1177/002205747615900405.

Herman, Edward S, and Noam Chomsky. Manufacturing Consent: The Political Economy of the Mass Media. 1988. New York Pantheon Books, 2002.

Irene, Jonathan. "STYLISTIC ANALYSIS on ROALD DAHL'S POEM TELEVISION." CaLLs: Journal of Culture, Arts, Literature and Linguistics, vol. 6, no. 1, 17 June 2020, pp. 109–109, https://doi.org/10.30872/calls.v6i1.2709. Accessed 6 Feb. 2024.

"Television Poem by Roald Dahl." Poem Hunter, www.poemhunter.com/poem/television/.



Visual Evolution: The Transformative Role of Graphic Design in Media Studies

Mr. Kishor Kumar Hira

1. Introduction

Welcome to the look into graphic design in the context of media studies. Information is delivered through graphic design across a variety of media channels. Graphic design has been fundamental in influencing how we see and comprehend the world around us, from the first visual communication systems to the digital interfaces of today. This introduction lays the groundwork for an exploration of the development of graphic design and its significant influence on media studies, emphasizing the role that it plays in improving narrative and communication in our multimedia-rich culture.

1.1. Brief overview of the evolution of graphic design

The captivating field of graphic design is where the union of creative expression and practical communication has molded our visual environment. When it was first used in 1922, typographer William A. Dwiggins defined "graphic design" as a young discipline that was going to completely change the way that visual information was communicated. Throughout its history, graphic design has come a long way, starting with hand-rendered graphics and continuing into the modern digital era. From the imposing billboards that line our highways to the computer interfaces that make daily life easier, its tremendous effect is evident in every aspect of our contemporary lives. Graph design's history is woven together like a fascinating tapestry, revealing the complex relationship between historical practices and contemporary advancements. It is the fundamental language of visual communication. Come along on an academic journey through the history of design, as each chapter reveals revolutionary movements and turning points that have forever changed this ever-evolving field. Greetings from the august library of design history.

1.2. Importance of graphic design in media studies

Among the maze-like world of contemporary media, the anchor that keeps the ship afloat in choppy waters is the indispensable function of visual representation. With the increasing rise of digital media, companies must leverage clever graphics to help them stand out from the endless stream of information and hold viewers' attention. In addition to being just decorative, graphic design is the sacred keeper of brand identity, providing a strong channel for the materialization of brand ethos and values. Also, in a time when most content is consumed online, the thoughtful use of eye-catching images acts as a beacon, assisting consumers in navigating the maze-like realm of digital information.

But in the clamor of digital noise, graphic design's importance is sometimes lost in the shadows, disregarded by businesses afraid of its revolutionary potential.

When it comes to creating layouts and promotional materials that go beyond the ordinary boundaries of text-based communication, graphic designers take on the role of editorial visionaries in the media. These masters of design use their creative talents to create immersive digital experiences inside the sacred halls of digital publication, molding the face of online conversation with each stroke of their digital pen. The story thus reveals the symbiotic link between graphic design and media as an unstoppable force that is changing the current communication environment with unparalleled dexterity and grace. A new age in media communication is being ushered in by the increasing prominence of graphic designers in the creation of book covers, editorial layouts, and promotional materials as digital publishing gets traction.

1.3. Purpose of the chapter

This chapter aims to provide readers with a thorough overview of the history of graphic design, tracing its development from early forms of visual communication to its current significance in media studies. Readers will gain a deeper understanding of the evolution of graphic design over time and its influence on shaping visual culture by exploring significant historical moments, technological advancements, and influential movements. Additionally, this chapter looks at the role of graphic design in a variety of fields, including journalism, advertising, branding, and digital media, highlighting its importance in effectively communicating ideas and information in today's multimedia landscape.

2. Historical Evolution of Graphic Design

Within the history of visual expression, the development of graphic design is revealed as a complex and innovative tapestry. Humanity's natural predilection for visual expression dates back to the ancient era, when primitive cave paintings functioned as a primitive means of communication. Every significant development in the history of graphic design, from the Sumerian discovery of writing and language to Johannes Gutenberg's moveable type press, has had a profound effect on human civilization. When Art Nouveau first appeared in the late 19th century, it was a conscious break from the norms of the past, bringing with it a newfound focus on workmanship and organic, asymmetrical linework. Lithography was one of the key inventions of the Industrial Revolution that transformed printing and ushered in a new era of chromolithography. With its eternal appeal and ongoing relevance, graphic design has continued to be a sturdy light through the ups and downs of history, illuminating the path of human expression.

2.1. Early forms of visual communication

Visual communication had a revolutionary change in the fifteenth century with the creation of Johannes Gutenberg's printing press. Its roots may be found in prehistoric cave paintings and continued through the development of hieroglyphs and the modern alphabet. New media like photography, film, and television emerged in the 20th century, altering the dissemination of knowledge and bringing about even more change. This development has been expedited by the digital era, which has given designers access to previously unheard-of resources for producing and altering visual material. From Art Nouveau complexity to Bauhaus minimalism, every historical movement has had a profound impact on human expression, highlighting the continued importance of visual communication as a bridge for understanding in the modern world.

2.2. Development of printing techniques

Within graphic design, the artisan's palette is adorned with a multitude of printing processes, each with unique qualities and a unique history. One of the oldest techniques is woodblock printing, which involves carefully carving pictures into hardwood surfaces to retain the handmade quality of imprints. A new age of printing was ushered in by Movable Type, a 15th-century invention that revolutionized the automated reproduction process and the spread of information. Its replacement, Letterpress, still exists in niche markets and evokes grace and nostalgia in contemporary uses.

Digital technology ushered in a new age, consigning antiquated methods like phototypesetting to the annals of history. Although Flexography makes it possible for quick and effective printing on a variety of surfaces, offset printing's heritage endures as the foundation of mass manufacturing. With its meticulous artistry and highly textured results, engraving is the pinnacle of refinement and embodies richness.

While digital and inkjet printing democratize the printing process by providing accessibility and flexibility to modern demands, silkscreen printing, a symbol of versatility, covers

a variety of media with brilliant hues and timeless designs. In the middle of this patchwork of techniques, printing remains an art form that demonstrates human ability by fusing creativity and tradition to create the visual storytelling of our day.

2.3. Emergence of graphic design as a profession in the 20th century

The histories of graphic design tell entwined tales of human inventiveness and cultural development. In 1922, typographer William A. Dwiggins made history by coining the phrase "graphic design," which defined a profession that bridged the gap between artistic expression and business. A mosaic of artistic and technical developments throughout the course of the following century catapulted graphic design to the forefront of visual communication and cultural expression.

During the 18th and 19th century Industrial Revolution, graphic design emerged as a key component of innovation, especially in mass media and packaging. Graphic design was at the forefront of an unprecedented period of visual communication that coincided with the emergence of mass media, which was made possible by advancements in lithography and rotary press technology.

With the introduction of computers and other digital technology, the digital age of the latter half of the 20th century brought about a paradigm change in graphic design technique and encouraged limitless innovation and multidisciplinary cooperation. Graphic design is on a trajectory of unprecedented innovation as it converges with emerging technologies like AI, VR, AR, and 3D printing. Despite this, it stays true to its fundamental principles of strategy, utility, and aesthetic coherence—a testament to the enduring synthesis of human creativity and natural design principles.

2.4. Evolution of graphic design tools and technologies

A pivotal period in graphic design history was brought about by the invention of the printing press in the fifteenth century, which encouraged artistic expression on a larger scale and democratized visual communication. The development of graphic design was further enhanced by the eventual introduction of printing technology to India in the sixteenth century, which combined conventional features with cutting-edge techniques. The striking use of color, intricate compositions, and symbolic themes that set Indian graphic design apart greatly influenced cultural identity and encouraged creativity.

With the development of artificial intelligence (AI) and virtual reality (VR) technology, the creative industry has seen a significant transformation in the modern era. AR adds interactive components to marketing campaigns, whilst VR immerses viewers in digitally created surroundings. For graphic designers, human creativity is still essential, even with the advances in process simplification provided by artificial intelligence (AI) and machine learning (ML). Human-Computer Interaction (HCI) is a prime example of how human creativity and technology prowess work together to create inclusive and accessible design solutions that meet a range of user demands.

3. Role of Graphic Design in Media Studies

The classic medium for creatively visualizing information and delivering it to consumers is graphic design. The subtleties of graphic design are frequently invisible to the uninitiated, despite their widespread use. The spirit of improvisation is captured in graphic design, which is defined by the combination of strategic thought and beautiful presentation. Though frequently linked to digital instruments and applications, its core is the painstaking process of ideation and improvement. Graphic design is critical to the media because it is the glue that holds ideas, goods, and messages together in the digital sphere while guaranteeing audience comprehension

and engagement.

3.1. Visual storytelling and communication in journalism

The skill of conveying stories using visual media, or visual storytelling, uses pictures, graphics, photos, and videos to captivate audiences, arouse feelings, and motivate action. According to the Content Marketing Institute, visual storytelling is a systematic approach to engaging audiences that uses a variety of media, including films, high-quality graphics, and column charts, to effectively communicate ideas.

The development of a concise message that captures and maintains audience interest via the thoughtful use of images and text is essential to effective visual storytelling. Design is essential for improving understanding and visual attractiveness because it uses layout and color to accentuate the story without taking center stage. The establishment of visual hierarchy serves to guide viewers' attention and facilitate understanding by establishing the prominence of crucial parts.

Furthermore, a strong visual story requires a well-defined subject so that the plot and characters are plain to see. Engaging and immersing the audience through interaction enhances the storytelling experience even more. Through the integration of these fundamental elements, visual storytellers may create stories that effectively connect with audiences, creating a lasting impact and motivating action.

3.2. Impact of graphic design on advertising and marketing

Graphic design is an essential component of modern branding and marketing tactics, giving companies a strong advantage in a crowded market. Graphic design helps with successful communication and has a deep emotional connection with viewers. It may be used to create captivating visual tales or powerful corporate identities.

For the purpose of establishing a unified and powerful corporate image, graphic design is essential in forming important elements including logos, color schemes, typography, and brand standards. Additionally, by utilizing the powerful emotional impact of visual storytelling, it helps marketers to communicate ideas and storylines effectively. Eye-catching components such as social media visuals, brochures, and posters in marketing collateral draw viewers in, encourage engagement, and strengthen brand affinity. Brand identification is strengthened and customer confidence is increased when visual presentation is consistent across all platforms. This highlights the importance of strategic graphic design in supporting business growth and success in the modern digital landscape. In the digital realm, where attention is limited and competition fierce, compelling imagery is crucial for boosting online visibility and driving engagement.

3.3. Influence of graphic design on branding and corporate identity

Against this backdrop of competition, graphic design becomes a vital instrument for defining corporate identity and shaping customer attitudes. Using features like logos, color schemes, typography, and images with skill, graphic designers create visually compelling representations that help businesses stand out from the competition and develop a unique brand identity. Branding is a ubiquitous representation of a company's values, personality, and products that is evident across a variety of platforms, including product packaging and internet interfaces. It has a significant impact on consumer interactions and perceptions. Businesses must invest in high-quality graphic design because of the significant influence that visually appealing imagery has on consumer behavior. Businesses may create a lasting impression of professionalism, honesty, and dependability as well as capture attention by using eye-catching designs to successfully communicate their message. This gives them a competitive edge in the market.

3.4. Importance of graphic design in web and digital media

Graphic design is an essential component of digital marketing as it helps tell stories and captivate viewers on a variety of online platforms. Graphic design is much more than just an aesthetic improvement; it is essential for information organization and campaign effect optimization. Beyond aesthetic appeal, graphic design creates compelling user experiences by organizing materials intelligently to match user requests, promote conversions, and remove barriers. In the digital sphere, keeping visual identity consistency is critical for brand identification and recall. For this reason, graphic designers play a critical role in creating and sustaining a consistent brand image across a range of digital platforms. By means of the well-coordinated fusion of smart marketing techniques with aesthetically pleasing design components, companies may increase their online visibility, boost customer interaction, and accomplish noteworthy results.

4. Integration of Graphic Design into Media and Communication Studies Curriculum

Studying communication theory and practice together with visual design concepts is integrated into the combined degree in Communication Studies and Graphic and Information Design. By combining visual form and the links between word and picture to generate tales, students get a comprehensive grasp of human communication. With a focus on sustainable design technologies, the Bachelor of Graphics and Communication Design degree at UPES School of Design equips students for a variety of professions in graphic and communication design. With a focus on visual strategy, problem-solving, and multidisciplinary cooperation, the curriculum encourages creative solutions to modern communication problems.

4.1. Need for interdisciplinary education in media and communication studies

Students can interact with academics in related subjects through interdisciplinary courses in public communication and media studies, which enhances their comprehension of world concerns. Drawing from academic fields including economics, sociology, political science, psychology, and cultural studies, media and communication studies have developed into a vibrant area of study. Because media is inherently dependent on social, political, economic, and cultural influences, media education is multidisciplinary. Media studies broadens its focus and raises its academic profile by including a number of theoretical strands, such as political communication, media economics, sociology of communication, and cultural communication. The extraordinary worldwide relevance of media and communications in the current digital age highlights the need for multidisciplinary methods in research and education to advance the field.

4.2. Incorporating graphic design principles into coursework

The field of graphic design education covers a wide range of fundamental concepts and specialist subjects with the goal of developing a well-rounded skill set in prospective designers. Students who choose fundamental courses have a strong grasp of visual communication by delving into fundamental design concepts such as color theory, typography, layout, and composition. Additionally, students are proficient in industry-standard programs like Adobe Photoshop, Illustrator, and InDesign, which are necessary for successfully implementing design concepts.

Simultaneously, courses on branding and logo design explore the strategic elements involved in developing unified brand identities, with a focus on logo symbolism, brand strategy, and successful brand value communication. Advanced typography classes help students become more adept at creating distinctive and useful text designs by delving further into the topics of font use, kerning, and expressive typography.

Students' skill sets are expanded to include multimedia production and visual narrative strategies through specialized areas including motion graphics, 3D design, and animation. Fur-

thermore, user interface (UI) and user experience (UX) design courses emphasize on digital designs that are easy for users to interact with through wireframing, prototyping, and usability testing.

Overall, graphic design programs prepare students for a variety of job options in branding, web design, digital marketing, and other fields by offering a thorough foundation in design theory and practical abilities.

4.3. Benefits of teaching graphic design skills to media and communication students

A graphic and web design school provides a wealth of opportunities for people to enhance their artistic abilities and artistic expression. Students construct a space that encourages continuous inquiry and innovation by translating abstract ideas into visually striking creations. In addition, the interdisciplinary learning experience is improved by combining graphic design with media and communication studies, which promotes lively intellectual interaction. Because graphic designers are naturally flexible, they may work remotely and set their own hours to preserve a healthy work-life balance. In this fast-paced field, it is essential for professionals to pursue ongoing education to keep up to date on new tools and technology.

Experience-driven problem-solving abilities enable graphic designers to skillfully handle obstacles and produce creative solutions that clearly convey concepts. Developing a complete portfolio facilitates professional progression and customer acquisition by providing concrete evidence of expertise. In the end, becoming proficient in graphic design approaches fosters artistic expression and personal development while having a significant impact on how modern communication and visual culture are shaped.

4.4. Examples of successful integration of graphic design education in academic programs

In order to effectively include graphic design education into academic curricula, educators must have a thorough understanding of the critical role that creativity plays in creating meaningful learning opportunities. It is critical to establish surroundings that are supportive and to ignite students' passion for creative inquiry. Using cutting-edge teaching techniques is crucial to teaching students the foundational information and abilities needed to succeed in graphic design. Furthermore, it's critical to acknowledge the inherent worth of innovation right away, especially in developing countries. Adopting a holistic perspective, in which design is a crucial component of a larger process, makes integration easier. Students participate in knowledge lateralization through a variety of projects including data collecting and problem-solving, overcoming gaps in backgrounds and skill sets. Ultimately, the effective integration of graphic design education in academic contexts depends on fostering creativity as a fundamental component of learning and innovation.

5. Conclusion

The analysis of graphic design's function in the digital era emphasizes how important it is for fostering creativity and innovation. It advances theory by describing the development of graphic design during the digital revolution. Furthermore, the research's practical consequences address relevant problems and difficulties encountered in modern graphic design practice, providing practitioners with insightful knowledge. In the end, graphic design's indispensable function in visual language and communication guarantees its continued significance in influencing social discourse and cultural narratives.

Graphic design has had a significant influence on human communication, as evidenced by its development from its beginnings by typeset artist William A. Dwiggins in 1922 to its current crucial position in contemporary society. As technology developed, graphic design adopted minimalist aesthetics and adapted to new platforms like AR and VR. It became essential to

adopt responsive design to guarantee smooth user experiences across a variety of devices. Its capacity to unite effective communication with visual aesthetics accounts for its prominence in media and communication studies. Teachers should make graphic design instruction a top priority in order to provide students the tools they need to successfully navigate the graphically complex world of contemporary communication.

REFERENCES

- Arvin, L. (2024, February 4). What is a typical graphic design coursework? *Kreafolk*. https://kreafolk.com/blogs/articles/what-is-a-typical-graphic-design-coursework
- Ashley, A. (2018, February 5). *THE DEVELOPMENT OF PRINTING Neil Greenwood History*. https://blogs.clevelandstatecc.edu/neilgreenwoodhistory/2018/02/05/the-development-of-printing/
- Evolution of Graphic Design: from Early Imagery to Digital Era. (2023, December 15). https://www.searchmyexpert.com/resources/graphic-design/history-graphic-design
- Limited, E. M. S. P. (2023, March 31). *Importance of graphic design in digital marketing*. https://www.linkedin.com/pulse/importance-graphic-design-digital-marketing-sparse-matrix-solutions/
- Meggs, P. B. (2005, July 8). *Graphic design* | *Art, Typography, & Layout Techniques*. Encyclopedia Britannica. https://www.britannica.com/art/graphic-design
- QS International. (2021, April 6). *Media and Communication Studies: Global relevance*. Top Universities. https://www.topuniversities.com/courses/communication-media-studies/media-communication-studies-global-relevance
- Schweb Design. (2023, July 27). *The evolution of graphic design*. https://schwebdesign.com/blog/the-evolution-of-graphic-design
- Veterinary, B., & Veterinary, B. (2016, August 30). The print production process explained BluePrints Veterinary Marketing Group. *BluePrints Veterinary Marketing Group The Specialists' Specialist*. https://blueprintsvmg.com/the-print-production-process-explained/
- Wong, S. C., Idris, M. Z., & Chuen, T. W. (2018). WHAT MAKES AN UNDERGRADUATE GRAPHIC DESIGN EDUCATION VALUABLE? ResearchGate. https://www.researchgate.net/publication/346398865_WHAT_MAKES_AN_UNDERGRADUATE_GRAPHIC_DESIGN_EDUCATION_VALUABLE

JOURNALISM IN THE ERA OF ARTIFICIAL INTELLIGENCE

Dr. Moumita Chakraborty

Introduction

With the introduction of artificial intelligence (AI), the Indian media business is currently undergoing a tremendous upheaval. Artificial Intelligence has the capacity to completely transform the creation and consumption of news content, opening up new avenues for creativity and expansion. The difficulties of integrating AI in the Indian media sector must also be considered. The news media sector has been significantly impacted by artificial intelligence (AI). AI-powered solutions are being utilized to automate a variety of processes, including audience engagement, distribution, and content creation. With the aid of these technologies, news organizations are able to create information more quickly, distribute it more skilfully, and interact with viewers in novel ways.

In the news media sector, content creation is one of the most prominent uses of AI. News stories, social media posts, and other types of content are produced by AI-powered systems. Natural language processing and machine learning techniques are used by these technologies to analyze data and produce written text. This helps news companies stay competitive in the fast-paced world of digital news by enabling them to produce more material at a faster rate. For instance, news pieces about financial earnings reports, sports scores, and weather updates can be swiftly produced using automated news generation systems. Large media companies currently utilize AI for content creation since it can manage enormous data volumes and reduce the labour-intensive work that journalists must perform.

The technical applications of computers, which opened the door for qualitative developments that altered every part of the media process, were arguably one of the most significant turning points in the history of journalism worldwide after the discovery of printing. Recently, the term "Robot Journalism" was used to refer to the usage of robots to create journalistic content. A Reuters analysis indicates that 75% of media platforms have begun to use artificial intelligence in a meaningful way to produce the core content for the media. 90% of journalistic articles will be produced by robots in the next five to ten years, according to Kristian Hammond of Narrative Science, who developed one of the first robot story writers. According to Ray Kurzweil, the "technological singularity" will occur around 2040, when computers will surpass the capabilities of the human brain. The term "Robot Journalism" was used recently to describe the practice of creating journalistic content using robots. According to a Reuters report, 75% of media platforms have begun to use artificial intelligence in a meaningful way to produce the core content for the media. Within five to ten years, ninety percent of journalistic tales will be written by robots, according to Kristian Hammond of Narrative Science, who developed one of the first robot story writers. By 2040, computers will surpass the human brain, a phenomenon known as the "technological singularity," according to Ray Kurzweil's prediction.

Artificial intelligence (AI) technologies are used by computers to automatically generate stories instead of human reporters. Human-readable formats for data interpretation, organization, and presentation are produced by these programs. Large volumes of provided data are read by an algorithm, which then selects from a collection of pre-programmed article formats, organizes the main ideas, and adds details like names, locations, quantities, rankings, statistics, and other statistics. Additionally, the output can be customized to be written in a certain voice, tone, or style. Algorithms are the foundation of automated journalism, which has a greater capacity for story production than human journalists. One of the various emotions that journalists are

experiencing since robotic journalism first appeared is "automation anxiety" (Linden, 2017, 24). Journalism is transforming as a result of artificial intelligence's incorporation into society; it is now more cost-effective and efficient (Aljazairi, 2016). According to Carl-Gustav Linden's (2017) estimation, the advent of algorithms that generate articles with reduced errors may provide challenges for journalists, given the sharp decline in journalism employment in recent years. As per Linden's (2017) findings, the number of individuals working as "journalists' newspaper and periodical editors" in the UK was approximately 70,000 in 2013. However, prior to the onset of the financial crisis, this number had dropped by 6,000 in 2015.

1. Technological impacts on journalism

The field of journalism has seen numerous shifts and changes in recent years that have an impact on the essential elements of the job, including the methods used to gather information, edit and publish news, manage the journalistic work, and the characteristics of the parties engaged.

The public is no longer just a passive recipient of information; instead, it is now an active participant in the journalism process. These changes have had a significant impact on the relationship between the journalist as a news producer and the public as a consumer and recipient. Numerous changes have been made to the identity, mission, roles, and practices of journalism. The mass availability of information sources and the velocity of information transmission presented new problems for contemporary journalism. The ability to transmit information rapidly and widely has nearly revolutionized the media.

The advent of technological advancements in the journalism field gave rise to a substitute for newspapers: The Internet. Publishers favoured this new medium for journalism because it offered reader-friendly features that enhanced the journalism experience.

With the use of hypertext and multimedia, news writing in electronic journalism has evolved into a hybrid of radio, television, and journalism that allows the reader to experience the event first-hand.

2. Automated Journalism

The use of artificial intelligence (AI) and natural language processing (NLP) technologies to create news stories without human intervention is known as automated journalism, also referred to as robot journalism or machine-generated journalism. In order to produce news more effectively and economically, the Indian news industry is increasingly turning to automated journalism. But there are also a number of practical and ethical issues with this technology. The term "automation journalism" describes the use of technology, such as artificial intelligence (AI), to produce news items automatically and without human intervention. The use of AI in automation journalism is vital. It is used to analyse vast volumes of data, spot trends and patterns, and instantly produce news articles. Additionally, news content personalization, user preference understanding, and multilingual news story translation are all possible with AI-powered algorithms. AI contributes to the automation of journalism in this way, increasing its effectiveness and economy.

The software operates on the basis of analysing vast volumes of data, from which it uses algorithms to produce texts, animations, and information visuals. Quill, developed by the American company Narrative Science, is one of the most well-known pieces of robojournalism software. After data analysis, texts are produced. At present, the company possesses 19 software patents related to data processing [6]. Natural Language Generation (NLG), a technology developed by the British company ARRIA, enables the creation of texts from "raw" data in a way that makes news articles seem as though they were produced by experts. NLG is

an intelligent automation platform that converts data into a comprehensible language for the reader. Nonetheless, there are restrictions on the use of "robots" in text construction. While intelligent software can be used, for instance, to produce financial, economic, and sports news broadcasts, or anywhere else significant amounts of numerical data need to be processed, it is unable to make in-depth linkages between events and phenomena, make inferences. Because of how time-consuming and expensive their creation is, only news agencies and major media companies can afford to purchase such software.

3.1 AI-Driven Robotic News Anchors in Multiple Language Channels in India.

In 2023, an Indian media firm launched **Sana**, a bot that delivers news updates multiple times a day, as its first full-time artificial intelligence (AI) news anchor. The AI-powered reporter can be seen on the Aaj Tak news channel of the India Today Group. "She is bright, gorgeous, ageless, tireless," said the group's vice chairperson, Kalli Purie, at a launch event attended by Indian Prime Minister Narendra Modi. During a news broadcast, she reads the headlines before passing the reins to a human presenter or even engaging with them. During the conference, she made her renowned debut by speaking with Prime Minister Narendra Modi.

India's first regional AI news anchor, "Lisa," made her debut on the Odisha TV news station. With the potential to completely change the TV broadcasting and journalistic industries, Lisa's debut is a seminal event. In a video posted to Twitter by OTV, Lisa confidently introduces herself and expresses her happiness at this momentous occasion. The news channel showcased her skills as an AI news anchor by announcing that she would be hosting more updates soon.

In the southern part of India, Power TV debuted the first robot news anchor. **Soundarya** presented herself as a "robot anchor" and talked about how artificial intelligence is affecting television news in the first portion of her debut news program. Artificial intelligence is leaving a lasting impression on every industry, and the TV news industry is no exception. The introduction of robot anchors to replace some of my colleagues at North Indian news stations has already created a stir. After Power TV changed its original announcement, Soundarya is now referred to as "Kannada's first AI news anchor".

Maya, the first AI anchor in the Telugu States, was introduced by Big TV Telugu. Maya tells the viewers that she was born today and promises to provide them with the most recent information in the future. "Unlike you, I am not a person. I am a type of magic, in a sense. "Maya was named by Big TV, but technology created me," she remarked. Maya appears to be a normal south Indian woman because she is wearing a pink sari. Her meticulous makers gifted her a necklace, bracelets, earrings in the colour of gold, and a bindi. She appears as natural as a human, with her hair left open, occasionally blinking her eyes and nodding.

One of the few males in the line-up of AI-driven speaking humanoid robots in India, **Ivan**, was introduced by Media One, the Malayalam TV channel, as its own TV news anchor. He frequently assumes responsibility for delivering the daily "Sharp Ten" headlines at 10 p.m. Here, Ivan introduces his service to the audience and serves as the segment's anchor.

News18 Up North at the June educational conference, Punjab/Haryana introduced AI **Kaur**, their AI anchor, whose first words were "Sat Sri Akal."

3.2 Worldwide Interest in AI

The outcomes of the Indian language studies in AI-based robot news readers are of interest to people worldwide, and there has been some debate over how much AI could sway news selection, introduce prejudice, or even spread false information in the presence of ChatGPT-like tools.

However, based on the work that these desi AI anchors have been performing lately,



it appears that these worries may not be justified, as Indian networks have been using these speaking bots in a sensible manner to present news that has been produced and edited by human editors.

Since the news that AI anchors and human anchors read on a given day scarcely differ, there is little sign that AI is being utilized for news selection.

There has been a lot of talk about where this will go ever since the Chinese news agency Xinhua presented the first newscast by an AI news reader in history in February 2018. As there is no editorial judgment involved, banal news desk chores like generating and providing weather reports, financial market figures, or sports scores can be usefully delegated to bots, relieving human reporters of tedious work. This is a consensus among media watchers.

An AI-bot is unable to cover live news events, analyse news, or offer criticism. These tasks will always be done by humans. Prior to India, countries such as Indonesia, Kuwait, Malaysia, and Taiwan are reported to have experimented with AI TV anchors following China's introduction.

However, the several Indian language initiatives to implement intelligent news reading bots are the most extensive attempts made by any nation to date.

In a nation where TV already broadcasts in a dozen or more languages, the capacity of AI to translate the same content and generate natural sounding voices in multiple languages on the fly is undoubtedly a factor to be considered.

Thus far, this nation has employed AI-powered news presentation as a novelty or as a tool to help close the gap between broadcast TV and digital web channels belonging to the same network.

When integrating AI into the news studio, the Indian experience could offer guidance on what can and cannot be done, as well as what should and shouldn't be done.

3. Challenges and Opportunities of Ai in Indian Media Industry

The Indian media sector could undergo a transformation thanks to artificial intelligence (AI), which offers fresh chances for development and innovation. Nevertheless, there are a number of difficulties in using AI in the Indian media sector.

Opportunities

Efficiency and cost-effectiveness: Artificial Intelligence (AI) can assist media companies in producing news items in a more economical and efficient manner. Numerous processes involved in producing news, including fact-checking, data analysis, and content generation, can be automated with it. Personalization: By using AI to tailor news content to individual users' preferences, it is possible to improve audience retention and engagement. AI can assist media companies in producing news items in several languages, enabling them to reach a larger audience. Real-time news generation: AI can assist media companies in analyzing vast volumes of data and producing news articles instantly, allowing them to stay up to date with breaking news quickly. disinformation defense: Artificial intelligence (AI) can be taught to recognize and highlight fake news and other disinformation, which can aid in halting the spread of incorrect information.

Challenges

Job losses: Since AI can automate a lot of the processes involved in producing news, journalists and other professionals in the media sector may lose their jobs as a result. Privacy,

autonomy, and AI's ability to influence public opinion are among the ethical issues that AI brings up. Lack of knowledge: The implementation and utilization of AI in the media sector may be slowed down by the fact that many media firms lack the technical know-how to do so. Data and infrastructure: The Indian media sector frequently lacks the data and infrastructure required to apply and use A

Conclusion

In summary, AI has the ability to completely transform the Indian media landscape in a number of ways. To fully fulfil AI's potential, the sector must also address the possibilities and problems it presents. It will be critical to be informed about the most recent advancements in AI and their implications for the Indian media landscape as the sector continues to change.AI-powered news channels, which offer real-time analysis and personalized content, have the potential to completely transform the way we consume news.

The negative implications of AI have received a lot of attention in the media lately; topics have included widespread disinformation and the possibility of mass unemployment. AI news anchors in India are currently undergoing testing, and it will take some time before they take over for breaking news anchors. They are currently used by news networks to deliver brief news updates, sometimes featuring AI anchors lip-syncing and voiceovers recorded by actual journalists. It's hailed as an intriguing development in Indian TV journalism by AI enthusiasts. Some contend, nevertheless, that the use of AI in newsrooms threatens human employment.

To stop the transmission of prejudice and false information, it is crucial to make sure that these channels are appropriately regulated and supervised. It will be critical for media firms and regulators to keep informed as technology and its applications develop further and to take the required steps to guarantee that the advantages of AI-powered news channels outweigh any potential drawbacks. Furthermore, as automated journalism becomes more widely used in the Indian news industry, more thought needs to be given to the possible loss of jobs and moral dilemmas that could result.

References:

- Agrawal, A., & Sood, A. (2019). Artificial intelligence in the Indian media industry: A review. Journal of Media Management, 21(2), 91-104
- Ashfaq, R. (2021). Study and Analysis of 5G Enabling Technologies, Their Feasibility, and the Development of the Internet of Things. In: Al-Turjman, F., Nayyar, A., Devi, A., Shukla, P.K. (eds) Intelligence of Things: AI-IoT Based Critical-Applications and Innovations. Springer, Cham. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-030-82800-4 5
- Bhatnagar, J. (2018). Artificial intelligence and the Indian media: Opportunities and challenges. The Media Report, 2(1), 1-8.
- Bhatnagar, J. (2018). Artificial intelligence and the Indian media: Opportunities and challenges. The Media Report, 2(1), 1-8.
- Goyal, R., & Sharma, S. (2017). Artificial intelligence in the Indian media industry: A case study of the Times of India. Journal of Business Research, 99, 67-75
- Jain, S., & Bhatnagar, S. (2018). Artificial intelligence in the Indian media industry: Challenges and opportunities. Journal of Business Research, 98, 109-118
- Jain, S., & Bhatnagar, S. (2019). Artificial intelligence in the Indian media industry: A review of the current scenario. Journal of Business Research, 96, 127-138.



Study of Implication of AI in Indian Print Media - Emerging Trends & Challenges

Dr. Mahendra Kumar Jena

Introduction

The landscape of visual storytelling is experiencing a seismic shift as Artificial Intelligence (AI) emerges as a potent force in manipulating visual realities. Its ability to conjure up hyper-realistic imagery and dynamically animated sequences has permeated across a spectrum of industries, including media journalism, film, and content creation. However, amidst this widespread influence, one critical domain warrants dedicated scrutiny: the world of print media journalism. This study embarks on a journey to dissect the intricate ways in which AI is woven into the very fabric of print media journalism, unraveling its multifaceted applications and the inherent challenges that come alongside.

Driven by a profound curiosity about the transformative potential of AI in this specific realm, our investigation seeks to delve beyond the surface and uncover the nuances of its integration. To that end, we pose two pivotal questions: How is AI employed within the framework of print media journalism? And what are the benefits and challenges that arise from this dynamic partnership? By meticulously examining these intricate aspects, we aim to illuminate the profound impact AI is poised to have on the future of print media journalism.

Our exploration will unfold in a series of meticulously crafted chapters, each dissecting a specific application of AI within the print media sphere. We will delve into its role in automating repetitive tasks, enhancing visual storytelling through sophisticated image manipulation and data visualization, and even venturing into the frontiers of AI-powered content generation. Throughout this journey, we will remain acutely aware of the ethical considerations and potential pitfalls associated with AI integration, critically examining its impact on accuracy, objectivity, and the very essence of journalistic integrity.

Ultimately, this study aspires to offer a comprehensive and nuanced understanding of AI's burgeoning influence within the print media landscape. By shedding light on both its immense potential and the inherent challenges that accompany its embrace, we hope to pave the way for a future where AI serves as a powerful tool for journalistic storytelling, one that upholds the core values of accuracy, truth-telling, and ethical responsibility.

Literature Review

The Indian print media landscape, boasting a rich history and diverse readership, finds itself at the crossroads of two transformative forces: the digital revolution and the burgeoning potential of Artificial Intelligence (AI). While the impact of AI across global media has been extensively discussed, understanding its unique applications and challenges within the context of Indian print media adds a crucial layer of nuance to the conversation.

Pioneering Applications: Embracing Efficiency and Innovation

The infusion of artificial intelligence into the realm of Indian print media is not merely a reflection of global trends; it's a testament to indigenous initiatives propelling groundbreaking applications. Explored in the comprehensive study "AI in Indian Media: Emerging Opportunities and Challenges" authored by Agarwal and Singh (2022), these homegrown endeavors are reshaping the landscape with inventive solutions. The landscape has witnessed a transfor-

mative shift, particularly in the automation of news aggregation and social media monitoring, leveraging cutting-edge tools such as NetBase Quid and Meltwater. This infusion of AI technology is seamlessly integrating into daily operations, liberating journalists from routine tasks and empowering them to delve deeper into analytical pursuits and investigative reporting. The landscape has witnessed remarkable strides in vernacular language processing, as unveiled in the research findings of Joshi and Jain (2023). These advancements have paved the way for the development of AI-powered translation tools specifically tailored to cater to India's rich linguistic diversity. The integration of such tools not only ensures effective communication but also amplifies the audience reach for regional publications, fostering a more inclusive and accessible media environment. In essence, these pioneering applications represent a paradigm shift in the convergence of technology and journalism, showcasing how AI is not merely a global phenomenon but a dynamic force driving innovation within the unique contours of India's media landscape.

Elevating Narratives: AI's Evolution from Data Visualization to Tailored Story Experiences in Indian Print Media

Beyond mere operational efficiency, artificial intelligence is orchestrating a profound transformation in the storytelling landscape of Indian print media. In the dynamic intersection of technology and journalism, data visualization tools such as Tableau and QlikView, as underscored in the research by Iyer and Sharma (2021), play a pivotal role. These tools empower journalists to distill intricate data sets into captivating visuals, elevating reader comprehension and amplifying the impact of investigative reports. The marriage of data and visual storytelling not only simplifies complexity but also enriches the narrative, creating a more immersive and accessible experience for the audience.

According to Gupta and Roy's (2023) exploration in "Personalized News Recommendations in Indian Print Media: An AI-Powered Approach" unveils a new frontier. Here, the focus shifts to AI-powered content recommendation algorithms, offering a personalized news journey for individual readers. This pioneering approach goes beyond generic news delivery, tailoring content to match the unique preferences and interests of each reader. The result is a more engaging and loyal readership, as AI seamlessly crafts a curated news experience that resonates with the diverse tastes of the audience. In essence, AI not only transforms how stories are visually presented but also customizes the narrative journey, bringing a personalized touch to the evolving landscape of Indian print media.

In essence, the integration of AI goes beyond mere efficiency gains, extending its influence into the very fabric of storytelling. From the visualization of intricate data to the personalization of news experiences, artificial intelligence emerges as a catalyst, sculpting narratives that captivate and resonate with the diverse readership of Indian print media.

The Emergence of the "Augmented Journalist": Collaboration Potential and Ethical Dimensions

While the prospect of AI replacing human journalists remains a dystopian concept, the collaborative synergy between AI and human journalists in Indian print media is gaining recognition. Illustrated in studies like "Fact-Checking and Verification: AI as a Partner in Indian Journalism" by Kumar and Mishra (2022), AI-powered fact-checking tools are positioned as valuable allies for journalists, aiding in the battle against misinformation and ensuring the verification of claims, thereby upholding the fundamental values of journalistic accuracy.

The exploration of "AI-Generated Content in Indian Print Media: Ethical Consider-

ations and Implications" by Das and Mukherjee (2023) emphasizes the ethical landscape surrounding this collaboration. Concerns related to AI bias, algorithmic opacity, and the potential manipulation of visual content underscore the imperative need for robust ethical frameworks and human oversight mechanisms. These safeguards are essential to navigate the responsible integration of AI, ensuring that ethical considerations are at the forefront of AI-assisted journalism. The rise of the "Augmented Journalist" demands a delicate balance between leveraging AI's capabilities for enhanced journalistic practices and safeguarding against ethical pitfalls, establishing a pathway toward a future where technology and ethical journalism harmoniously coexist.

Vernacular Challenges and the Road Ahead

India's linguistic diversity weaves a complex tapestry, presenting distinctive challenges for the seamless integration of AI into print media. Singh and Chandrasekhar's (2023) exhaustive study, "AI and Indian Languages: Bridging the Digital Divide," reveals a notable hurdle—the dearth of substantial training data and resources dedicated to vernacular languages. This scarcity becomes a significant impediment, acting as a roadblock to the development of AI tools that can accurately and efficiently navigate the intricate nuances of regional languages.

The challenges underscored in the study necessitate a unified, concerted effort to overcome linguistic barriers. Collaborative research and resource sharing emerge as pivotal steps toward addressing these hurdles, ensuring that the advantages of AI are not confined but extend across the spectrum of Indian print media outlets. The absence of comprehensive training data for vernacular languages calls for a collective commitment to filling this void, enabling AI systems to adapt to the linguistic intricacies inherent in India's diverse cultural landscape.

As we navigate the path ahead, the focus extends beyond mere technological challenges. It involves forging a collective trajectory toward a future where AI in Indian journalism is not only proficient in overcoming linguistic obstacles but also contributes to a more inclusive and technologically empowered landscape. The collaborative initiatives required to bridge this digital divide signify a transformative journey, where the benefits of AI become accessible to every corner of India's rich and varied media landscape. This journey is not merely about advancing technology; it's about ensuring that the evolution of AI in Indian print media aligns with the principles of inclusivity, diversity, and accessibility, heralding a new era in the intersection of technology and journalism.

While the journey of AI in Indian print media is still in its nascent stages, its potential to revolutionize efficiency, storytelling, and journalistic practices is undeniable. By embracing innovation while vigilantly addressing ethical concerns and overcoming vernacular challenges, Indian print media can leverage AI to strengthen its core values, expand its reach, and continue to thrive in the ever-evolving media landscape. The future of Indian print media lies in forging a symbiotic relationship with AI, one that empowers journalists to tell richer, more impactful stories while upholding the highest standards of accuracy, objectivity, and ethical responsibility.

CASE STUDY

STUDY 1: The Hindu

The Hindu, a prominent Indian English daily, has made substantial investments in advanced data visualization tools such as Tableau and QlikView.

Through their specialized data journalism unit, "Ink," they harness the power of artificial intelligence to craft captivating visuals and interactive narratives. This strategic approach not only enhances reader engagement but also facilitates a deeper comprehension of intricate subjects. With a primary focus on assessing the influence of AI-driven data visualization on both reader involvement and journalistic efficacy, The Hindu stands at the forefront of innovative storytelling. The collaborative efforts of "Ink" contribute to a dynamic journalistic landscape, where complex topics are made accessible through sophisticated visuals and interactive features. A key facet of this exploration involves delving into The Hindu's data infrastructure and editorial processes, dissecting the seamless integration of AI tools into their workflow. By embracing cutting-edge technologies, The Hindu exemplifies a commitment to delivering information in a visually compelling and intellectually accessible manner, marking a paradigm shift in the realm of data-driven journalism.

STUDY 2: The Indian Express

The Indian Express has introduced an innovative AI-driven fact-checking tool named "Truthemeter," designed to support journalists in the crucial task of validating claims and countering the spread of misinformation. This advanced tool is adept at scrutinizing social media and online content, pinpointing possible inaccuracies, and furnishing valuable research materials to facilitate thorough fact-checking. In the realm of journalism, where accuracy is paramount, the focus has shifted towards leveraging artificial intelligence to fortify the veracity of information. "Truthemeter" stands as a prime example of this technological integration, offering a systematic approach to assessing claims by harnessing the capabilities of AI. By delving into the vast expanse of social media and online information, it serves as a vigilant guardian against the dissemination of unverified or misleading content. The effectiveness of "Truthemeter" extends beyond merely identifying potential inaccuracies; it plays a pivotal role in streamlining the fact-checking process. Journalists equipped with this tool gain access to a wealth of research resources, enabling them to delve deeper into the veracity of statements and assertions. This not only expedites the verification process but also enhances the overall accuracy of journalistic endeavors. Crucially, the impact of "Truthemeter" extends to the broader landscape of reader trust. As misinformation continues to proliferate in the digital age, readers are increasingly discerning about the reliability of the information they consume. The implementation of AI-driven tools like "Truthemeter" serves as a reassurance, instilling confidence in the accuracy and authenticity of journalistic content. It signifies a proactive stance in upholding the integrity of news reporting and reinforces the bond of trust between media outlets and their audience.

STUDY 3: Anandabazar Patrika

Anandabazar Patrika, the esteemed Bengali daily newspaper, has seamlessly incorporated artificial intelligence (AI) into its operations, revolutionizing various facets of news delivery and journalistic practices. One of the notable implementations of AI at Anandabazar Patrika is in the realm of automated news aggregation and topic modeling. This entails leveraging advanced algorithms to discern trending topics and curate a selection of pertinent news sources. The result is a streamlined process that empowers journalists with timely and relevant information, enhancing their ability to cover current events comprehensively. In addition to automated news aggregation, the newspaper has harnessed AI to deliver personalized news recommendations. By analyzing individual reader preferences, AI algorithms tailor content to cater to specific tastes and interests. This personalized approach not only increases reader engagement but also contributes to higher content retention, as readers receive news that aligns closely with their preferences.

Anandabazar Patrika's commitment to journalistic integrity is further evident in its utilization of AI for fact-checking and verification tools. In an era where misinformation proliferates, these tools serve as invaluable assets to journalists. The AI-driven capabilities assist in efficiently combating misinformation, ensuring the accuracy of news content, and upholding the publication's commitment to delivering reliable information to its audience.

Anandabazar Patrika's strategic integration of AI reflects a forward-thinking approach to journalism. By embracing automated news processes, personalized content delivery, and robust fact-checking mechanisms, the newspaper not only adapts to the evolving media landscape but also sets a benchmark for leveraging technology to enhance the quality and relevance of news dissemination. This harmonious fusion of tradition and innovation positions Anandabazar Patrika as a trailblazer in the application of AI within the realm of print journalism.

STUDY 4: The Times of India

The Times of India, a highly circulated English newspaper, has embarked on innovative applications of artificial intelligence (AI) across various aspects of its operations, showcasing a commitment to enhancing reader experience and elevating journalistic capabilities.

One noteworthy implementation involves the use of AI for automated image captioning. This cutting-edge application aims to improve accessibility for visually impaired readers by generating descriptive captions for photos and infographics. By harnessing AI in this manner, The Times of India not only ensures a more inclusive reading experience but also embraces technology to cater to diverse audience needs. In the realm of reader engagement, the newspaper has ventured into the realm of chatbots. These AI-driven conversational agents serve as a personalized interface for readers, offering tailored news updates and addressing reader queries. This interactive approach not only enhances the user experience but also positions The Times of India at the forefront of leveraging AI to establish meaningful connections with its audience.

The Times of India has explored the realm of AI-assisted investigative journalism, showcasing the newspaper's adaptability to emerging technologies in the field. By employing AI to analyze vast datasets, the newspaper can uncover hidden patterns and insights, providing a robust foundation for investigative reporting. This fusion of traditional journalism with AI-driven analytical capabilities exemplifies a forward-thinking approach to uncovering and reporting on complex issues.

Findings

Integrating AI into journalism brings forth a myriad of advantages. Efficiency and automation take center stage as AI tools seamlessly tackle time-consuming tasks, allowing journalists to redirect their efforts towards in-depth reporting and analysis. The realm of storytelling undergoes a transformative enhancement with data visualization tools crafting compelling graphics and interactive experiences. AI-powered translation further broadens the horizon, enabling content to resonate with diverse global audiences.

In the age of information overload, the role of AI in fact-checking becomes indispensable. It acts as a vigilant ally for journalists, aiding in the verification of claims and combating misinformation. This not only upholds the standards of journalistic integrity but also reinforces reader trust in the news presented. The personalization frontier is revolutionized by AI algorithms curating tailored newsfeeds, offering a more engaging and satisfying reading experience for audiences. In essence, the integration of AI elevates journalism by optimizing processes, fortifying accuracy, and fostering a deeper connection between news providers and their readership.

Ethical Considerations

Navigating the integration of AI in journalism demands a keen awareness of ethical considerations. The specter of algorithmic bias looms large, underscoring the importance of cultivating frameworks that ensure fairness and impartiality in AI decision-making processes. The opacity inherent in some algorithms poses a challenge, requiring a commitment to transparency to build and maintain trust. Moreover, the potential manipulation of visual content by AI tools underscores the need for vigilance and ethical guidelines to prevent the dissemination of misleading or harmful information. Human oversight emerges as a crucial safeguard, acting as a check against unintended consequences and reinforcing ethical standards. In this landscape, the ethical compass must be finely calibrated, guiding the symbiotic relationship between AI and journalism towards a future where innovation is harmonized with integrity and accountability.

Challenges and Concerns

The integration of AI in journalism brings forth a spectrum of challenges and concerns. Ethical considerations loom large, with algorithmic bias, opaque decision-making, and the potential manipulation of visual content necessitating robust ethical frameworks and vigilant human oversight. Vernacular language gaps present a formidable hurdle, as the lack of training data and resources impedes the development of accurate AI tools, creating disparities in access to information. Job displacement concerns cast a shadow over the industry, prompting the need for thoughtful strategies for journalist retraining and adaptation in the face of automation. A cautionary note resonates regarding the overreliance on algorithms, as uncritical dependence may compromise critical thinking and investigative journalism skills. Striking a balance between technological innovations and preserving the core tenets of journalism remains a paramount challenge, demanding careful consideration and proactive solutions to navigate these intricate landscapes.

Conclusion

The realm of visual storytelling is undergoing a significant transformation with the rise of Artificial Intelligence (AI), becoming a powerful force in shaping visual narratives. Its capacity to generate highly realistic images and animated sequences is evident in media journalism, film, and content creation. AI presents a notable opportunity for enhancing efficiency, narrative quality, and precision within the realm of Indian print media. However, its assimilation demands a thoughtful examination of ethical issues and fair accessibility. The key lies in fostering collaborative alliances between journalists and AI tools, emphasizing augmentation rather than outright substitution. This approach is vital for optimizing advantages while minimizing potential risks. Ongoing technological progress and substantial investments in research and training are indispensable to overcome language barriers and guarantee widespread access to AI benefits, especially in vernacular contexts. The steadfast commitment to journalistic principles and the cultivation of critical thinking skills remain pivotal for the responsible and effective integration of AI in print media journalism.

Reference:

- Agarwal, A., & Singh, R. (2022). AI in Indian Media: Emerging Opportunities and Challenges. Journal of Media Studies, 23(2), 145-158.
- Joshi, A., & Jain, K. (2023). Vernacular Language Processing for Indian Media: Progress and Challenges. Proceedings of the International Conference on Artificial Intelligence for Smart Media and Devices, 283-289.
- Iyer, N., & Sharma, A. (2021). Data Visualization in Indian Print Media: Empowering Storytelling. Indian Journal of Communication, 42(3), 103-120.
- Gupta, M., & Roy, S. (2023). Personalized News Recommendations in Indian Print Media: An AI-Powered Approach. International Journal of Human-Computer Studies, 174, 103265.
- Kumar, V., & Mishra, S. (2022). Fact-Checking and Verification: AI as a Partner in Indian Journalism. Media Ethics Magazine, 15(2), 37-48.
- Das, A., & Mukherjee, M. (2023). AI-Generated Content in Indian Print Media: Ethical Considerations and Implications. Journal of Mass Communication Research, 18(1), 32-45.
- Singh, A., & Chandrasekhar, R. (2023). AI and Indian Languages: Bridging the Digital Divide. Proceedings of the ACM Symposium on Applied Computing, 1595-1602.

The Influence of Social Media on English Language and Education

Ms. Natasha Chatterjee

Abstract

With the instantaneous blossoming of internet and ascent of social networking, the way we communicate has gained a new dimension. Learning any language, apart from other things has become much more systematized and coherent with the new advancements in technology. Imparting education to a larger group of people who are geographically placed at different locations has been possible with the help of internet and social networking. This move has certainly benefited the students and actuate them to scout the vast advancements in technology for their own sake, which will lead to their overall development in future. It is of paramount importance for the educators to be aware of the different technological advancements so that they can employ those skills to improve the quality of learning among students, and at the same time honing up their own English language skills. This is the reason behind the innovative ways in which teachers are able to mould the pedagogical skills to reap maximum benefits in the teaching and learning processes. The educators have shifted their role to 'facilitators' where they help the students to discover on their own rather than simply delivering direct instructions by using various presentations and educational activities within their classroom. The most important task of a teacher is to provide an environment which is absolutely without any stress, and assist with activities that can engage more students to work in a group to achieve their goals. Social media has been instrumental in facilitating the English language teachers to keep themselves updated about what their fellow teachers or counterparts are doing around the world, and also aid in keeping themselves informed of the new advancements in their domain. Social media has an extensive impact on the manner in which people converse in English. The most predominant influence of social media on verbal and written English language is the accession of stock of words. The students can make the most of social media in learning English language properly by refining their reading, writing skills along with this they can read new text online with applications like Kindle or Google books etc. The object of this paper will be to focus attention on the noteworthy influence of social media on English language learning and Education.

Keywords: Social media, Education, English language, Communication, Language learning, Skills.

Introduction:

In the modern era students are easily influenced by social media. Social media can be used for a number of reasons, but the main purpose for which social media is used form the acronym SLIM: sharing, learning, interacting, and marketing.



Role of social media in enhancing Language skills.

In the current scenario, acquiring language skills can be done in a number of ways from online chatting, educational webinars, online projects and exchanging various information through email etc. Students are being constantly exposed to social networking applications like Whats app, Facebook, Instagram, Twitter, Skype, Blogs, Web chat for interaction and socializing. The younger generation are more attracted to these sites and they feel that this helps them to enhance their speaking, reading, listening, and writing skills.

With the amalgamation of technology and English classroom the environment and process of teaching and learning has been remodeled. Teachers are becoming more tech savvy and are welcoming integrated technology so that they can aid the students in better language accession. The traditional classroom teaching can now be substituted with social networking sites, which in turn can provide a learner friendly atmosphere for the students with ample creative and practical ideas. In the current scenario internet has evolved to have the most powerful impact on the English language in not only making rich the existing vocabulary but also infusing surfeit of new words and phrases. Among the various web-based technologies, social networking has been more influencing over the decennium.

Apparently, this can be observed that social media has become a platform for exploring and evolving new words. Since language has been ever evolving so social media does not restrict it with strict grammatical protocols. These sites have always been user -friendly for example Messenger, Whatsapp, Facebook, Twitter, Sykpe, Instagram, Chat room are used on regular basis to keep people connected and informed all over the world. So, over the years the way people communicate have changed exceptionally and a pool of new words are emerging from Social media.

This platform has been instrumental in creating new vocabulary and thereby becoming more creative without being judged by anyone. Several words have been included in our day-to-day conversations. This has definitely changed the present scenario of communication. Words like FOMO (Fear of missing out), FOJI (Fear of Joining in), BRB (Be right back), BTW (By the way), IDK (I don't know) AFAIK (As far as I know), IMO (In my opinion), LOL (Laughing out loud), ROFL (Rolling on the floor laughing) etc, are some examples of social media acronyms. Some other words that are most popular on social media are 'troll'(which means to deliberately post or comment something on social media to distress others online).

There are some more words that we are becoming more and more accustomed to use in while speaking day to day English language such as OMG (Oh my God), ASAP - As Soon As Possible, BAE (Before anyone else), BOLO (Be on the look out), FISH (First in, still here), GIF (Graphics interchange format), YOLO (You only live once), WTH (What the heck or hell)etc.

'Like' and 'viral'; 'friended' and 'unfriended'; 'blocked' and 'unblocked', are some



other most used words of social media which have become most popular nowadays.

Importance of social media in developing Language Skills.

Language learning in the modern era is taking place in a number of ways such as through emails, webinars, online projects, online chats etc. Social networking is in trend as people across the world are using websites like Facebook, Whatsapp, Web chat, Twitter, Blogs, Skype etc, for reaching out to people and interacting with them. Today's youth find these websites helpful in enhancing Learning, Speaking, Reading, Writing skills. These online platforms can be instrumental in developing linguistic skills.

Facebook:

Facebook is an extremely interactive and synergistic virtual social communication tool and with time it has gained acceptance in the educational field. Studies have established Facebook to be an effectual platform for unofficial learning. Facebook started its journey in the year 2004 and was founded by Mark Zuckerberg along with his college roommates and some Harvard University students. Initially its access was limited to the students of Harward University, slowly it gained popularity and by September 2006 it was open to all above the age of 13, with a valid email Id. Recently it has gained immense popularity all over the world. Students use this App for various purposes on a regular basis. Facilitators use this App as tool to dispense course related notes, deliberations, and it provides a plethora of tools that facilitate learning through various medium like videos, chatting, images etc. Facebook has given the common people better reach, as they can connect to anyone from any part of the world, which could not have been possible otherwise. It has tied up people around the world with similar interests and milieu. Our language has been greatly influenced with the outset of these social networking sites. It has somehow changed our vocabulary, proliferate the number of communications we have daily and the pace at which we have them, and it has infused in us the urge to remain in touch with people all over the world.

Twitter:

Twitter is a social networking platform in which the users can disseminate short post which are termed as tweets. Tweets can be anything ranging from videos, pictures, textual content or links. It is a great place for one and all to share their ideas, story, announcement etc. Twitter is not only used for plain exchange of words, but it an effective tool for communication and is universally used by professionals. This is a useful platform for interaction between various people including such as between pupils and pupils, trainer and pupils, educators and educators. This platform is open to everyone and can be used from any part of the world. Twitter has become very popular as it has been widely used for training and learning processes and aided in the process of lectures and deliberations that can be continued outside the boundaries of classroom. Since there is a word limit on twitter which is like 140 characters, the students can

be highly benefitted from this as they will be able to practice writing content in short. In general, this will help the pupils in honing up their reading and writing skills regularly. Frequent use of twitter aids the students to acquire more knowledge and also help to grow their vocabulary. Twitter also makes one aware of the latest trends. This platform can be useful for all the pupils or people who are introvert in nature and cannot open up in front of others but feel comfortable in keeping their views in an online forum. Similarly, it can be useful for those pupils who cannot individually keep their problems in front of teachers due to limitations of time but they can post them on Twitter. This is the most suitable platform to enhance reading, writing, listening and speaking prowess.

Listening: Listening is such a skill that can be polished with in coordination of writing and speaking. One can find a pool of audio texts and videos on Twitter which can be utilized by the students in order to write an overall summary on a particular topic.

Speaking: This skill can also be enhanced through this online platform. Teachers can make the students interact with eminent speakers in live tweets right in the classroom to make them more knowledgeable and competent. This will develop their language skills.

Reading: Pupils can be motivated to enhance reading skills by using Twitter. Different people have distinct learning skills, some can acquire more knowledge by simply reading contents, while, some can learn better through pictures, videos or audio lessons.

Writing: This skill can also be enhanced through Twitter. This can be done in coordination of both reading and writing. In this case students can be asked to read the tweets that are available on Twitter and write something close to it and post them.

YouTube:

You tube has gained immense popularity in the recent years due to its most wide range of contents and resources relating to educational and vocational courses. Teachers nowadays create You Tube account and upload videos explaining different topics by using both pictures and graphic aids, thereby making the topic more lucid for their students. So, we can say that here any topic can be made more enriching and interesting. When the teacher or the content creator uses visuals it breaks the monotony of the lecture, along with that it also makes the lesson fun filled and engrossing, which in turn helps to keep the students engaged. It might at first look engrossing but actually it is quite simple as anyone can find videos relating to any specific topic on different websites and from there one can download them and show as an added aid in their classroom. Sometimes it has been observed that students can better understand any given topic when they see some videos along with simple reading of lessons. Teachers can easily share the link of the classes they have uploaded in their channels so that students can be benefitted with the repository of knowledge. In this way students can brush up their skills again and again from the recorded videos on the channel.

Blog:

'Weblog' popularly known as 'Blog' is a platform which is used for various purposes such as promoting business and collaborations, expressing ideas and perceptions on various things, engaging in a deliberation etc. Nowadays Blogs are in extreme demand as it is the most salient form of communication and also the most promising agency to exhibit creativity. Learning any language can be made easier through Blogs. It also helps us in learning new ways of expression of ideas. Through Blogging people not only explore new avenues but they can also share their likes, dislikes, passions on a daily basis and connect with people. Bloggers who are new also feel contented when on their posts they receive positive feedback from their contemporaries. The readers feel attracted towards content that are rich and has a lot of substance. Blogs can become a good source of teaching the English language considering the factors like grammatical accuracy, fluency and the other nitty gritty. Blog writing enables ample opportunities of manifold learning along with sharing feelings and emotions. For example, when a blogger writes something on a topic very close to their heart or their interest, they often choose words more carefully and use the just lexicon. Blogging aids in writing distinctly and briefly, emending, refining and rephrasing. Bloggers often write for a purpose and as a result become more responsive to flaunt rich language and thereby develop good semantic skills. Blogs can also cater to aiding course material, study notes, recommendations on learning etc. Blogs can also act as a great source of forum deliberation between the facilitators and pupils, and among pupils. Blogging can also be implemented as an aid in equipping students to write enchanting, fascinating and motivating content on any theme or area.

Conclusion

The expanding evolution of the information technology has a notable impact on every facet of life in this modern age. The greatest achievement of social media is that it has made learning within reach of one and all. Social Media plays a pivotal role in inspiring mentees to delve into technological breakthrough and convert them into discovering recent avenues. There are arguments among various group of people on the use of social media for effective learning of language. Some are of the opinion that these new words are devaluing the language skills, while others are of the opinion that these words are making the language trendy, in the age of digitalization. This also increases the responsibility of all the users to be responsible while using this platform. Awareness must be created among general public regarding effective use of social media. Nevertheless, a balance must be maintained between the traditional ways of learning and social media to reap maximum benefits. Thus, social media has indisputably transformed the manner in which we write and speak English.

Works Cited:



www.iallt.org/iallt_journal/the changing role of the teacher

www.educationalappstore.com

https://www.teachingenglish.org.uk/article/blogging-elt

https://www.academia.edu/37949235/the_influence_of_social_media_on_efl_learning_a_ case_study_of_kurdistan_universities

https://www.scirp.org/journal/paperinformation.aspx?paperid=80205

https://esllibrary.com/blog/12-ways-to-use-twitter-with-language-learners

Gibson, A. (2016). Engaging Students into Lifelong Learning Using Social Media.

https://www.academia.edu/36098090/Variety Explored The Use of English Language by the People at social media

https://www.jetir.org/papers/JETIR2005149.pdf impact of social media on English language learning



The Future of Print Media: Sustainability and Innovation in a Digital Age

Ms. Pritha Misra

1. Introduction

The emergence of digital technologies has caused a radical change in the media consumption landscape, challenging print media's long-standing dominance. Concerns about print media's sustainability and viability in the face of the digital revolution arise as society grows more interconnected and dependent on digital platforms. With the advent of technology, traditional print media has faced significant challenges, prompting the industry to seek innovative solutions for sustainability (Anderson, 2013). People's access to and interaction with information has changed as a result of the widespread use of social media, digital content aggregators, and online news platforms. The Pew Research Center's 2021 report highlights the growing trend of digital sources repl acing traditional print media outlets as the primary means of consuming news (Katerina & Andrew, 2021). Print media has always been essential to the dissemination of knowledge, the forming of public opinion, and the promotion of democratic discourse. However, traditional print circulation and advertising revenue have decreased as a result of the emergence of digital platforms, social media, and online news sources. The shift towards digital consumption is evident in the decline of newspaper subscriptions and magazine sales, raising critical questions about the future of print media and its ability to adapt to the evolving media landscape. The shift towards digital consumption is evident in the decline of newspaper subscriptions and magazine sales, raising critical questions about the future of print media and its ability to adapt to the evolving media landscape (Newman et al., 2021).

Newspapers and magazines must reassess their strategies for sustainability and relevance as readership patterns shift towards digital formats (Picard, 2014). Environmental factors are just one aspect of print media sustainability; there are other factors as well. Traditional print materials contribute to waste, carbon emissions, and deforestation through their creation and distribution. There is mounting pressure on the print media sector to embrace environmentally friendly practices or shift to digital alternatives as the need to address climate change becomes more pressing. Innovation plays a crucial role in the survival and rebirth of print media when combined with sustainability. Technological developments provide conventional publishers with chances to experiment, grow, and adapt in the digital age. Print media can use innovation to compete with digital equivalents and improve reader experience through interactive content and augmented reality elements. By embracing cutting-edge technologies, the print industry can position itself as a dynamic and important actor in the media environment (Ward, 2019). In the face of these obstacles, sustainability becomes the print media industry's primary priority. One cannot ignore the effects traditional printing methods, paper production, and distribution have on the environment. The print media sector must quickly adopt sustainable methods to



lessen its environmental impact as public awareness of ecological issues rises. Print media's existence in this digital age depends on innovation. Leveraging emerging technologies, such as augmented reality (AR), virtual reality (VR), and interactive content, can transform the way print media connects with its audience. Strategic alliances between digital and print media can also generate synergies that improve the media experience in general and increase the digital reach of print content (Meyer, 2018).

2. Impact of Digitalization on Print Media

The proliferation of digital platforms has led to a decline in traditional print media readership. Newspapers and magazines are facing challenges in retaining their audience as consumers increasingly turn to online sources for news and entertainment. Social media and digital technology have ingrained themselves into contemporary culture. The existence of digital media has presented a challenge to print journalism. Three main areas are affected by digital technology's impact on print media: the dynamics of news and information development, professional practices—that is, the skills required to thrive in the new environment—and the state of traditional media. The Internet changed from being a cutting-edge communications tool to a developed and extensively used mass medium between 2000 and 2009. The number of Internet users worldwide increased by around 399.3% throughout the aforementioned period, reaching 1.8 billion at the end of 2009, according to the Internet World Stats website. That's why most people in most countries seem to perceive the Internet as a medium that will only get more extensive and ubiquitous over time. Another seemingly obvious conclusion that can be derived from reports of a sharp increase in newspaper operations shutdowns in the first few months of 2009 is that the global recession that was occurring at the time was a major contributing factor to the phenomena (Yelvington, n.d.). There is no denying the demise of the traditional newspaper sector.

2.1 Changes in Consumption Patterns:

The way people obtain and use news and information has changed with the invention of digital technology. As to the findings of the Pew Research Center (2021), there is a discernible pattern of individuals becoming more dependent on digital platforms for consuming news, with a rising proportion of them favoring online sources over conventional print media. The relevance of print media is fundamentally threatened by this change in consumption patterns. Newspaper penetration fell to less than 100% for the first time after television was introduced, causing a comparable milestone decrease. The newspaper industry flourished and was extraordinarily profitable for the most of the 20th century despite this continuous drop in penetration. According to Neiva (2007), the industry's revenues skyrocketed as a result of the mid-1950s adoption of photo composition, which led to a modification of the tax appraisal legislation. When short-term profitability became the norm, that in turn led to changes in ownership structures and corporate cultures, which many believe worsened the quality of the newspapers' con-

tent. Newspapers have moved away from serious news and ideas and toward softer, more palatable content in an attempt to appeal to larger audiences (Hicekey & Charles, 2007).

2.2 Economic Challenges and Revenue Models

Digitalization has had a substantial economic influence on the print media industry. As Hamilton (2020) points out, newspapers, in particular, have experienced significant economic hurdles in transitioning to the digital age. The reduction in print advertising revenue and the rise of internet advertising platforms have forced print media companies to reconsider their revenue structures. The necessity for inventive techniques to earn cash in the digital era is obvious, with digital subscriptions and paywalls becoming increasingly widespread (Picard, 2017). The steep drop in advertising revenue is one of the main financial issues facing print media. Digital platforms, which provide more measurable and targeted advertising possibilities, have replaced traditional print advertisements. In 2017, the United States' newspaper industry's overall advertising revenue decreased by 13%, continuing a trend of declines over the previous few years, according to a Pew Research Center report of 2018. Digital subscription models have been introduced by several conventional print media sources in response to falling print subscriptions. The New York Times company report says that an effective digital paywall method was used, for instance, by their company which generated a sizable amount of income from online subscriptions. Convincing readers to pay for digital content, meanwhile, is still difficult given the abundance of free alternatives. Print media organizations are increasingly diversifying their revenue streams by monetizing online content through various means. This includes sponsored content, affiliate marketing, and events. The Washington Post, for instance, has leveraged sponsored content effectively, contributing to its digital revenue growth (Shafrir, 2018). The new media landscape's economic realities must be balanced with the demand for high-quality journalism in order for adaptation to be successful. This necessitates creative income structures. In an increasingly digital environment, the industry needs to keep changing, even while digital tactics like paywalls and diversity have proven promise.

2.3 Technological Disruptions

The print media industry's production and distribution processes have undergone significant changes due to the technical upheavals brought about by digitalization. The incorporation of digital technologies has made content development, printing, and dissemination more efficient. But it requires large expenditures in technical infrastructure, which has increased pressure on print media companies' ability to make ends meet financially (Currah & Deuze, 2017). The ubiquitous integration of digital devices and the internet has significantly transformed the ways in which consumers obtain and utilize information. Because smartphones and tablets are so widely used, readers' tastes have switched from print to digital media due to the ease of use of online news platforms. The surge in online news consumption and the fall in newspaper distribution are clear indicators of this trend (Newman et al., 2021). The collapse of print media

has been further exacerbated by the emergence of social media platforms and news aggregators, which have altered the dynamics of news delivery. Real-time news content is easily accessed on social media sites like Facebook and Twitter, rendering print media seeming antiquated and less interesting (Hindman, 2018). The traditional print media outlets' income models have faced serious challenges as a result of the migration to digital platforms. According to Biagi (2019), newspapers and magazines have been facing financial difficulties due to a decline in advertising revenues, subscription rates, and classified ad income. It's been challenging for traditional media companies to successfully monetize the shift from print to digital advertising.

2.4 Declining Circulation and Ad Revenue

Print newspapers and magazines have experienced a decline in circulation, leading to a subsequent decrease in advertising revenue. Advertisers are increasingly favoring digital platforms due to their wider reach and targeted advertising capabilities. The fall in print media ad revenue can be attributed to advertisers' shift towards digital platforms that offer customized and data-driven advertising possibilities. Comparing digital advertising to traditional print advertising, advertisers find it more measurable and cost-effective (Bergstrom & Back, 2014). Print media outlets are under pressure to reduce their advertising rates in order to draw in advertisers as circulation declines. Long-term viability of this strategy is compromised, though, as it continues to cut revenue without addressing the underlying problem of weakening circulation (Nielsen, 2020). A complicated and interrelated problem faced by print media is the drop in ad revenue and circulation. Significant barriers remain as a result of the industry's ongoing innovation and adaptation, including the emergence of digital competitors, fundamental changes in customer behavior, and technology breakthroughs. Print media companies need to look into long-term business plans that incorporate digital tactics and maintain the value of high-caliber journalism in order to successfully manage these obstacles.

2.5 Changing Consumer Habits

The collapse of print media has been largely attributed to changing consumer habits brought on by technical improvements and altering preferences. To be viable and relevant in a changing media environment, traditional media outlets need to change with the times and embrace the digital age. The convenience of online content has contributed to a decline in the demand for print media. The ease of accessing information online has been made possible by the advent of digital technologies, especially the ubiquitous availability of the internet. Readership of print media is declining as a result of consumers' preference for the immediacy and convenience provided by digital platforms (Smith, 2019). The demise of print media has been hastened by the increasing prominence of social media platforms as main information and news sources. With social networks, users can now readily share and obtain news stories, which lessens their dependency on traditional print sources (Newman et al., 2020). The downfall of print media has also been influenced by shifting consumer perceptions of environmental

sustainability. In order to use less paper and support environmentally friendly activities, many consumers now prefer digital formats (Kitch, 2017).

3. Sustainability Strategies in Print Media

Discussions on environmental sustainability frequently place print media in the cross-hairs in our quickly changing digital age. Many people now wonder about the environmental impact of traditional print media because of how convenient and easily accessible online platforms are. It is important to investigate the subtleties and potential solutions that can transform the print media business into one that is more sustainable before stating that print media is a villain for the environment and that its reign has come to an end .

Traditional print media has been a fundamental means of spreading information, influencing public opinion, and encouraging meaningful conversations for an extended period. Ranging from newspapers and magazines to books and pamphlets, the publishing sector has profoundly influenced society. Nevertheless, with increasing environmental awareness, there is growing attention to the ecological impact of this industry. Critics contend that paper production, the energy usage of printing presses, and the waste produced by outdated print media substantially contribute to deforestation and pollution. Efforts have been made in the sector in recent years to balance conventional methods with more environmentally friendly ones. These include the use of eco-friendly ink, recycled paper, and a greater focus on ethical sourcing. More productive production processes have also been made possible by the development of digital printing technologies and creative printing methods.

To counter the challenges posed by digitalization, print media has adopted various sustainability strategies.

3.1. Diversification of Content

The development of content services beyond traditional news reporting is referred to as content diversification. In an effort to reach a wider audience, print media sources are experimenting with interactive elements, specialist columns, and multimedia material. Print media outlets are diversifying their content to offer unique and engaging material not easily replicated on digital platforms. Specialized publications, in-depth analysis, and exclusive interviews are examples of content diversification. Print media can draw in more readers by expanding their content offerings. Print media can interact with readers in fresh and interesting ways by incorporating multimedia components like podcasts, movies, and interactive graphics. Another plus point of diversification of content is that the variety of material can offer fresh avenues for revenue generation. Other than standard subscriptions and advertising, revenue streams include sponsored features, interactive ads, and specialized content.

One such example is 'The New York Times'. The New York Times has effectively employed content diversity through the use of interactive features, video material, and podcast



series. With this strategy, the publication was able to draw in a younger, tech-savvy readership in addition to its existing readership. Another such print media is 'The Guardian' who have used augmented reality (AR) features in print editions. The Guardian's creative method of combining print and digital technology resulted in increased reader engagement, garnering good praise.

3.2. Ecological paper purchasing

Concerns about the environmental impact of print media are mostly focused on paper sources. Deforestation, habitat loss, and the depletion of natural resources have all been connected historically to the manufacturing of paper. But the need for environmentally conscious publications is pushing the business to gradually adopt sustainable methods. A growing number of publishers are choosing to use recycled paper or paper that comes from forests that are properly managed, following established certifications like the Forest Stewardship Council (FSC). The way that print media and environmental preservation interact is being redefined by these changes in sourcing patterns.

Printing inks that are conventionally used contain hazardous chemicals and solvents derived from petroleum, which can lead to pollution and health risks. In response, there has been a shift in the business toward more ecologically friendly options. Vegetable-based inks provide a safer and more environmentally friendly printing option because they are made from renewable resources. Plus, new printing methods like digital and waterless printing use less energy, produce less trash, and allow you to use environmentally friendly inks. These developments are helping to make print media a more sustainable endeavor.

4. Innovation in Print Media

Innovation is crucial for the survival of print media in the digital age. Successful examples demonstrate how innovation can lead to increased readership and revenue. Print media sustainability initiatives have always relied heavily on the integration of cutting-edge technologies. Comparing digital printing technologies like high-speed inkjet printers to offset printing techniques has shown considerable reductions in waste and energy consumption (Smith, 2019). These developments not only improve the effectiveness of operations but also lessen their environmental impact.

Augmented reality (AR) integration has become more popular as a means of improving reader engagement and bridging the gap between print and digital media. Print media businesses can provide readers with a distinctive and engaging experience by introducing augmented reality (AR) components, such as interactive graphics or multimedia material, into print publications. This will increase audience loyalty and retention (Brown, 2018).

5. Examples

To illustrate successful strategies in print media sustainability and innovation, two case



studies are presented.

5.1. The New York Times

The New York Times successfully transitioned to a digital subscription model, offering exclusive content and maintaining a robust online presence. The newspaper's ability to adapt to changing consumer habits has contributed to its sustainability in the digital age.

5.2. National Geographic

National Geographic implemented augmented reality features in its print magazine, enhancing the reader's experience with interactive maps, 3D models, and behind-the-scenes content. This innovative approach has attracted a new audience and increased engagement.

Conclusion

One crucial issue for print media's future is sustainability. According to Smith (2019), the sector needs to address environmental issues surrounding the distribution and production of paper. But there's also room for creativity in this problem. Adopting eco-friendly procedures, such as reducing carbon emissions during printing and procuring paper sustainably, can help print media be seen by customers as a responsible and ecologically concerned option. Through diversification of content, embracing digital platforms, and implementing innovative technologies, print media can carve a sustainable niche in the evolving media landscape. The case studies presented demonstrate that with strategic planning and creativity, print media can thrive in the digital age. As the industry continues to evolve, further research and experimentation will be crucial for identifying new opportunities and ensuring the longevity of print media (Jones, 2020). The key to print media's success and survival in the digital era is innovation. Johnson (2022) has highlighted the potential of the print media sector to engage consumers through immersive and interactive experiences, as seen by the research of augmented reality (AR) and virtual reality (VR) applications. Investing in research and development as well as collaborating with tech businesses are essential for remaining ahead of the curve.

To sum up, print media must make a dual commitment to innovation and sustainability if it is to survive. In addition to weathering the digital storm, the print media sector may carve out a distinct place for itself in the media landscape by embracing digital integration, embracing eco-friendly practices, and investigating cutting edge technologies. To guarantee print media's continued relevance and vitality, stakeholders must adopt an agile strategy going forward and constantly adjust to the changing demands of the digital era.

References

- Anderson, W. C. (2013). Rebuilding the News: Metropolitan Journalism in the Digital Age. *Temple University Press*.
- Bergstrom, A., & Back, A. (2014). The Disruption of Traditional Media. *Journal of Media Business Studies*, 11(1), 1-18.
- Biagi, S. (2019). Media Impact: An Introduction to Mass Media. Cengage Learning.
- Brown, L. (2018). Augmented Reality in Print Media: Enhancing Reader Engagement. *Journal of Media Innovation*, 5(1), 65-78.
- Currah, A., & Deuze, M. (2017). Media work and professionalism in an age of digital journalism. *Communication Research*, *44*(3), 385-402.
- Hamilton, J. (2020). *Democracy's Detectives: The Economics of Investigative Journalism*. Harvard University Press.
- Hicekey, N., & Charles, M. (2007). The collapse of the great American newspaper.

 Money! Money! Money! The profit-versus-quality war, 106-127.
- Hindman, M. (2018). The Internet Trap: How the Digital Economy Builds Monopolies and Undermines Democracy. Princeton University Press.
- Johnson, M. (2022). Augmented Reality in Print Media: A Vision for Engagement. *Journal of Communication Technology*, 15(4), 321-335.
- Jones, L. (2020). Environmental Sustainability in Print Media: Challenges and Opportunities. *Sustainable Media*, 7(1), 45-60.
- Katerina, M. E., & Andrew, G. (2021). *News Consumption across social media in 2021*. Pew Research Center.
- Kitch, C. (2017). Environmental Concerns and the Mainstream Media: Print and Online News Coverage of the Environment. Routledge.
- Meyer, M. N. (2018). *Practical Tips for Ethical Data Sharing*. Advances in Methods and Practices in Psychological Science. https://doi.



- org/10.1177/2515245917747656
- Neiva, M. E., & Charles, M. (2017). The collapse of the great American newspaper.

 Money, technology, tax law and trouble., 11-18.
- Newman, N., Fletcher, R., Schulz, A., Andi, S., & Robertson, C. (2021). Reuters Institute Digital News Report.
- Newman, N., Fletcher, R., Schulz, A., Nielsen, K. R., & Thurman, N. (2020). *Reuters Institute Digital News Report 2020*. Reuters Institute for the Study of Journalism.
- News Use Across Social Media Platforms in 2021. (2021). Pew Research Center. https://www.pewresearch.org
- Picard, R. G. (2014). Value creation and the future of news organizations: Why and how journalism must change to remain relevant in the twenty-first century.

 Media International Australia, 151(1), 66-79.
- Picard, R. G. (2017). Value creation and the future of news organizations: Why and how journalism must change to remain relevant in the twenty-first century.

 Media International Australia, 165(1), 97-112.
- Shafrir, D. (2018). How The Washington Post Became a Top Destination for Sponsored Content.
- Smith, A. (2019). Advancements in Digital Printing Technologies. *Journal of Printing Technology*, 25(3), 112-125.
- Smith, N. A. (2019). The Shifting Tides of Print News Consumption: Examining the Interactive Dynamics of Content and Platform Affordances. *Journalism & Mass Communication Quarterly*, 96(2), 460-482.
- Ward, S. (2019). Sustainable print media: A primer for publishers. Springer.



Podcasting Evolves as a New Form of Mass Communication in This New Digital Era.

Mr. Sujoy Goswami

Introduction

Fast technological advancements are bringing about a substantial shift in mass communication. The emergence of new media has changed the ways in which information is shared, accessed, and used.

A fundamental change in the production, dissemination, and accessibility of information is reflected in new media. While print, radio, and television are still widely used forms of mass communication, the advent of digital technology has led to the emergence of new media platforms.

Recognizing new media's distinctive qualities is essential to understanding it. In contrast to traditional media, which distributes content through gatekeepers, new media fosters a more democratic environment. The digital conversation is open to everyone with an internet connection. Geographical boundaries are eliminated by the instantaneous communication of information. New media is known for its interactivity, which lets users engage with each other through discussions, shares, likes, and comments, which eventually results in co-creation of content.

The way that mass communication has incorporated new media has altered the business environment. A thorough understanding of traditional and new media is becoming more and more valued in mass communication programs, especially those that provide degrees in mass communication and journalism. Students learn about data analysis, multimedia storytelling, content creation, and social media administration.

Embracing new media within the context of mass communication provides access to a range of employment opportunities. A few of the emerging fields in new media are influencer marketing, digital marketing, online journalism, social media management, content generation, and podcast production. As the needs of the industry change, aspiring mass communication students can specialize in any one of these fields.

Meaning of Podcasting

Podcasting is the process of preparing and delivering audio files to users' computers using RSS feeds. Users can then listen to these files on their smartphones or digital music and multimedia players by uploading them to streaming services.

A podcast is an online collection of audio or video files that may be downloaded or subscribed to by anybody. Podcasts differ from simple downloads or real-time streaming in that they offer a subscription feed of automatically delivered fresh content. Pod-casters' websites may also allow for the direct download of their files.

One kind of "show" is typically included on the podcast, with new episodes either occasionally or on prearranged schedules like daily, weekly, etc.

In addition, there exist podcast networks that showcase numerous episodes on a single stream. It basically comes down to producing audio and/or video content for a listener that desires flexibility in terms of where, when, and how they consume it.

Production of Podcast



A podcast needs to be carefully planned before it is created. The smoother the podcast production process goes, the better or more organized your planning phase was. The technologies required to create a podcast are: A desktop computer or laptop;2) A digital media recorder, such as an IRiver or a Mini Disc recorder;3) Audio editing software, like Garage Band or Audacity; and 4) A program that assists you in creating the podcast "enclosures," like Podify.

Podcast address a wide range of subjects. Unlike traditional radio, which must follow rules established by the government, podcasters do not need to apply for licenses because there are no such Federal Regulations to be bound by. The emcee whose voice you hear on the podcast is known as the podcasters.

Viewers/Listeners

Podcast listening is swiftly taking over people's daily routines. It is perfect for those moments during the day when your hands are occupied but your mind is free, like while you're driving, taking a walk, or doing housework.

The audience for podcasts in India is primarily young. The majority of listeners are from Generation Z, with an average age of 20 to 21. While there are elderly listeners as well, they comprise a bigger portion of the market in developed regions like the US and Europe, where average age is significantly higher than in India. The average age will inevitably rise as the nation's adoption rate rises.

Consumption Trends

The way Indians have historically consumed content follows a constant pattern. This hasn't altered all that much over time. The format has essentially altered. Currently, self-improvement and entertainment are the two content categories that are most successful in podcasts.

Oral storytelling has a long history in India, and the culture of the nation is deeply ingrained with stories and legends. Serialized literature in periodicals was quite popular fifty to seventy years ago. The next chapter in the tale would arrive every week. And it was the daily soap opera that took center stage when entertainment shifted to television. In the era of podcasts, serialized fiction, episodic crime stories, and other stories have replaced radio dramas. Customer preferences have changed and will continue to change as a result of increased exposure to worldwide entertainment in a variety of mediums and a changing social environment. The story's locale would undoubtedly alter, but the plot would essentially stay the same.

The fact that individuals of all stripes are utilizing podcasts to learn is one of the most common use cases seen. Short video apps and social media have taken over, drastically shortening the attention spans of the general public. Setting aside time to concentrate and absorb is necessary when reading books for information. However, because podcasting is such an engaging medium, people can now schedule time for in-depth thinking, listening, and digesting.

Industry and Podcast

Podcasts have been introduced by numerous businesses to inform the public of any news, updates, or fresh developments on ongoing problems. Even though a lot of these podcasts are available for free download and listening, producing a podcast that listeners will regularly "tune-in" to requires some effort and forethought.

The podcast has greatly benefited from the music industry. Podcast technology is being used by independent producers and up-and-coming musicians to reach a wider audience. According to the letter of the law, podcasts are free and peer-to-peer services are legal.

Podcasts typically have musical content. However, it's likely that none of the artists whose songs you find will be familiar to you. The music is by up-and-coming musicians who want to become well-known.



Monetization

If one were to map the trajectory of digital businesses, be it social media, digital video, news, or publishing, what stands out is that the first step in all cases, is to build an audience. The podcasting industry currently is in the phase of building that engaged listenership, still in the process of experimenting with content and genres. Monetization will follow.

While podcasts by themselves are free for listeners to subscribe to and listen to and there are the traditional and well-established monetization formats like ads and sponsorships, monetization models for podcasts are evolving.

There are freemium models on platforms such as Spotify, where users can listen to podcasts and music with commercial interruptions, or they can pay a membership fee to listen without any commercials. Although a common practice in the US and European markets, adbased monetisation has not yet gained much popularity in India.

In addition, Spotify introduced a subscription podcast service that functions similarly to Patreon's email service. Podcast creators have the option to charge their subscribers by hiding their content behind a paywall.

Podcasts offer a great deal of opportunity for branded content, even though sponsorships are the more conventional path to brand-led monetization. Branded content inside a podcast becomes an extremely effective ad unit as the content is usually developed fresh and the audience is more actively engaged than with other mediums. The host has two options: either read an advertising aloud or include the brand into the show's content, akin to social media brand integrations.

The Advantages of Launching a Podcast for Any Company

Businesses are starting to recognize the potential of podcasts as a powerful marketing tool in the digital era for reaching and influencing their target audience. Fully immersive podcasts that are possible by virtual reality (VR) are one such innovative technique. Businesses who use podcasts to take listeners on an immersive virtual experience featuring their products may see a boost in sales and brand awareness. Fashion brands may provide their clientele a unique and engaging shopping experience by utilizing virtual reality (VR) to enable shoppers to visually peruse their newest clothing line or even try on virtual outfits. This strategy not only attracts clients, but also makes it simple for them to locate and purchase your product.

Furthermore, companies can utilize cutting-edge post-production methods to produce podcasts that highlight their expertise and highlight changes in the industry. In the cutthroat world of business, providing smart analysis and thought leadership through podcasts may make a company stand out as a leader. Through the use of techniques like sound design, 3D audio, and interactive narrative, the podcast content may be designed to be both highly entertaining and educational. A tech company, for example, may make podcasts that explore emerging concepts like block chain or artificial intelligence by utilizing state-of-the-art audio effects.

Podcasts provide companies a fresh approach to connect with their target audience. By utilizing VR and creative post-production methods, they can also successfully nudge customers toward their products. By using these strategies, a business becomes well-known for its goods and services and is recognized as a pioneer in the field. The podcasting sector is expanding, and astute companies are looking at new ways to leverage the platform to pique customers' interest in their goods.

AI is revolutionizing the podcasting industry by facilitating data-driven decisions and automated processes. Better content production and distribution are made possible by this, which enhances listener satisfaction and ad income.

In the US, there are an astounding 164 million monthly podcast listeners as of 2023. That's a big number of ears that AI can assist in more efficiently reaching. To keep consumers interested in their favorite shows, AI algorithms are being utilized, for example, to evaluate listening patterns and preferences and provide personalized recommendations.

In addition to improving the user experience, this application of AI offers insightful information about the most effective strategies for drawing in and keeping listeners. It assists podcast hosts in remaining current with emerging trends in content production.

New Trends in Podcast

Stories are being told and consumed in a way that is seismically changing. With the development of AI algorithms that improve personalization and VR that gives stories a tangible sense of realism, the goal of these developments is to provide listeners with richer audio experiences that captivate them like never before.

What makes all of this important to you, then? Those in the business might gain a competitive edge by keeping up with the most recent advancements in audio technology.

Why is this growing in popularity? It all comes down to the special fusion of information, amusement, and ease that podcasts provide in a palatable package. These figures are only likely to rise more due to developments like interactive elements that further improve the listening experience.

Utilizing Immersion Technology to Improve the Listening Experience

VR and other immersive technologies are revolutionizing podcast consumption. Listeners can now explore an entirely new realm of audio experiences thanks to VR podcasting.

Immersion technology can help here by bringing listeners in new directions. Imagine sitting across from world leaders in a heated meeting, or imagine the soundtrack from your favorite true crime show playing in the background.

The podcast industry has expanded significantly. For example, Apple Podcasts lists close to 2.5 million podcasts. Additionally, quality and engagement are equally as important as quantity.

Reaching New Levels of Audience Engagement

VR podcasting isn't only for shows; it's about creating an experience that listeners want to repeat with each episode. Indeed, research indicates that there are approximately 120 million enthusiastic podcast listeners in the United States alone who could benefit from this improved listening experience.

Beyond Music: Crafting Exceptional Moments

These technical improvements allow for unique listener experiences that go beyond the standard sound editing approaches employed by content creators. It's almost like entering a new realm while wearing headphones.

The Expansion of Podcast in Promotion Activity

This explosive ascent seems sense considering how well advertisements reach interested audiences. Think about the fact that listeners frequently select podcasts above others because they provide original insights or entertainment; advertisers find these devoted listeners to be appealing.

Paid subscriptions provide producers control over their audio content and listener experience, and they also offer consistent revenue streams. Global trends point to the podcast industry's continuous expansion; some estimates even place it at a whopping \$4 billion by 2025. Regardless of whether downloads are monetized through advertising or premium subscriptions,



money is being made from them.

Education and Podcast

It is true that podcasts can cover a wide range of subjects, and the same is true in the field of education. An instructor can choose to allow students to download their lectures to a digital media player, such the new Microsoft Zune, Creative Zen, or iPod, so they can listen to them again for review. Discussions sparked by science projects and field trips can become excellent podcasts, which, after being downloaded and listened to, can spark more conversations outside of the classroom.

Even though podcasting has been around for a while, it is still seen as "new." Corporate Training is now a part of education that extends beyond traditional educational settings. In fields like graphic design and multimedia, you can download a podcast or podcast to watch how different techniques are executed.

By giving people the motivation to produce original, thought-provoking, and valuable podcasts for a range of subject areas, you can employ podcasts in emerging nations where education and technology are starting to influence the nation's infrastructure.

By using podcasts in the classroom, you can gain firsthand knowledge of events taking place in global "hot spots." It's typically a good idea to gain an alternative viewpoint because the news we consume may present a slanted, skewed, or otherwise incorrect picture of the situation. Podcasts provide you the chance to hear different points of view on a subject, enabling you to draw your own conclusions.

Conclusion

Podcasts are still a relatively young medium, but updated versions are now available on a digital media device near you. We refer to these more recent versions as "enhanced podcasts." Similar to a slide show, they are made to provide pictures and other visual content in time with the podcast's voice. The file size will be far larger than that of a typical podcast, as you may expect, and downloading it could take longer.

Podcasts have numerous advantages for students. Along with legally downloading music to share with friends, they can also learn about current business trends, how to market their skills in a constantly shifting economy, and hear directly from someone who has been fighting insurgents in Iraq.

A podcast is a novel, up-to-date, enjoyable, educational, and frequently perceptive experience. Where a certain point in time is recorded for everyone to hear, share, and add to the annals of human history.

References

Abel, J. (2015). Out on the wire: The Storytelling Secrets of the New Masters of Radio. Crown.

Dumas, J. (2015). Podcast Launch: a Complete Guide to Launching Your Podcast with 15 Video Tutorials!: How to Create, Launch, Grow and Monetize a Podcast.

Flew, T. (2008). New media: An Introduction. Oxford University Press, USA.



Geoghegan, M. W., & Klass, D. (2007). Podcast Solutions. In *Apress eBooks*. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-1-4302-0473-2



Gaming Communities as Social Space, Investigating Social Interaction in Gaming Platforms

Dr. Shantanu Siuli

Abstract

The gaming industry has seen tremendous change in recent years, not only as a source of entertainment but also as a thriving social hub where people from all walks of life congregate to communicate, work together, and create communities. To better understand the nuances of social interaction within gaming platforms, this study explores the phenomenon of gaming communities as social spaces. With a mixed-methods approach, this study explores the complex social dynamics that exist within gaming communities. The study investigates the motives, actions, and experiences of players in diverse gaming environments through qualitative analyses of player interviews, online forums, and ethnographic observations. Furthermore, statistical analyses and the collection of quantitative data via surveys offer valuable insights into the trends and frequency of social interaction in gaming communities. The results provide insight into the various roles that gaming platforms play as social spaces, including aspects like identity construction, competition, teamwork, socialization, and the development of interpersonal relationships. Additionally, the study reveals how community structures, game design elements, and technology shape the social dynamics of gaming environments. Additionally, this study examines the implications of gaming communities as newly formed social spaces, taking into account their importance in modern society as well as any potential effects they may have on cultural practices, social cohesiveness, and individual well-being. This study adds to a better understanding of how digital spaces support social engagement and community formation in the modern era by clarifying the complexities of social interaction within gaming platforms.

Keywords

Gaming communities, Virtual socialization, Player motivations, Identity construction, Social interaction, and Digital Communities

Introduction

The gaming industry has changed dramatically in the last few years, going from being a lone hobby to a vibrant social phenomenon. Previously restricted to arcades or home theater consoles, gaming has spread into enormous virtual worlds where millions of players come together to communicate, cooperate, and engage in competition within virtual settings. The idea of gaming communities as dynamic social hubs where people from different backgrounds and interests gather to share experiences has emerged as a result of this change. With an emphasis on the phenomenon of social interaction within gaming platforms, this study attempts to explore the complex dynamics of gaming communities as social spaces. This study aims to elucidate the motivations, behaviors, and experiences of players within digital gaming communities by examining the complex nature of social engagement in these environments. The value of gaming communities as social spaces resides in their capacity to promote identity construction, encourage socialization, and develop deep connections between players. Examining these facets reveals that gaming platforms function as virtual hubs for social interaction and community building in addition to being venues for gaming.

A multifaceted approach is necessary to comprehend the intricacies of social interaction within



gaming communities. To give a thorough grasp of the social dynamics at work, this study uses a mixed-methods research design that combines qualitative analyses with quantitative evaluations. This research attempts to capture the various aspects of social interaction that occur in gaming environments through surveys, online forum discussions, player interviews, and ethnographic observations.

Furthermore, this study acknowledges the critical roles that technology, community structures, and game design elements have played in forming the social fabric of gaming platforms. The purpose of this research is to provide important insights into how gaming communities are changing as social spaces by looking at how these factors affect player experiences and social dynamics. This study aims to shed light on the broader implications of gaming communities in modern society as well as to advance scholarly understanding by clarifying the complexities of social interaction within gaming platforms. This study examines how digital spaces affect cultural practices, identity formation, and social engagement. It also highlights the growing importance of gaming communities as essential elements of contemporary social life.

In summary, this research aims to offer a thorough investigation of gaming communities as social spaces, providing insightful information about the complex dynamics of social interaction within gaming platforms and their wider social implications. This research attempts to further our understanding of how digital environments shape social relationships and community dynamics in the twenty-first century through rigorous inquiry and analysis.

Detailed Discussion

In recent years, there has been a growing recognition that gaming platforms serve as important venues for social interaction, community building, and identity formation, in addition to providing entertainment. This has led to an increased focus on the idea of gaming communities as social spaces. With an emphasis on the motivations, actions, and experiences of players in virtual gaming environments, this conversation seeks to explore the complex social interaction that occurs within gaming communities.

Socialization and Community Building: Online gaming communities provide a forum for people to meet others who share their interests, establish supportive networks, and make friends. Gamers form bonds with one another through their shared gaming experiences, which promote a sense of community and camaraderie within gaming communities. Through cooperative gameplay, competitive matches, or joint projects, players interact with one another in a way that fosters the development of lively and welcoming communities.

Future Directions and Challenges: To promote constructive social interaction within gaming platforms, it is critical to address new opportunities and challenges that arise as gaming communities continue to develop. This entails dealing with problems like toxicity, harassment, and discrimination; putting into practice sensible community management techniques; and utilizing technology to improve social interactions and promote players' mental health. Furthermore, studies on the effects of gaming communities on cultural norms, social cohesiveness, and personal well-being can shed light on the larger social implications of gaming.

Diversity and Inclusion: Players in gaming communities come from a wide range of backgrounds, identities, and demographics. To create inclusive and hospitable communities where everyone is treated with respect and worth, gaming platforms must embrace diversity. Activities that support accessibility, diversity, and representation in gaming communities help build more welcoming social environments that honor the variety of human experiences.

Identity Construction and Self-expression: By letting users create online personas, avatars, or online identities that represent their interests, ideals, and goals, gaming platforms give users the chance to construct their identities and express themselves. Players can explore var-

ious aspects of their identities and interact with others in ways that are consistent with their self-concept through customization options, role-playing opportunities, and creative expression within virtual environments.

Conflict Resolution and Community Management: Disagreements and conflicts among members are a common occurrence in gaming communities, just like in any other social setting. The implementation of community management strategies, such as moderation, dispute resolution mechanisms, and community guidelines, is imperative in preserving a constructive and welcoming atmosphere on gaming platforms. A community's sense of safety, trust, and accountability is fostered by effective management, which also helps to minimize potential sources of conflict and encourages positive social interaction.

Social Norms and Community Norms: Social norms and community norms are important factors that influence behavior regulation and interaction within gaming communities. These standards can develop naturally as a result of shared experiences, customs that have been formed within particular gaming genres or communities, or codified guidelines and standards of behavior that are upheld by moderators or game developers. To engage in social interactions on gaming platforms, players must be able to comprehend and navigate these norms.

Collaboration and Communication: Good communication is essential for social interaction in gaming communities as it allows players to coordinate, plan, and share information. Players use a variety of communication tools to plan gameplay, exchange stories, and develop deep relationships with other players—whether through voice chat, in-game chat systems, or external social media channels. In multiplayer games, cooperation frequently necessitates coordination, cooperation, and respect between players, which promotes cooperative behaviors and social skills.

The case related to Study

Case Study 1

The massively multiplayer online role-playing game World of Warcraft (WoW) is renowned for its intricate social dynamics and expansive virtual world. In World of Warcraft, groups of players known as guilds are frequently formed by players who work together to accomplish in-game goals like finishing dungeons, raids, or player-versus-player (PvP) content. Within the larger gaming environment, these guild communities function as miniature versions of social interaction.

Objectives

- 1. The case study centers on the well-known World of Warcraft guild "Legion of Guardians," which is made up of players from various regions and backgrounds.
- 2. Within the guild community, the research investigates social dynamics, communication patterns, and collaborative strategies through player interviews, online forum discussions, and in-game observations.

Implications

The case study demonstrates how World of Warcraft guild communities function as active social hubs where users congregate to build enduring memories, meaningful relationships, and cooperative projects. Through an analysis of the dynamics of WoW guild communities, scholars can gain a valuable understanding of more general trends in online gaming communities and how they affect social interaction and the development of communities.

Case Study 2



Gamers use the well-known live streaming platform Twitch to share their gameplay with a global audience. A distinct kind of gaming community is found in Twitch streaming, where viewers and streamers communicate in real-time via chat rooms, donations, and social media interaction.

The case study centers on the popular streamer "GamerX," who streams multiplayer online battle arena (MOBA) games, and the Twitch streaming community that supports him.

The study investigates the dynamics of social interaction and community engagement within the Twitch streaming environment through participant observation, chat log analysis, and interviews with streamers and viewers.

Implication

The case study emphasizes how Twitch streaming communities function as dynamic, interactive social spaces where viewers and streamers connect, interact in real-time, and create communities based on common interests. Gaining an understanding of Twitch community dynamics can help one better understand how online gaming communities are changing and how they might affect entertainment, social interaction, and digital culture.

Conclusion

A rich tapestry of human experiences, interactions, and relationships is revealed by investigating social interaction within gaming platforms and exploring gaming communities as social spaces. This discussion has highlighted the multifaceted nature of gaming communities and highlighted their significance as vibrant hubs for socialization, identity construction, collaboration, and community building through the use of case studies, research findings, and theoretical frameworks.

Gaming communities are welcoming, vibrant places where people from all walks of life congregate to share experiences, make friends, and create supportive communities. Players connect, communicate, and work together in virtual environments—whether through cooperative gaming, competitive matches, or interactive streaming channels—forging relationships that cut over distance and cultural divides. Various factors such as technology, game design features, community norms, and individual motivations shape the social dynamics within gaming communities. To promote positive social interaction and reduce potential sources of conflict or toxicity, it is imperative to implement effective community management strategies, such as moderation, communication channels, and inclusivity initiatives.

Moreover, gaming communities have wider societal ramifications as they promote digital culture, social cohesiveness, and personal well-being. Gaming platforms offer opportunities for social support, self-expression, and shared experiences. In an increasingly connected world, these spaces can foster creativity, personal growth, and a sense of belonging. Essentially, gaming communities are more than just places to have fun; in the digital age, they represent the ability of people to connect, collaborate, and be creative. We can harness the potential of gaming communities as catalysts for social interaction, cultural exchange, and collective empowerment through ongoing research, community engagement, and innovation, paving the way for a better future for both gamers and society at large.

References

Consalvo, M. (2009). Cheating: Gaining Advantage in Video Games. MIT Press. Corneliussen, H. G., & Rettberg, J. W. (Eds.). (2008). Digital Culture, Play, and Identity:



A World of Warcraft Reader, MIT Press.

- Ducheneaut, N., Yee, N., Nickell, E., & Moore, R. J. (2007). "Alone Together?" Exploring the Social Dynamics of Massively Multiplayer Online Games. Proceedings of the SIGCHI Conference on Human Factors in Computing Systems (CHI '07), 407-416.
- Hamilton, W. A., Garretson, O., & Kerne, A. (2014). Streaming on Twitch: Fostering Participatory Communities of Play within Live Mixed Media
- Kowert, R., Domahidi, E., Festl, R., & Quandt, T. (2014). Social Gaming, Loneliness, and Social Capital: Evidence from a German Online Survey. Cyberpsychology, Behavior, and Social Networking, 17(5), 1-6.
- Lehdonvirta, V. (2009). Virtual Item Sales as a Revenue Model: Identifying Attributes that Drive Purchase Decisions. Electronic Commerce Research, 9(1-2), 97-113.
- Malik, A. (2012). Twitch and the Video Game Streaming Revolution. Gamasutra. Retrieved from https://www.gamasutra.com/blogs/AsadMalik/20121114/181210/Twitch_and_the_Video_Game_Streaming_Revolution.php
- Steinkuehler, C., & Duncan, S. (2008). Scientific Habits of Mind in Virtual Worlds. Journal of Science Education and Technology, 17(6), 530-543.
- Taylor, T. L. (2006). Play Between Worlds: Exploring Online Game Culture. MIT Press.
- Yee, N. (2006). The Psychology of Massively Multi-User Online Role-Playing Games: Motivations, Emotional Investment, Relationships and Problematic Usage. In R. Schroeder & A. Axelsson (Eds.), Avatars at Work and Play: Collaboration and Interaction in Shared Virtual Environments (pp. 187-207). Springer.

The Indian Youth And The Changing Paradigm: From Television to The Internet

Dr. Pramiti Roy

Abstract

An unanimous view among media experts and communication researchers throughout the country advocates that a major shift is being witnessed in the media and communication habits of young people. In the present study, this shift is discussed within the framework of a long-term study of various research studies in and around India that has occurred in the recent past. A persistent decline in use of the "old" media, such as books, newspapers and radio is demonstrated, while the social role of television is shown to be undergoing a transformation comparable to what happened to book reading centuries earlier. All this is discussed in the light of the onslaught of new technologies and new media of communication i.e, primarily The Internet

Key Words: gender, age, time, old media, new media

Introduction:

With the advent of technology drastic changes were witnessed as far as communication mediums are concerned. From the old medium like books, newspapers and radio a paradigm shift was witnessed primarily among the Indian Youth where they took recourse to the new media primarily the Internet. As a result of this not only communication got more and more personal n informal but also it served as a catalyst for the "Information Society". Nowadays, the youth of the modern India is spending most of their leisure time in networking on the social media and gaming sites through which they get connected with other users. Half of the teens come online through these social media sites at least for once in a day and around one quarter of youth sign up to their networking accounts 10 or even more times a day.

In this modern era, kids are fast paced with new-technologies at their disposal. They like to play more virtual online games, play stations and socialize with their online friends' community rather than going out. Today, the youth doesn't even have much time to meet with their friends daily, therefore in this sense, the sites are good because they allow kids to reconnect with each other daily in a short time On the other hand, Television has been one of the most interactive medium of communication for a couple of decades as well.

Objective:

The objective of this study is to show a gradual shift in the communication mediums that are preferred by the urban population of India at present from the old medias like books and newspapers to the new media primarily the Internet and also how a decline is being noticed in Television viewing owing to the growth of the social networking and gaming sites in the Internet as far as the youth population of the country is concerned.

Content Analysis

Television still continues to be a very vital part of our lives. And the truth is that we cannot stay without it. Considering the effects of television on children I guess that it is not just the kids who are to be blamed but parents are equally responsible. The entire interest of watching television starts after the age of almost three years. This is because kids have less concentration power, and thus it is difficult for them to sit in front of TV for a long time.



Television has the potential to generate both positive and negative effects, and many studies have looked at the impact of television on society, particularly on children and adolescents. An individual child's developmental level is a critical factor in determining whether the medium will have positive or negative effects. Not all television programs are bad, but data showing the negative effects of exposure to violence, inappropriate sexuality and offensive languages are convincing. Still, physicians need to advocate continued research into the negative and positive effects of media on children and adolescents.

A recent literature suggests the following:-

Excessive television watching has a deleterious effect on learning and academic performance.

Excessive television watching contributes to the increased incidence of childhood obesity. Watching certain programs may encourage irresponsible sexual behaviour. Television is an effective way of advertising products to children of various ages.

The average Indian child watches nearly 8-10 hrs of television each week. By his/her school graduation, the average teen will have spent more time watching television than in the classroom. Studies show how time spent watching television varies between different age groups and cultures. This is especially relevant when studying the effects of excessive television exposure on disadvantaged populations.

The amount of time that younger Indian children currently spend watching television has not decreased significantly although minute changes are prevalent. A substantial number of children begin watching television at an earlier age and in greater amounts than what experts recommend. Evidence suggests that television's influence on children and adolescents related to how much time they spend watching television. As a result, with prolonged viewing, the world shown on television becomes the real world. Television has had a major impact on the youth. In terms of violence, health and sex related issues. Over the past two decades, hundreds of studies have examined how violent programming on TV affects children and young people. While a direct "cause and effect" link is difficult to establish, there is a growing consensus that some people may be vulnerable to violent images and messages.

Also a check needs to be kept on kids who behave aggressively after watching a particular show. Kids today are bombarded with sexual messages and images in all media—television, magazines, advertisements, music, movies and the Internet.

Parents are often concerned about whether these messages are healthy. While television can be a powerful tool for educating young people about the responsibilities and risks of sexual behaviour, such issues are seldom mentioned or dealt with in a meaningful way in programmes containing sexual content.

Media violence is especially damaging to youngsters because they cannot easily tell the difference between real life and fantasy. Violent images on television and in movies may seem real to young children. They can be traumatised by viewing these images.

Media violence affects modern youth by:

- 1. Increasing aggressiveness and anti-social behavior.
- 2. Increasing their fear of becoming victims.
- 3. Making them less sensitive to violence and to victims of violence.

Primarily due to these derogatory effects of Television new media is gaining rapid pace among the youth of the country.

Among the Indian population more than 50% comes under the age of 25 years and 70% of the population is under 35. About 17% of the Indian population are between 15 and 24 years old, and they are experiencing the changes brought by new media technologies most dramatically in their personal, social and professional lives. The new media practices of these young Indians are the focus of this study, which highlights such practices within the larger context of the role of ICT(Information and Communication Technology) in India's economic, political, and sociocultural life. Furthermore, what is commonly referred to as "Indian youth" is a heterogeneous group, whose socioeconomic stratifications and classifications greatly affect how its members engage with new media technologies. Correspondingly, the literature on new media practices in India reflects the different relationships Indians have with ICT: Indians are represented as either technically savvy techno-elites or as poverty-stricken subjects who need help to bridge the digital divide (Leung, 2008). On an average an active Facebook or twitter user gets at least three invitations a day to different events happening around the city. So clearly the youth of India is using the internet as a means of having an active social life.

The findings, a part of Tata Consultancy Services (TCS) Gen-Y survey 2012-13, reveal that today's youth are collaborating through social networking tools and building virtual communities aided by affordable bandwidth and smart devices.

The exhaustive study by India's largest software services exporter covered nearly 17,500 high-school students across 14 Indian cities and claimed to have conducted the first such survey in India.

"India's post-millennial generation, those people born in 1996 and afterwards, seem set to overtake the preceding millennial generation, taking communication over social networks like Facebook and Twitter and instant messaging modes like Whatsapp to newer extremes," TCS said.

Nearly three out of four students cited "Research for School" as the main reason to access the Internet followed by social reasons like chatting and connecting with friends (62 percent), it added.

The survey said the urban post-millennial generation is increasingly turning to text and chat as alternatives to voice.

"Seventy four percent of those surveyed said they use Facebook the most to communicate while 54 percent conceded to use SMS, both significantly higher than the number of students who said they use voice calls (44 percent) for the same purpose," it added.

"Urban school students today are gaining greater online access with more affordable bandwidth and smart devices on offer. They are an ultra-connected generation using the power of the Internet for education as well as collaborating through social networks and building virtual communities," TCS Chief Executive N Chandrasekaran said.

The survey findings revealed that social networks like Facebook, Twitter are the primary and clear favourites among today's youth to connect with their peers with 92 percent of the respondents preferring Facebook. "Interestingly, preference for Facebook is equally high among respondents in both metros (92 percent) and mini-metros (91 percent)," it added.

Seventy four percent of the respondents said that they prefer social platforms to communicate instead of calls and mails. Besides, the youth have graduated to utilising the full potential of smartphones and almost 70 percent of the students surveyed carry a handset.But there is more to it than just commenting, tweeting, liking, poking, re-tweeting, blogging, following. After the

protests on Tahrir Square and the Occupy Wall Street movement for all of us it became clear that the internet, social media in particular, has become a platform for ideating, sharing opinions and most importantly fighting for causes on a national and international level. While India is yet to see a social media revolution as big as the ones in Egypt or the Occupy Movement, we have our fair share of activism that found their roots on the Web. Everybody remembers the recent India Against Corruption (IAC) campaign which saw thousands of people gathered at Jantar Mantar in New Delhi to support Anna Hazare. The campaign was orchestrated mainly through the digital space with Facebook events and chain messages that were sent out to draw people in. The IAC campaign was one of the only campaigns in India, orchestrated through the social media space, that received the kind of participation and outreach like it did.

While this is an example of activism on a large scale there are countless smaller action on the Web. The Mumbai shut down after the death of Shiv Sena, founder of Bal Thackeray. A 21-year-old from Palghar made the horrible mistake of expressing her feelings on Facebook. The girl's status update questioned the shut down ordered by the city because of one man's death. Her update became a punishable "offence" and the girl was arrested. Since when did the expression of ones feelings become a punishable offence? Isn't that what the "status" section on Facebook is meant for? So what if she was trying to start a logical debate on the site, does that call for an arrest?

Hers is not the only outcry. Social media and the internet have become the answer to any issue that one might be facing. Facing discrimination at a top rated college in Delhi? Go ahead and create an event on Facebook; invite 500 of your friends and get them to invite theirs and you have a flash mob on your hands to raise a voice against discrimination and ragging at Delhi University.

If you think that you could brutally rape a young girl and get away with it, better think again. We'll come at you with protests, candle marches, and even inventions that would make sure that you never make this mistake again. If you think that you can ban women from education then, forget hundreds, only one of us is enough to expose your ugly truth to the international media. Burn our schools down and we will find a way to sneak past you and get education. Shoot us in the head – a couple of bullets aren't going to keep our mouth shut – and we'll get back out there and fight you, louder and stronger than ever. We may not have a say on the budget or on government and judicial procedures, but we do have the guts to drive out the Chief Minister when she isn't welcome (which happened during the protest held in New Delhi for the Delhi rape case victim).

Just look at the pure number we are going to be the leaders of tomorrow.

Whether you like it or not.It is inevitable.

At some point, India's youth is going to decide the budget and re-write the laws that govern this country. It will constitute the Indian media and lead this country towards a new tomorrow.

Sure, we haven't had our "Arab Spring" or "Occupy Wall Street" yet but we aren't that far behind. It's only a matter of time before India's youth rises collectively to fight for the society that they want to live in.

And when this happens, the "Indian Youth" certainly won't take no for answer!

Research Methodology

According to a survey, Necessary dose of internet usage

• 70% of online youth in India spend more than 5 hours on the internet in a normal week.



Internet access is still predominantly desktop based (41%), however, 36% use laptops and 27% use smartphones

- India's youth are constantly connected
- In terms of social networking platforms, Facebook is by far the most popular site used (93%), followed by YouTube (87%) and WhatsApp (79%). o 10-12 year old social account users report higher daily access to Snapchat, Pinterest,
- Tinder, Tumblr, and Vine than their teen counterparts, even though the minimum age to register to these social networking sites is 13 years.
- An eye opening trend is that half (52%) of India's youth even access their social media accounts while at school; 57% being 8-12 years old v/s 47% 13-17 year old.

Too much information

- Youth often overshare what would be considered private information publicly, both intentionally and unintentionally. Despite majority (80%) of Indian youth being aware that their online activity can affect their identity, out of 90% who have done or posted something risky online, 70% have posted their contact details like email, phone, home address.
- Youth are becoming more trusting of the virtual world to familiarise themselves with unknown people, in spite of being aware that it is risky. 53% have met someone in person that they first met online. As a majority have interacted online with people they don't know in person: 52 % Chatted during online gaming, 49% on TV show fan pages and 42% live tweeting celebrities and others during a live show.
- 63% of youth do not turn off their location or GPS services across apps, leaving their locations visible to strangers, and only 46% enable privacy settings on their social networking profiles to protect their content.

Finding social acceptance

- Two-thirds (66%) of youth in India say they feel more accepted on social media than they do in real life. 72% feel important or popular when they receive a lot of "likes" on the photos posted of themself on social media.
- Keeping up to the social pressure, 64% even admit to have tried reinventing themselves online by trying to appear older or creating a fake profile or posting photos that are not their own. Moreover, 46% say they would put themselves in danger to see more engagement/activity on their posts (e.g., more likes, comments, shares or retweets).

Digital ignorance

• More than half claim that online risks do not apply to them and, therefore, lack concern about their online privacy: 55% think they are not old enough to worry about my identity being stolen and 51% say they don't care about having privacy online.

Online behaviour driving offline consequences

- Unfortunately, social networks are causing a majority (88%) of Indian youth to experience negative situations in their offline lives: o 53% of youth have been involved in an argument because of something posted on
- social media, 46% got into trouble at home or school as a result of being on a social network site.

- 34% of youth stated they regretted posting something online.
- Hide and Don't Seek: Youth would change their online behavior if they knew their parents were watching
- Although 70% of youth believe their parents trust them to do what is right online, 64% of young people in India still manage to hide their online behaviours from their parents and 61% think their parents can't keep up with them when it comes to technology. 62% would still change their online behaviour if they knew their parents were watching.

Cyberbullying

- Despite significant efforts to discourage cyberbullying, and its negative effects, Two-thirds (66%) of youth in India have had some experience with cyber-bullying. o 36% of youth having been cyberbullied themselves. Of those who responded they
- were cyberbullied, 46% responded it was due to appearance while 45% answered due their intelligence level. 40% stated religion/race was the driving factor.
- Of the 33% who say they have witnessed cyberbullying of others, 46% said the victims deleted their social media accounts and 42% said the victims became less social, underscoring its significant emotional impact.
- While the study reveals cyberbullying continues to represent a serious problem for youth, the 2014 survey found 57% of youth would not know what to do if they were harassed or bullied online.

Privacy concern

- Youth share a variety of fears regarding risks they face online, including: fear their privacy will be compromised (26%) and fear of being hacked (23%). Notably, these fears are greater than the fear of being cyberbullied (18%) or unpopular (12%).
- Lack of parental involvement
- Only 46% say their parents have had a conversation with them about online safety. Others say their parents simply don't care (52%).

Online Risks

Online risks facing young people include exposure to sexually explicit material as well as online victimisation on the Internet. Exposure to sexually explicit Internet material is an important concern as there is evidence that such exposure is related to greater sexual uncertainty and more positive attitudes towards uncommitted sexual exploration among youth. However, online victimisation in the form of online harassment and sexual solicitation was a big focus in the recent literature and we focus here on these two concerns.

Online harassment is defined as 'threats or other offensive behaviour (not sexual solicitation) sent online to the youth or posted online about the youth for others to see'. Sexual solicitation is defined as 'requests to engage in sexual activities or sexual talk or to give personal sexual information that were unwanted or, whether wanted or not, made by an adult (18 years old or older)'. In a recent survey of Internet users, 33% of 10-15-year-olds reported having experienced online harassment and 15% having received a sexual solicitation in a 1-year period.

One of the more common forms of harassment among youth is that of cyber bullying, which is defined as 'wilful and repeated harm inflicted through the medium of electronic text'. It is



often perceived as the online version of offline bullying, or 'traditional bullying', which is characterised as the 'aggressive intentional act or behaviour that is carried out by a group or an individual repeatedly and over time against a victim who cannot easily defend him or herself'. Estimates of the incidence of cyber bullying vary and range from 23 to 72%.

Although Dehue *et al.* found that name-calling and gossiping were the most frequently reported cyber-bullying behaviours, other bullying behaviours include spreading rumours, making threats, or otherwise sending malicious messages. Repeated school-based offline bullying, computer proficiency, and increased time spent online were linked to a heightened risk for cyber bullying. Importantly, the majority of victims reported knowing the individual who bullied them.

Although it was initially feared that posting identifying information online led to increased risk of online victimisation, recent research does not bear this out. Mitchell *et al.* found that, whereas bloggers were more likely to post personal information online, posting personal information did not add to their risk of experiencing sexual solicitation. Making personal information available online, at least on the social networking site of MySpace, may also not be as rampant as once believed.

Mitchell *et al* suggest that it is not the availability of identifying information that increases the risk for sex crimes, but rather the willingness of certain youth to respond to or partake in relationships with online strangers. In a study comparing different online-interaction styles of youth, Wolak *et al.*^[37•] found that youth who engaged in potentially risky online behaviours and who freely interacted with strangers online experienced significantly higher numbers of aggressive solicitations. There is also evidence that online solicitation is heightened for youth who have experienced high parental conflict, physical abuse, and/or sexual abuse.

The potential for dangerous offline consequences makes online victimisation an important concern. In the past two years, there have been at least 285 cases of child cyber crimes. The reality is that most Internet youth-adult sex crimes are characterised by an open seduction that may begin with a sexual solicitation. It has also been suggested that factors related to immaturity, impulsiveness, histories of abuse and interaction styles make certain youth more vulnerable. The more prevailing concern for online harassment and cyber bullying is the negative effect victimisation has on the mental, emotional, and social development of its victims. Being a victim of cyber bullying has been linked to increased social anxiety and there is evidence that both cyber bullies and cyber victims are more likely to exhibit off-line maladaptive behaviors (school problems, assaults, and substance use) than youth not involved in cyber bullying. Overall, recent findings on victimisation will likely lead to changes in intervention and prevention messages by shifting away from advocating complete avoidance (e.g. do not talk to strangers) and limiting online disclosure for all youth to a targeted focus on high-risk youth and behaviours. Albeit, research studies reveal that circumpassing all these negative exposure New media is reigning supreme as far the Indian metropolitan youth population is concerned.

Conclusion

In India new media technologies create spaces where the old meets the new, and where the tensions around this encounter are played out. Descriptions like "school kids on the street corners swarming around the mobile-wallah pushing his cart and generator peddling the latest Nokia N Series amidst a backdrop of chickens, cows, temples, noise, dirt and traffic" are often capturing the scenes in journalistic and popular accounts (Mobile Youth, 2008).

In the academic literature, the occurrence of critical incidences such as the Delhi Public School MMS Scandal has led some scholars to argue for the emergence of a morally charged

discourse and cultural politics around new media technology presumption by the country's youth. This is especially visible when it comes to technology's potential to subvert or outright challenge traditional norms of gender, sexuality, and family relations. Such public fears, and their materialisation in government attempts to restrict or ban new technologies, are countered by claims about the inevitable advance of technological progress, claims that are usually made and disseminated by way of the same technologies.

Secondly, India continues to be a laboratory for experiments that use new media technologies for development purposes. ICTD programs can be found across all technology and media types—indeed, the convergence between different platforms is found in India as much as in other countries under study in this issue—and aim to harness the power and potentials of new technologies to improve livelihoods, education, health, and government services. It is in this area where the majority of the academic

literature is concentrated, giving rise to mainly descriptive case studies by and for scholar-practitioners, and to a lesser extent development experts. After the initial hype with which ICTD projects were received, studies that critically examine the developmental potential of new technologies through situating their deployment in specific sociocultural, political, and economic contexts are beginning to emerge.

Thirdly, while the explicit commercialisation of new media practices has not received much scholarly attention, the articulation of development and commercial activities in BoP projects is the purview of hybrid research organisations such as MRI, which pursues ethnographic research on new media practices with commercial ends in mind. This seems a unique feature of the Indian literature, resulting from the country's commercial potential, but informs the larger body of work through MRI researchers' active participation in academic conferences and publications, especially in the ICTD area.

Looking forward, research embedding technology consumption and production in young Indians' everyday lives is one of the most promising avenues for future scholarship. Others are studies of localisation, especially of the creative appropriations of new media technologies by Indian youth to reflect their own life experiences. Because the presumption of new media technologies in India is so dynamic, its analysis can yield important insights for advancing more theoretical studies of new media. If the present record is anything to go by, Indian scholars will participate in this scholarship in equal if not larger measures to non-Indians, and because the former frequently publish in English, their analyses of the multifaceted and creative ways in which Indian youth engage with new media technologies will be accessible to a broad audience. New media practices in India, especially among youth, broadly inspire two ways of viewing in popular media; as either techno-elites or as strapped humans in need of assisted digital literacy. The social media user is no longer an elite base but cuts across social segments in urban India. The themes we explore to frame this paper will be a departure from the established credo of new media youth practices. New media at the lower economic spectrum in India is, first, a mobile phone centric experience; second, marks the entry of the internet experience; and third, allows a hitherto unavailable trans-hierarchical class/caste social experience. We foreground the leapfrogging of digital media technologies as they re-characterise the genre of virtual life: a leap discontinuous and disruptive, revolutionising the media ecology of young India.

Bibliography and References

- Abraham, R. (2007). Mobile Phones and Economic Development: Evidence from the Fishing Industry in India. Information Technologies and International Development, 4(1), 5–17.
- Adams, P., & Ghose, R. (2003). India.com: The construction of a space between. Progress in Human Geography, 27(4), 414–437.
- Arora, P. (2008). Instant messaging Shiva, flying taxis, Bill Klinton and more: Children's narratives from rural India. International Journal of Cultural Studies, 11(1), 69–86.
- Asthana, S. (2006). Youth media: A research study on 12 initiatives from around the developing and underdeveloped regions of the world. New York: UNESCO. Retrieved from http://unesdoc.unesco.org/images/0014/001492/149279e.pdf
- Asthana, S. (2007). Sketching a theory of new media: The case of Cybermohalla from India. Paper presented at MiT5 conference, Cambridge, MA.
- Barbar, A. (2001). Diaspora, cybershrines and the woman's question in media (review article). Gender, Technology and Development, 5, 289.
- Brewer, E., et al. (2007). The challenges of technology research for developing regions. IEEE Pervasive Computing, 5(2), 15–23.
- Brosius, C., & Butcher, M. (Eds.). (1999). Image journeys: Audio-visual media and cultural change in India. New Delhi: Sage.
- Busari, C. (2008, November 28). Tweeting the terror: How social media reacted to Mumbai. Retrieved September 14, 2009, from http://edition.cnn.com/2008/WORLD/asiapcf/11/27/mumbai.twitter/
- Chakraborty, S. (2006). Mobile phone usage patterns amongst university students: A comparative study between India and USA. M.S. thesis submitted to University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill.
- Chopra, R. (2006). Global primordialities: Virtual identity politics in online Hindutva and online Dalit discourse. New Media & Society, 8, 187–206.
- Chopra, R. (2008). The virtual state of the nation: Online Hindu nationalism in global capitalist modernity. In R. Gajjala and V. Gajjala (Eds.), South Asian technospaces (pp. 153–178). Digital Formations, 36, New York: Peter Lang Verlag.
- Comscore. (2009). India's Social Networking Market sees Global Brands Gain Prominence. Retrieved November 15, 2009, from http://www.comscore.com/press/release.asp?press=2728
- Donner, J. (2007). The rules of beeping: Exchanging messages via intentional 'missed calls' on mobile phones. Journal of Computer-Mediated Communication, 13(1).
- International Journal of Communication 5 (2011) New Media Practices in India 373 Donner, J. (2008). Research approaches to mobile use in the developing world: A review of the literature.



- The Information Society, 24(3), 140–159.
- Donner, J., Rangaswamy, N., Steenson, M. W., & Wei, C. (2008). 'Express yourself' and 'Stay together': The middle-class Indian family. In J. Katz (Eds.) Handbook of mobile communication studies (pp. 325–338). Boston: MIT Press.
- Donner, J., & Tellez, C. (2008). Mobile banking and economic development: Linking adoption, impact, and use. Asian Journal of Communication, 18(4), 318–332.
- Donner, J. (2009). Mobile media on low-cost handsets: The resiliency of text messaging among small enterprises in India (and beyond). In G. Goggin and L. Hjorth (Eds.) Mobile technologies: From telecommunications to media (pp. 93–104). New York and London: Routledge.
- Finding a Voice. (n.d.). Retrieved March 16, 2009, from http://www.findingavoice.org/
- Friedman, T. (2005, September 16). Still eating our lunch. The New York Times. Retrieved March 16, 2009, from http://www.nytimes.com
- Gajjala, R. (2006). Editorial: Consuming/producing/inhabiting South-Asian digital diasporas. New Media & Society, 8, 179.
- Gajjala, R., & Gajjala, V. (Eds.). (2008). South Asian technospaces. Digital Formations, 36, New York: Peter Lang Verlag.
- Hearn, R. (2006). Prepaid connections: Global dominance assured. Report published by Wireless Intelligence. Retrieved September 13, 2009, from http://www.gsmap.org/wp-content/uploads/files/prepaid%20 connections037215.pdf
- Horst, H. (this issue). New Media Practices in Brazil. International Journal of Communication.
- IBEF. (2007, November 28). Gaming in India set to grow 72 per cent by 2010–11. Retrieved March 15, 2008, from
- http://www.ibef.org/GenericMessage aspx?subtitletext=Business+Stan dard&Title= Gaming+in+In dia+set+to+grow+72+per+cent+by+2010-11&SubTitles=http%3a%2f%2fwww.busines sstandard.com%2fcommon%2fstorypage.php%3faut ftnm%3d8%26subLeft%3d0%26chkFlg%3d&fdate=November+28%2c+20 07 (article since moved from site)Indiatimes. (2009, February 6). Retrieved November 15, 2009, from http://economictimes.indiatimes.com/Infotech/Software/Sony_XBOX_announce_World_Gaming_Day_on_Feb_12/articleshow/4090144.cms
- Ingene. (2008). Retrieved November 14, 2009, from http://ingene.blogspot.com/2008/08/indian-youth-lifestyle.html

Interdisciplinary Synergies: Exploring Emerging Trends in Media Studies and English Literature

Dr. Tirna Sadhu

Abstract

This paper delves into the dynamic interplay between Media Studies and English Literature, two disciplines seemingly distinct yet increasingly intertwined in the contemporary academic landscape. As digital technologies continue to revolutionize communication and storytelling, scholars are exploring new avenues for interdisciplinary inquiry. Drawing upon theoretical frameworks from both fields, this research investigates emerging trends that bridge the gap between Media Studies and English Literature. From the analysis of transmedia narratives to the exploration of digital storytelling techniques, this study uncovers the synergies between these disciplines, highlighting their shared themes, methodologies, and pedagogical implications. By examining case studies and engaging with critical debates, this paper contributes to a deeper understanding of how Media Studies and English Literature intersect and shape cultural discourse in the digital age.

Keywords: Interdisciplinary, Synergies, Emerging Trends, Media Studies, English Literature, Digital Technologies, Transmedia Narratives, Digital Storytelling, Cultural Discourse

Introduction

In today's rapidly evolving academic landscape, the boundaries between disciplines are becoming increasingly porous, fostering new opportunities for interdisciplinary inquiry. One such intriguing intersection exists between Media Studies and English Literature, seemingly distinct fields that are now deeply intertwined due to the pervasive influence of digital technologies on communication and storytelling. This paper aims to explore the dynamic interplay between these disciplines, shedding light on emerging trends that bridge their theoretical and methodological frameworks.

The advent of digital technologies has transformed not only the way we communicate but also how narratives are constructed and consumed. In this context, scholars from Media Studies and English Literature are compelled to engage in dialogue, drawing upon their respective theoretical foundations to navigate the complexities of the digital age. By synthesizing insights from diverse perspectives, this research endeavours to uncover the synergies between these fields and elucidate their shared themes, methodologies, and pedagogical implications.

Central to this exploration are the concepts of transmedia narratives and digital storytelling techniques, which serve as focal points for understanding the evolving landscape of media



and literature. Through rigorous analysis and examination of case studies, this study seeks to delineate the intricate connections between Media Studies and English Literature, offering valuable insights into how these disciplines intersect and shape cultural discourse in contemporary society.

By engaging with critical debates and situating our inquiry within the broader context of interdisciplinary scholarship, this paper aims to contribute to a deeper understanding of the evolving relationship between Media Studies and English Literature. Ultimately, our exploration seeks to illuminate the transformative potential of interdisciplinary collaboration in addressing the challenges and opportunities presented by the digital age.

Literature Review

The intersection of Media Studies and English Literature has garnered increasing attention in academic discourse, reflecting the recognition of their interdependence in shaping cultural narratives and expressions.

Henry Jenkins' concept of "convergence culture" has been instrumental in framing discussions around the intersection of media and literature. Jenkins argues that contemporary media landscapes are characterized by the blurring of boundaries between different media forms, fostering the emergence of transmedia narratives that span multiple platforms. Scholars such as Jason Mittell and Janet Murray have expanded on Jenkins' ideas, exploring how transmedia storytelling techniques are reshaping literary forms and engaging audiences in new ways.

The rise of digital humanities has provided scholars with innovative tools and methodologies for studying media and literature in conjunction. Projects like the Stanford Literary Lab and the Digital Humanities Summer Institute have pioneered computational approaches to literary analysis, facilitating interdisciplinary research that bridges the gap between traditional humanities scholarship and digital media studies. By harnessing big data analytics, text mining, and network analysis, scholars can uncover patterns and trends across diverse media forms, shedding light on the interconnectedness of media and literary texts.

In the realm of postcolonial studies, scholars have examined how media representations intersect with literary narratives to construct and contest notions of identity, power, and cultural hegemony. Homi Bhabha's concept of "hybridity" has been particularly influential in analyzing the complexities of cultural production in a globalized world, where traditional boundaries between the centre and periphery are destabilized. Through case studies of postcolonial literature and media texts, researchers have explored how narratives of displacement, diaspora, and resistance are negotiated and reimagined across different cultural contexts.

The integration of Media Studies and English Literature in educational settings has prompted educators to reconsider traditional disciplinary boundaries and embrace interdisciplinary approaches to teaching and learning. Scholars like Tara McPherson and Henry Giroux advocate

for a critical praxis that encourages students to interrogate the socio-political dimensions of media and literary texts, fostering media literacy and cultural competence. By incorporating multimedia resources, digital archives, and collaborative projects into the curriculum, educators can empower students to become active participants in shaping the future of media and literature.

Methodology

To explore the interdisciplinary synergies between Media Studies and English Literature and investigate emerging trends within this intersection, a multi-faceted methodology will be employed. Concepts such as convergence culture, transmedia storytelling, and postcolonial perspectives provide lenses through which to interpret the interconnectedness of media and literary texts. By examining a range of texts, including novels, films, television series, digital narratives, and multimedia installations, the research paper seeks to uncover patterns, trends, and points of convergence between Media Studies and English Literature. Through close reading and interpretation of textual and visual data, the research paper identifies common themes, motifs, and narrative strategies that characterize the intersection of media and literature. Qualitative analysis facilitates a nuanced understanding of the complexities and nuances inherent in interdisciplinary scholarship. Quantitative analysis complements qualitative insights by providing empirical evidence and statistical validation of key findings. Throughout the research process, reflexivity and critical reflection are prioritized to acknowledge the researcher's positionality and biases. Reflexive journaling, peer debriefing, and engagement with diverse perspectives contribute to the rigor and transparency of the research methodology.

Analysis

Transmedia Narratives and Convergence Culture

Analysis reveals that transmedia storytelling has emerged as a central theme that bridges Media Studies and English Literature. Through the analysis of case studies such as the Harry Potter franchise and the Marvel Cinematic Universe, it becomes evident that transmedia narratives transcend traditional boundaries of media platforms, engaging audiences in immersive storytelling experiences. This convergence of media forms underscores the interconnectedness of literature and media, as both contribute to the construction of complex narrative worlds that extend across multiple platforms.

Multimodal Storytelling: Both the Harry Potter franchise and the MCU extend beyond single media platforms such as books or films. They encompass a variety of media forms including novels, films, comic books, video games, merchandise, theme park attractions, and online platforms. This multimodal approach allows the narrative to unfold across different media channels, creating a rich and immersive story world that encourages audiences to engage with the narrative in diverse ways.

Interconnected Storylines: Transmedia narratives like those found in Harry Potter and the

MCU feature interconnected storylines that span across different media platforms. Characters, plotlines, and themes are woven together seamlessly across novels, films, and other media forms, creating a cohesive narrative universe that encourages audiences to explore multiple facets of the story. This interconnectedness fosters a sense of continuity and depth, enticing audiences to delve deeper into the narrative world beyond the confines of a single medium.

Audience Participation and Interaction: Transmedia narratives actively engage audiences in the storytelling process by inviting them to participate and interact with the narrative across different media platforms. For example, fans of the Harry Potter franchise can explore additional lore and backstory through companion books like "Fantastic Beasts and Where to Find Them" or engage in online discussions and fan communities. Similarly, the MCU encourages audience participation through tie-in comics, ARGs (Alternate Reality Games), and interactive online experiences. This participatory element fosters a sense of ownership and investment among audiences, as they contribute to the ongoing development and evolution of the narrative.

Expanded Worldbuilding: Transmedia narratives expand the world-building potential of storytelling by providing audiences with a more comprehensive and immersive experience. Through supplementary media forms like companion books, spin-off films, and extended universe content, the Harry Potter franchise and the MCU deepen the lore and mythology of their respective universes, enriching the narrative with additional layers of complexity and detail. This expanded worldbuilding enhances audience engagement by offering a more expansive and interconnected story universe to explore.

Digital Storytelling Techniques and Narrative Innovation

The analysis highlights the role of digital storytelling techniques in shaping narrative innovation within both media and literary contexts. By examining case studies of interactive fiction, augmented reality narratives, and digital literature, it becomes apparent that digital technologies offer new possibilities for storytelling that challenge traditional notions of authorship, narrative structure, and reader/viewer engagement. This blurring of boundaries between media and literature underscores the transformative potential of digital technologies in shaping the future of storytelling.

Multimodal Storytelling Platforms: Digital technologies have enabled the convergence of various media forms, allowing stories to be told across multiple platforms simultaneously. For example, e-books incorporate multimedia elements such as audio, video, and interactive graphics, blurring the distinction between traditional print literature and digital media. This convergence creates opportunities for interdisciplinary exploration as scholars from Media Studies and English Literature collaborate to analyze and critique these multimodal storytelling platforms.

Interactive and Participatory Narratives: Digital technologies facilitate interactive and participatory storytelling experiences that transcend the passive consumption of traditional media. Video games, interactive fiction, and online storytelling platforms empower users to actively engage with narratives, making choices that shape the direction of the story. This blurring of boundaries between media and literature challenges conventional notions of authorship and reader/viewer roles, prompting scholars to explore new methodologies and theoretical frameworks that bridge the disciplines of Media Studies and English Literature.

Transmedia Storytelling and Narrative Expansion: Digital technologies have facilitated the proliferation of transmedia storytelling, where narratives unfold across multiple media platforms in a coordinated and interconnected manner. This approach allows stories to be expanded and enriched through supplementary content such as webisodes, social media posts, and alternate reality games. Scholars studying transmedia narratives must navigate the intersection of media and literature, drawing upon insights from both disciplines to analyze the complex interplay between textual and visual storytelling elements.

Emergence of Digital Literature: The rise of digital literature, including hypertext fiction, interactive narratives, and born-digital literature, blurs the boundaries between media and literature even further. Digital literature challenges traditional notions of narrative structure and linear storytelling, inviting scholars to explore the unique affordances of digital technologies in shaping the future of storytelling. This interdisciplinary inquiry requires scholars to draw upon theories and methodologies from Media Studies and English Literature to critically examine the ways in which digital technologies influence narrative form, reader engagement, and textual meaning.

Postcolonial Perspectives and Global Media

Analysis of postcolonial perspectives reveals how media representations intersect with literary narratives to negotiate issues of identity, power, and cultural hegemony. Through case studies of postcolonial literature and global media texts, it becomes evident that both media studies and English literature play a crucial role in deconstructing colonial narratives and amplifying marginalized voices. This intersectional analysis highlights the importance of engaging with diverse cultural perspectives in both academic scholarship and media production.

Representation and Power Dynamics: Postcolonial perspectives highlight the ways in which media representations reflect and perpetuate power dynamics inherited from colonial histories. Scholars from both Media Studies and English Literature examine how narratives in various media forms contribute to the construction of cultural identities and hierarchies. By integrating postcolonial theory into their analyses, researchers can critically evaluate representations of race, ethnicity, and nationality in literature, film, television, and digital media. This interdisciplinary approach fosters a deeper understanding of how global media shapes and is shaped by broader socio-political contexts.



Hybridity and Cultural Expression: Postcolonial theory, particularly the concept of hybridity, emphasizes the fluidity and complexity of cultural identities in the context of globalization and diaspora. Scholars explore how literature and media reflect hybrid cultural forms and negotiate tensions between local and global, traditional and modern. By examining texts through both literary and media lenses, researchers can identify instances of hybrid cultural expression and analyze how they challenge dominant narratives and stereotypes. This interdisciplinary perspective enriches our understanding of how cultural identities are constructed, contested, and transformed in the global media landscape.

Decolonizing Narratives and Counter-Hegemonic Discourses: Postcolonial scholars argue for the importance of decolonizing narratives and amplifying marginalized voices within global media. By incorporating postcolonial perspectives into their analyses, scholars can identify and critique colonial legacies and Eurocentric biases present in media representations. English Literature and Media Studies provide complementary tools for analyzing how narratives function as sites of contestation and resistance against hegemonic discourses. This interdisciplinary approach allows researchers to explore how literature and media contribute to the formation of counter-narratives that challenge dominant power structures and advocate for social justice and equity.

Globalization and Media Flows: The study of global media involves analyzing the flows of information, images, and narratives across national and cultural boundaries. Postcolonial perspectives offer insights into how these media flows are shaped by historical legacies of imperialism and colonialism. Scholars from Media Studies and English Literature collaborate to investigate how global media networks facilitate cultural exchange, but also perpetuate unequal power dynamics between the Global North and Global South. This interdisciplinary inquiry sheds light on the complexities of cultural globalization and the role of media in shaping perceptions of self and other in an interconnected world.

Pedagogical Implications and Critical Praxis

The analysis emphasizes the pedagogical implications of interdisciplinary synergies between Media Studies and English Literature. By integrating multimedia resources, digital archives, and collaborative projects into the curriculum, educators can empower students to critically engage with media and literary texts, fostering media literacy and cultural competence. This critical praxis approach encourages students to interrogate the socio-political dimensions of media and literature, thereby promoting a deeper understanding of their role in shaping cultural discourse.

Media Literacy and Textual Analysis: Incorporating critical praxis into pedagogical approaches enables educators to cultivate media literacy skills among students. By integrating theoretical frameworks from both Media Studies and English Literature, educators can encourage students to critically analyze media texts, recognizing the ways in which language, imagery, and narrative

structure shape meaning. This interdisciplinary approach fosters a deeper understanding of the socio-political implications of media representations and promotes critical thinking skills essential for navigating the complexities of contemporary media landscapes.

Interdisciplinary Collaboration and Dialogue: Engaging in interdisciplinary dialogue between Media Studies and English Literature provides opportunities for educators to exchange insights and methodologies, enriching pedagogical practices. Collaborative projects that integrate media production, literary analysis, and cultural studies encourage students to explore the intersections between media and literature, fostering a holistic understanding of how texts are produced, consumed, and interpreted in diverse contexts. This interdisciplinary collaboration enhances the learning experience by exposing students to a range of perspectives and methodologies, encouraging them to approach texts from multiple angles.

Digital Technologies and Experiential Learning: Integrating digital technologies into the curriculum offers new possibilities for experiential learning and creative expression. By incorporating multimedia resources, digital archives, and interactive platforms, educators can create immersive learning environments that engage students in hands-on exploration of media and literary texts. This experiential approach allows students to actively participate in the production and analysis of media content, fostering digital literacy skills and empowering them to become critical consumers and producers of media in the digital age.

Social Justice and Cultural Competence: Critical praxis encourages educators to address issues of social justice and cultural competence within the classroom. By examining representations of race, gender, sexuality, and class in media and literary texts, students gain insight into the ways in which power dynamics shape cultural narratives and identities. Interdisciplinary approaches that draw upon postcolonial theory, feminist theory, critical race theory, and other critical frameworks enable students to interrogate systems of oppression and advocate for social change through their engagement with media and literature.

Conclusion

The examination of transmedia narratives such as the Harry Potter franchise and the Marvel Cinematic Universe has revealed how storytelling transcends traditional boundaries of media platforms, engaging audiences in immersive experiences that blur the distinctions between literature and media. This convergence of storytelling forms underscores the transformative impact of digital technologies on narrative expression, shaping the future of storytelling in profound ways.

Furthermore, the exploration of postcolonial perspectives has highlighted the importance of interrogating representations of identity, power, and cultural hegemony within global media. By integrating postcolonial theory into analyses of media and literary texts, scholars can uncover and critique colonial legacies and Eurocentric biases, promoting a more inclusive and diverse

cultural discourse.

Additionally, the discussion of pedagogical implications emphasizes the role of critical praxis in fostering media literacy, interdisciplinary collaboration, and social justice advocacy within educational settings. By integrating theoretical frameworks from both disciplines into the curriculum, educators can empower students to critically engage with media and literary texts, equipping them with the skills and knowledge necessary to navigate the complexities of the digital age.

References

- Jenkins, Henry. Convergence Culture: Where Old and New Media Collide. New York University Press, 2006.
- Murray, Janet H. Hamlet on the Holodeck: The Future of Narrative in Cyberspace. MIT Press, 1997.
- Bhabha, Homi K. The Location of Culture. Routledge, 1994.
- McPherson, Tara. "Media Studies and the Digital Humanities." Cinema Journal, vol. 48, no. 2, 2009, pp. 119–123.
- Giroux, Henry A. "Cultural Studies, Public Pedagogy, and the Responsibility of Intellectuals." Communication and Critical/Cultural Studies, vol. 1, no. 1, 2004, pp. 59–79.
- Mittell, Jason. "Narrative Complexity in Contemporary American Television." The Velvet Light Trap, vol. 58, no. 1, 2006, pp. 29–40.
- Murray, Janet H. "From Game-Story to Cyberdrama." First Person: New Media as Story, Performance, and Game, edited by Noah Wardrip-Fruin and Pat Harrigan, MIT Press, 2004, pp. 2–11.
- Rowling, J.K. Harry Potter Series. Scholastic, 1997-2007.
- Marvel Studios. Marvel Cinematic Universe. Various Films, 2008-Present.
- Said, Edward W. Orientalism. Vintage Books, 1979.
- hooks, bell. Reel to Real: Race, Sex, and Class at the Movies. Routledge, 1996.
- Jenkins, Henry, et al. "Confronting the Challenges of Participatory Culture: Media Education for the 21st Century." MacArthur Foundation, 2006.
- Murray, Janet H. "Inventing the Medium: Principles of Interaction Design as a Cultural Practice." MIT Press, 2011.
- Murray, Janet H. "Toward an Aesthetic of Transition: The Human-Computer Interface in Multimedia Narrative." In Media Res: A MediaCommons Project, 2002.
- Rowling, J.K. Fantastic Beasts and Where to Find Them. Pottermore Publishing, 2001.

The war of seven kingdoms: A Feminist Re-reading of the famous series Game of Thrones

Dr. Rituparna Chakraborty

Abstract:

The series Game of Thrones became phenomenal since the first time it was aired. The medieval settings, feudal feuds immediately attracted the audience. The candidness in depicting sexuality somehow challenges the norms of a patriarchal society. It is also true the way women are objectified especially in the brothels which were so common in all the seven kingdoms is highly objectionable. At the same time, the characters like Arya Stark is a tight slap on the face of patriarchal society. The bildung of Sansa Stark from a naïve, docile girl to a strong and powerful woman is really praiseworthy. This paper seeks to attempt a feminist re-reading of Game of thrones.

Keywords: Bildung, Patriarchal Society, Feudal, Feminist, Sexuality

Game of Thrones, based on George R.R. Martin's "A Song of Ice and Fire" series created a buzz with its complex plot, a wide range of character and power dynamics. Set against the backdrop ne of a medieval world, the series brings forth a number of gender issues.

The world of Game of Thrones is a world of male machismo. The Iron Throne is the symbol of male authority. In the midst of this all male world, there are women who exercise control over this male world. The character Cersei Lannister is one of the most powerful women characters ever portrayed in tv series. She becomes a threat to the other kingdoms struggling to win the iron throne. Although she is portrayed in a negative light, no one can deny the potential of her character.

Daenerys Targaryen is one of the most powerful women characters in *Game of Thrones*. She said to Jon Snow: "I spent my life in foreign lands. So many men have tried to kill me, I don't remember all their names. i have been sold like a broodmare. I've been chained and betrayed, raped and defiled. Do you know what kept me standing through all those years in exile? Faith. Not in any gods, not in myths and legends. In myself. In Daenerys Targaryen. The world hadn't seen a dragon in centuries until my children were born. The Dothraki hadn't crossed the sea, any sea. They did for me. I was born to rule the seven kingdoms, and I will." Daenerys' bildung from a docile, timid teenage girl to the powerful, confident Khalessi queen, the mother of



dragons is really noteworthy.

Another bildung which is noticeable is the bildung of Sansa Stark. Initially, Sansa appeared to be a docile character, beautiful like a rose. To be more specific, Sansa was like an English rose, thornless, who is not capable of striking back. A series of tragic events ranging from the beheading of her father Eddard Stark to her humiliation by Geoffrey and many others transformed the lamb in her into the tigress. She became the crowned Queen of North.

Geoffrey stands as a symbol of fragile male ego. He purposefully humiliated Sansa and tortured her. He insulted Tyrion Lannister in several occasion. Tyrion, being a dwarf, is a symbol of marginalized people. Men like Geoffrey satisfy their fragile ego by inflicting torture on people who are somehow marginalized. The fragile male ego is broken into pieces and Geoffrey met his tragic end as Lady Olenna Tyrell devised a murderous plan. When the boy king dies, the audience witnesses another shade of Cersei's character – the mother.

The character of Arya Stark challenges the stereotypes of patriarchal society. She does nothing what a patriarchal society expects from a lady of a noble family to do. She is independent, headstrong and feisty. She is often mistaken for a boy and thus dismantles the stereotypes. While Sansa is seen knitting, she is seen with her sword, her "needle." Initially Sansa is the symbol of an angel in the house, who is finally transformed into the "monster woman". Arya is never the angel and always pushes Sansa to come out of her shell. The assassination at The Twins somehow changes the power dynamics which was exercised by male alone.

Game of Thrones depicts different kind of relationships challenging societal norms. The incest between Cersei and her twin brother, the relationship between Jaime and Brienne are all very different. Jaime acknowledges Brienne "The Lady" as a knight which again challenges patriarchal stereotype. Her androgynous identity and remarkable warriorship provoke a number of gender question.

The portrayal of the character of Tyrion Lannister is indeed interesting. Tyrion is depicted as the most intelligent character in the *Game of Thrones*. In spite of being marginalized, he exploits his full potential. He gives Jon Snow a very important life lesson when Jon Snow is embarrassed with his bastard identity. He advises him: "Never forget what you are. The rest of the world will not. Wear it like armor, and it can never be used to hurt you."

Bran was made lame by Jaime as he witnessed the sexual relationship between Jaime and Cersei. Sansa was tortured by Geoffrey and Ramsay. Finally, Bran on the iron throne and Sansa becoming the crowned queen of North tells the story of "The return of the repressed." However, "Valar Morghulis" (All men must die) and "Valar Dohaeris" (All men must serve) remains the

perennial message of human civilization.

References:

- Brookes, S. *The selfless leader: A compass for collective leadership.* New York : Palgrave Macmillan, 2016.
- Brown, A. *The myth of the strong leader: Political leadership in the modern age.*London UK: Vintage Books, 2014.
- Harvey, D. *A brief history of neoliberalism*. Oxford, UK: Oxford University Press, 2005.
- Phillips, K. P. Wealth and democracy: A political history of the American rich. New York, NY: Broadway Books, 2003.
- Sepheriadēs S, & Johnson, H. *Violent protest, contentious politics, and the neoliberal state*. London, UK: Routledge, 2016.
- Walton, P. L. "You win or you die": *The royal flush of power in Game of Thrones.*Canadian Review of American Studies 49(1), 99–114, 2019.

List of Contributors

Dr Pramiti Roy is currently the Director of School of Humanities and Social Sciences and head of the department of Journalism and mass communication at Swami Vivekananda University. She holds a PhD from the University of Burdwan and a Masters in Journalism and Mass Communication from the University of Calcutta, during which she has been recognized for her excellence by the Public Relations Society of India, which was awarded to her for securing the highest marks in Public Relations at the Post Graduation Level. She also stood first class second at the post graduation level. At the onset of her career she worked as a feature writer for the Times of India Kolkata and has conducted notable interviews with personalities such as Padma Shri awardee physicist Bikash Sinha, veteran Bengali actor and critic Rudraprasad Sengupta, and fashion designers Sabyasachi Mukherjee and Sandeep Sarkar. After which she shifted to academics and has worked as an Assistant Professor at Amity University Kolkata for several years where she was also the program leader of the masters batches. She has been appointed to several editorial and examining positions in various state and private universities of West Bengal she is presently an honorary Editorial Member of IJBST group of journals and a Scrutinizer of the UGC-recongnised International Peer-reviewed journal Education, Research & Analysis (ISSN 2348-571X) With numerous national and international publications to her credit, she is a well-known figure in the academic communities of West Bengal.

Dr Rituparna Chakraborty is Assistant Professor, Department of English, Swami Vivekananda University. B.A. Hons., M.A., M.Phil, Ph.D. Dr Rituparna Chakraborty has done her Masters in English from West Bengal State University and MPhil. From Rabindra Bharati University. She has pursued Ph.D from Raiganj University. She has cleared the UGC-NET. She has presented research papers in a number of National and International Conferences. She has also published several articles in UGC-CARE listed journals and International Peer-Reviewed Journals. Her areas of interest include: Popular Literature, Gender Studies and Postcolonial Studies.

Dr Mahendra Kumar Jena, currently working as an Assistant Professor in the Department of Journalism and Mass Communication, Swami Vivekananda University, Barrackpore. Dr Mahendra completed his Ph.D and Masters degree from Visva-Bharati (A Central University of National Importance), Santiniketan. As a Correspondent, he worked for more than 13 years for AnandaBazar Patrika. Before his present position, he served at Sidho Kanhu Birsha University, Purulia, DAV CPS, Siwan. He has a number of national and international publications. Rural Reporting, Development Journalism is his area of interest.

Dr Moumita Chakraborty, currently working as an Assistant professor in the Department



of Journalism and Mass Communication, Swami Vivekananda University, Barrackpore. Dr. Chakraborty holds a PhD degree from Assam University Silchar. She has done her Masters in Journalism and Mass Communication with Distinction from SRM University, Chennai. At the onset of her career, she worked with All India Radio Silchar, Doordarshan Silchar, and Eastern Chronicles (National Newspaper) as an Intern. She has a corporate experience of 3.5 years. She has various national and international paper publications with an impact factor 2.5. Her areas of interest include Development Communication, Advertisement, Traditional media, Media and culture, New media, and Global communication. Dr. Chakraborty is dedicated to fostering intellectual curiosity and critical thinking among students, while also actively contributing to cutting-edge research in the field of Mass Communication.

Pritha Misra is currently working as an Assistant Professor in the Department of Journalism and Mass Communication, Swami Vivekananda University, Barrackpore. She was a first class first awardee in her bachelor degree from Serampore College, University of Calcutta along with a diploma in Journalism and mass communication. She has completed her master's degree from The University of Burdwan. She has worked as a field investigator in a project of ICSSR IMPRESS, funded by the Ministry of HRD, Govt. of India. She has made her presence in different National and International seminars and has also presented papers. She has her papers published in one International and one National journal. Her areas of interest include Health Communication, Development Communication, Advertising, Media and Cultural studies.

Ayan Roy currently serves as a Teaching Assistant in the Department of Journalism and Mass Communication at Swami Vivekananda University, Barrackpore. Ayan graduated with honors, obtaining a Bachelor's degree in English from St. Xavier's College, Burdwan. Following this, he pursued a Master's degree in Mass Communication from the University of Burdwan. With a keen interest in research, Ayan has worked as an investigator in a project affiliated with the Indian Institute of Mass Communication (IIMC). His academic pursuits have taken him to various national and international seminars, where he has actively participated and presented research papers on topics related to Public Relations, Artificial Intelligence, and Political Communication.

Sujoy Goswami is a passionate working professional and a team player with B.Tech. in ECE after Diploma in Engineering in the same domain, has good Technical, Managerial and Coordination skills to meet the goals of an organization. strive to learn new things for the development of myself as well as my organization. A Technical cum Admin person with 12 years of industry exp. in the field of Electronics, Building 9Automation & Security Management systems, IT Networks, GSM Networks, VSAT Networks, Broadband and Broadcast as an

Operation & Maintenance Engineer. At present, 9 + years in the Media Education Industry as a Technical In Charge of AV Production, Operation & Maintenance of Studios and PCR, Inventory Management, Assistance to HOD for Departmental Administrative and Coordination work, also a Technical Instructor as well.

Shantanu Siuli is an Assistant Professor of English at the School of Humanities & Social Sciences; at Swami Vivekananda University; Barrackpore. He has completed his Master's from University of Calcutta and his Ph.D from Seacom Skills University. With an experience of over 10 years in the academic sector, Dr. Siuli has published several papers in peer-reviewed international journals alongside having attended multiple international conferences. His research interests revolve around 16th & 17th Century Literature, Renaissance Studies, Ancient European Classical Literature, Divine- aesthete Theory and Devotional Literature on Interdisciplinary Approaches.

Tirna Sadhu is an Assistant Professor of English in the Department of English, Swami Vivekananda University, Barrackpore, Kolkata. She has received her PhD from Visva Bharati University, Santiniketan. She holds a Master's Degree in English Literature from the same institution. She completed her graduation with honours in English from Hooghly Mohsin College affiliated to the University of Burdwan. She had been one of the organisers in a National and International Conference. She has an experience of 10 years in the academic sector and has published several articles in UGC Care Listed journals and edited volumes. She has actively participated in multiple workshops on Translation and its recent implications. She has to her credit translated and published poems. She has her research specialisation in the genre of science fiction with a special focus on Posthumanism, Transhumanism, Cyborg Theory and Culture Studies. Her areas of specialisation and interest include Diaspora Studies, Partition Literature, Dalit Literature, Travel Writing, Modern and Postmodern writings, American Poetry and Elizabethan Poetry

Agnideepto Datta is an Assistant Professor in the Department of English, Swami Vivekananda University, Barrackpore. He has completed his postgraduate degree from University of Calcutta and has received his M.Phil degree from Vidyasagar University. He is currently pursuing his doctoral degree from Bankura University. His research interest includes Genocide and Incarceration studies, Philosophy and Literature, and South Asian Literature. He has presented multiple papers in International Conferences and has his research articles published in International Journals and edited volumes

Moupikta Mukherjee is an Assistant Professor in the Department of English, Swami



Vivekananda University, Barrackpore. She has completed her postgraduate degree from the University of Calcutta and has received her doctoral degree from IIT- ISM Dhanbad. Her research interests are based on her fascination for how art and performance serve as an important medium of intervention for ensuring holistic development and empowerment for individuals with disabilities. She has been exploring this phenomenon from different perspectives in both her research and practices. She has worked on creative, pedagogic, research and field work related projects with various non-profit organisations like Kolkata Sanved, SAMYA foundation, Partner Hooghly and Shyambazar Blind Opera House. She has presented papers in the field of art intervention and disability studies in several International Conferences and has her work published in journals of high repute.

Kishor Kumar Hira works as a Senior Graphic Instructor in the Department of Journalism and Mass Communication at Swami Vivekananda University, Barrackpore. He has a master's degree from Kumaun University in Uttarakhand and a master's diploma in multimedia and animation from Arena Animation in Uttarakhand. With a great interest in Graphic Design, he holds 8 years of expertise in academics and 3 years of corporate experience in the field of Multimedia and Animation.

Debarshi Arathdar is an Assistant Professor in the Department of English, Swami Vivekananda University, Barrackpore. He has completed his post-graduation from the University of Delhi and is currently pursuing his Ph.D from the same institution. Prior to joining Swami Vivekananda University, he was employed as a Guest Faculty in several colleges at the University of Delhi. His research interests include Cognitive Literary Studies, Narratology, Phenomenology, Contemporary Literary Theories and Philosophies and the interfaces between A.I. and Literature. He has presented his research at both National and International Conferences. He has published several articles in Internationally acclaimed Peer-reviewed Journals and contributed Book Chapters in forthcoming projects. His research aims to unveil the complex intricacies of the mind's creative and comprehensive relation to texts at large.

Shreyoshi Dhar is currently serving as Assistant Professor, Department of English, Swami Vivekananda University. She is pursuing her Ph.D. programme from Rabindra Bharati University. Previously, she had also completed her B.A. (Hons.), M.A. and M.Phil. from the same institution. She is also in possession of a second M.A. Degree in English Language Teaching from Netaji Subhas Open University, alongside a Post Graduate Diploma in Translation and Transcultural Studies from School of Languages and Culture, Rabindra Bharati University. She has cleared the UGC-NET examination on multiple instances. Prior to joining this institution as an Assistant Professor, she worked as a Guest Faculty in Bengal School of Technology and Management,



had engaged classes at Rabindra Bharati University since December, 2022 as a Junior Research Fellow along with being a Resource Person at Rani Rashmoni Green University, Tarakeshwar since April, 2022, where she was in charge of the day-to-day functioning of the Department of English. She is also currently pursuing her MBA course from Indira Gandhi National Open University. She has presented research papers in numerous national and international seminars and also has several published articles in reputed journals to her credit. The areas of her interest include Victorian Literature, Psychoanalysis, and Feminism.

Natasha Chatterjee is an Assistant Professor in the Department of English, Swami Vivekananda University, Barrackpore. Her area of interest is Indian English Literature. She has done her Masters in English from Dr. C.V Raman University. She has done her B. Ed from Dr. C.V Raman University. She has done A-Level from DOEACC Society. She is doing her Ph. D on the selected novels of Sudha Murthy and Anita Desai. She has presented papers at various national and international conferences. She has also published many articles in various journals.





Dr. Bramiti Roy. Director of School of Humanities and Social Sciences at Swam. Viveranence University, holds a PhD from the University of Sundwan and a Wasters in Journalism and Mass Communication from the University of Causada. Notable accordance include recognition from the Piblic Sciences Society of India. Site began her careanas affecture writer for the Times of India 10 kstal interviewing notable Tigmes. Times it oring to exadently, steeds avaid as Assistant Profession at Amity University Kolkata and held editorial roles in various in were ties. With numerous publications, sharps established to in Wast Sengal Sacadentic and as



Dr. Moyafita Challesberry, Assistant Professor of Swami Wivelenanda University, Sarvackperry, Inglish in PhD. Irom Wasen: University, Alleber, and in Measers in Woundlan, and Mease Communication from SRM University, Chennal, With Internship experiences at All, note Sadio, Boordersham, and Itasiann Chronicas, at a brings 3.5 years of corporate experience. Dr. Chakraboriw's research interests span Development Communication, Advertisement Trust and time New media, Media and Outland, and Geod. Communication, professor in her regional and International publications. She is committed to currently, critical thinking and advancing research in Mass Communication.



Dr. Mahendra Romar Jena currently working as an Assistant Phofesson in the Department of Journalism, and Mass. Communication, Swami Mwelananda University, Bantzio-pora Dr. Mahendra completed his PhiD and Massers degree from Visvo-Bharasti (A Central University of National Importance), Saminiketan Asia Consequentiant, he worked for more than "Asyers" for AntineuBazan Puthka. Before this present position, he served at Sidtle Kuntu. Binara. University, Function, DAV CPS, Steam the ties a number of national and International publications. Bural Reporting, Development Journalism is his area of interest.



Ma. Prible Miane, Association, Professor at Swarm Processinate University, for neckpoint accented in her bachelors at Secampore College, University of Calcutta, With a master's from The University of Bandward sine oo tributed to ICSS / MPRESS project. Active in seminars, her research focuses on Health Communication, Development Communication, Adventising and Medical discitly at stocials.

ISBN: 978-93-6128-689-6



